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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM"”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to

professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is
a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a

liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or

any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report

misleading.
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Corporate Information
rEEH
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Management'’s Statement
BEEER®RE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the audited financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

2014/15 was a critical year and full of challenges for the Group.
During the year, the Group continued to focus provision of
general hospital services and pharmaceutical products in the
People's Republic of China (the “PRC"). Our ability to respond to
policy changes and market competition was tested, the Group's
turnover for the year was approximately HK$1,780.309 million
(2014: approximately HK$2,243.159 million), representing
approximately a decrease of 20.63% as compared with 2014.
The operating loss was approximately HK$759.875 million (2014:
profit of approximately HK$77.163 million). Net loss attributable
to owners of the Company was approximately HK$505.581 million
(2014: Net profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$21.913 million), representing a decrease in the
profit attributable to owners of the Company as compared to
the same period of last year. The loss was mainly related to the
impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$785.169 million
recognised by our non-wholly owned subsidiary — Wanjia Group.
If such effect was discounted, the Group would have recorded
a profit from operation of approximately HK$25.294 million
representing a decrease of approximately 67.22% compared with
last year. The decrease was mainly attributable to the reduction
in Wanjia's sales to distributor customers due to the stringent
regulations result of the promulgation and implementation of the
New GSP.

OPERATION REVIEW

General hospital services

Since the Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital Company Limited acquisition
was completed on 4 September 2014, the Group has operated
three general hospitals in Chongqging, Jiaxing and Zhuhai (2014
two general hospitals in Chongging and Jiaxing). The Group
continues to allocate resources to look for business opportunities
to expand the hospital services. The segmental turnover for the
year was approximately HK$214.040 million (2014: approximately
HK$150.685 million), representing an increase of approximately
42.04% as compared with 2014.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and
pharmaceutical retail chain business

Our subsidiary Wanjia engages in the wholesale and distribution
of a broad range of pharmaceutical products to hospitals,
clinics and pharmacies in the Fujian Province, the PRC, as well
as operates a chain of retail pharmacies in the province under
the brand name the “Huihao Sihai”. The pharmaceutical retail
chain operation has maintained the leading position in both retail
drug store numbers and comprehensive competitiveness within
Fujian Province. Wanjia continues to allocate resources to look for
business opportunities to expand its pharmaceutical wholesale,
distribution and retail chain businesses. The segmental turnover
for the year was approximately HK$1,566.269 million (2014:
approximately HK$2,092.474 million), representing a decrease of

approximately 25.15% as compared with last year.

Although the regulatory changes will pose challenges to the
operating environment in the healthcare and pharmaceutical
industry, the demand for healthcare services and pharmaceutical
products sustains a robust growth fuelled by various favorable
factors, such as the extended medical insurance coverage into the
different diseases for different segments of the population across
the country, the rise in per capita funding standards for medical
insurance, the acceleration in urbanisation and the aging of

China’s population.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, | would
like to thank for the kind support from our customers, suppliers,
business partners. Also, | would like to offer my highest gratitude
to thank for to our shareholders for their devotion and to our
employees across all business segments for their loyalty and

contributions made during the year.

Jiang Tao
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFmETH

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of the results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 March 2015 is as follows:

o Total turnover was approximately HK$1,780.309 million
(2014: approximately HK$2,243.159 million), representing
a decrease of approximately 20.63% as compared with last
year. The decrease in turnover was mainly attributable to
the decline in sales from the pharmaceutical wholesales and
distribution segment due to the implementation of the New
GSP in 2014.

o Gross profit was approximately HK$277.728 million (2014:
approximately HK$269.003 million), with the gross profit

margin maintained at a similar level as 2014.

o The operating loss was approximately HK$759.875 million
(2014: profit of approximately HK$77.163 million). Net loss
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$505.581 million (2014: Net profit attributable to owners
of the Company was approximately HK$21.913 million),
representing a decrease in the profit attributable to owners
of the Company as compared with last year. The loss
was mainly related to the impairment loss on goodwill of
approximately HK$785.169 million recognised by our non-
wholly owned subsidiary — Wanjia Group. If such effect was
discounted, the Group recorded a profit from operation of
approximately HK$25.294 million, representing a decrease of

approximately 67.22% decrease as compared with last year.

o The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of general
hospital services and pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and

pharmaceutical retail chain businesses in the PRC.

The Group successfully spun-off the pharmaceutical wholesale,
distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain business operated
under the Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (“Wanjia Group”) on
10 October 2013.

Turnover

The Group recorded turnover of approximately HK$1,780.309
million (2014: approximately HK$2,243.159 million) for the year
ended 31 March 2015, a decrease of approximately 20.63% as
compared with last year. The gross profit margin of the Group
was approximately 15.60%, (2014: approximately 11.99%),
The increase was attributable to the growth in general hospital

services among the operating segments.

General hospital services

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group operated
three (2014: two) general hospitals in Chongqging, Jiaxing and
Zhuhai, respectively principally engaged in the provision of
general hospital services, including but not limited to medical
wards, surgical wards, cosmetic surgery, dermatology and
medical checkup and examination. The management envisaged
more diversified hospital services being readily available to
satisfy various needs of the public in the next few years, from
the common illness treatments to the treatments of special and
difficult diseases. Therefore, the Group will continue to allocate
resources to develop such services either from our existing
hospitals or through collaboration with strategic partners. The
turnover generated from general hospital services amounted
to approximately HK$214.040 million (2014: approximately
HK$150.685 million), representing a significant increase of

approximately 42.04% as compared with last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEESRETH

Pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and

pharmaceutical retail chain businesses

The Group engages in the wholesale, distribution of a board range
of pharmaceutical products to hospitals, clinics and pharmacies
in the Fujian Province, the PRC, through its subsidiary — Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited. The Group’s pharmaceutical retail chain
operation has maintained the leading position in both retail drug
store numbers and comprehensive competitiveness within the
Fujian Province, as ranked by independent associations in the
PRC. The Group continues to allocate resources and to look for
business opportunities to expand the pharmaceutical wholesale,
distribution and retail chain businesses. Turnover generated from
pharmaceutical wholesales, distribution and pharmaceutical retail
chain business amounted to approximately HK$1,566.269 million
(2014: approximately HK$2,092.474 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 25.15% as compared with last year
and accounted for approximately 87.98% of the Group’s turnover
for the year ended 31 March 2015. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the reduction in sales to distributor customers due
to the more stringent regulations as a result of the promulgation

and implementation of the New GSP.

Other revenue

Other revenue, primarily including exhibition income, rental
income, interest income from bank deposits, interest income from
loan receivables and sundry income amounted to approximately
HK$9.502 million (2014: approximately HK$10.258 million) for
the year ended 31 March 2015, which remained at similar level as

compared with last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consisted of (1)
salaries and wages of sales and marketing personnel, (2) rental
expenses and (3) transportation expenses. For the year ended
31 March 2015, selling and distribution expenses amounted
to approximately HK$141.745 million (2014: approximately
HK$94.873 million), representing an increase of approximately
49.40% as compared with last year. The increase in selling and
distribution expenses was principally attributable to the increase in
both the number of retail pharmacies and hospitals being served

during the year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2015
amounted to approximately HK$120.667 million (2014:
approximately HK$92.316 million), representing an increase of
approximately 30.71% as compared with last year. The increment
was mainly contributed by the Group’s the expansion of the

Group's scale of operation as mentioned above.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the finance costs of the Group
were approximately HK$11.520 million (2014: approximately
HK$10.493 million), representing an increase of approximately
9.79% as compared with last year. The increase was mainly due to

the increased average outstanding bank loans during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFmETH

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

The Group recorded a net loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$505.581 million (2014: net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$21.913 million), representing a decrease in the profit
attributable to owners of the Company as compared with last
year. The loss was mainly attributable to the impairment loss on
goodwill of approximately HK$785.169 million recognised by our

non-wholly owned subsidiary Wanjia Group.

In August 2014, the Fujian Food and Drug Administration (&
EEEREREEEER) announced the 10 companies which
are permitted to conduct the business in the distribution to
public hospitals and public healthcare institutions after 2016. The
operating subsidiary of Wanjia Group, namely (82 & @M T EF
& HPRA A ) Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical
Co. Limited® is on the list. Notwithstanding recognition as a
qualified participant in the distribution industry is encouraging,
the effect of the implementation of the New GSP and any
future policy development on the hospital distribution business
of the Group remains uncertain. Having taken into account the
financial performance as of June 2014, the Board of Wanjia
Group reviewed again the potential effects of the New GSP on
the distribution business in late July 2014 and prudently lowered
the forecasted performance in sales to distributor customers.
As a result the impairment loss on the goodwill was triggered.
The carrying amount of goodwill was tested for impairment as
at 30 June 2014. The impairment test compared the discounted
cash flow of the cash-generating units (CGUs) with the carrying
amounts of the CGUs. The recoverable amounts of the CGUs
were significantly less than the carrying value of the goodwill,
therefore, an impairment loss on the goodwill of approximately

HK$785.169 million was made in the year under review.

*  English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

Fueled by China’s growing economy, market potential unleashed
by the expanding national medical insurance coverage,
accelerated urbanization and ageing population, the management
believes that demand for healthcare will continue to drive China’s

healthcare industry, enabling it to maintain a fast growth in 2015.

As 2015 is the last year of the country’s Twelfth Five-Year plan
period, the goal of expanding private healthcare services is to be
achieved at different levels of the country, supported by a series of
favorable policies from the loosen up on pricing structures to the
reduction of entry restrictions. The roles of private hospitals have
been recognised to meet specific public needs in connection with
the state owned hospitals. At the same time, the consolidation
in the public funded healthcare resources is also intensifying as a

result of the continuous healthcare reform.

Being a pioneering healthcare company with strong integrated
capabilities, in general hospitals services and with its focus on
private hospitals, the management believes that the Group will
reap benefits from the government’s policies of encouraging

privatization and resources consolidation.

The year 2015 offers opportunities as well as challenges for the
Group. On such basis, the Group will strengthen its financial
position and enhance future development and competitiveness
to seize the greatest benefit from the economy growth. Based on
the strength of our diversified businesses and strong management
team, we are confident that the Group has ample human and
financial resources in our businesses and are ready to meet the

opportunities and challenges ahead.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had total cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$88.793 million as at 31 March 2015 (2014: approximately
HK$92.418 million).
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The Group recorded total current assets of approximately
HK$732.674 million as at 31 March 2015 (2014: approximately
HK$773.575 million) and total current liabilities of approximately
HK$414.992 million as at 31 March 2015 (2014: approximately
HK$410.818 million). The current ratio of the Group, calculated
by dividing the current assets by the current liabilities, was
approximately 1.766 as at 31 March 2015 (2014: approximately
1.883).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’'s gearing ratio was
approximately 58% based on outstanding debts (comprising bill
payables, bank borrowings, convertible note and promissory note)
less cash and cash equivalents over total equity (including all
capital and reserves of the Group) (2014: approximately 13%).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group had no material capital
commitment.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there were acquisition of
subsidiaries as follows:

General hospital services

On 1 September 2014, Fuzhou Jiahui Enterprise Management
Consultancy Limited* (“Fuzhou Jiahui”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary (the “Purchaser”), entered into the agreement
with the vendors in respect of acquisition of Zhuhai Jiulong
Hospital Company Limited, pursuant to which the Purchaser has
agreed to acquire (i) the Sale Capital of the target Company,
together with its wholly-owned subsidiary Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital
Company Limited (the “Target Group”) and (ii) a loan, from
the vendors at the consideration of RMB37,941,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$47,707,000). The consideration is satisfied
by the Purchaser assuming all the payment obligations and the
liabilities of the loan instead and in the place of the vendors.
Upon completion on 4 September 2014, Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital
Company Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by the Group.
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Pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and

pharmaceutical retail chain business

On 9 April 2014, Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao
Pharmaceutical Co. Limited* (“Fuzhou Huihao"”), a wholly
owned subsidiary (the “Purchaser”) and Hui Hao Yi Yao (Xiamen)
Company Limited* (formerly name as Xiamen Hui Sheng Yi Yao
Company Limited) (“Xiamen Huihao”), a PRC pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution corporation, entered into an
arrangement agreement in relation to the conditional acquisition
60% of net assets value of Xiamen Huihao (the “Proposed
Acquisition”) by the Purchaser. The consideration of acquisition
is approximately RMB4.945 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$6.204 million). Upon completion of the Proposed Acquisition
on 21 April 2014, Xiamen Huihao became a 60% owned

subsidiary of the Purchaser.

In June 2014, Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical
Co. Limited* ("Fuzhou Huihao"), a wholly owned subsidiary (the
“Purchaser”) and Hui Hao Yi Yao (Nanping) Company Limited
(formerly name as Fu Jian Sheng Heng Chang Yao Ye Company
Limited) (“Nanping Huihao”), a PRC pharmaceutical wholesale
and distribution corporation, entered into an arrangement
agreement in relation to the conditional acquisition 60% of net
assets value of Nanping Huihao (the “Proposed Acquisition”) by
the Purchaser. The consideration of acquisition is approximately
RMB7.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$9.417 million).
Upon completion of the Proposed Acquisition on 15 June
2014, Nanping Huihao became a 60% owned subsidiary of the

Purchaser.

After the acquisitions, the Company had engaged an independent
qualified professional valuer to measure the business value of the
company on the completion date. All the goodwill arising from the
above acquisitions has been reflected in the Company’s financial
statement ended 31 March 2015.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, no member of the Group was
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and
no litigation or claim of material importance was known to the
directors to be pending or threatened against any member of the

Group.

FINANCING AND TREASURY POLICIES

The Group continues to adopt prudent financing and treasury
policies. All the Group’s financing and treasury activities are
centrally managed and controlled. Implementation of the
Group's related policies is made under collective but extensive
considerations on liquidity risk, financing cost and exchange rate

risk.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Since almost all transactions of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars and most of the bank deposits
are being kept in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars to minimise
exposure to foreign exchange risk, the directors consider that
the Group’s risk exposure to currency fluctuations to be minimal.
Therefore, the Group had not implemented any formal hedging
or other alternative policies to deal with such exposure during the

year.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had bank borrowings
outstanding balances and bills payables of approximately
HK$121.454 million and HK$18.697 million respectively. The
Group's pledged bank deposits, prepaid lease payments and
investment properties of approximately HK$12.970 million,
HK$1.909 million and HK$8.093 million, respectively, were
pledged as collateral to secure banking facilities granted to the

Group.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, the revenue of the Group was principally
generated from: (1) provision of general hospital services and
(2) pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and pharmaceutical
retail chain businesses. Financial information in respect of these
operations is presented in Note 6 to the consolidated financial

statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2015, the total issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$17.601 million (2014:
approximately HK$17.562 million) divided into 1,661,589,944
ordinary shares and 98,500,000 non-voting convertible preference
shares (2014: 1,153,488,264 ordinary shares and 602,701,680
non-voting convertible preference shares) of HK$0.01 (2014:
HK$0.01) each.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31 March 2015, the Group had 1,936 (2014: 1,720) full

time employees (including directors) as shown in the following
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For the year ended 31 March 2015, staff costs (including directors
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$119.076 million
(2014 approximately HK$99.507 million). The Group remunerates
its employees based on individual performance and qualification.
Apart from the basic remuneration, staff benefits include the
contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, bonus
and medical coverage in Hong Kong; and basic insurance for
the elderly, basic medical insurance, work injury insurance and
unemployment insurance to the employees in the PRC. The Group
also adopted employee share option schemes to provide eligible
employees a performance incentive for continuous and improved
services with the Group and to enhance their contributions to
increase profits by encouraging capital accommodation and share

ownership.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Company

Grant of share option

On 16 April 2015, the Company granted a total of 100,000,000
share options to directors and employees of the Group at the
subscription price of HK$0.68 per share respectively with a 3 year
exercise period each commencing 18 April 2015, 18 April 2016
and 18 April 2017 respectively.

Memorandum of understanding of proposed cooperation

On 18 May 2015, the Company and Yunnan Tumor Hospital*
entered into the non-legally binding memorandum of
understanding (the “"MOU") in relation to the proposed
cooperation. The parties to the MOU plan to cooperate for the
construction of a new branch hospital of Yunnan Tumor Hospital
on a piece and parcel of land with an area of approximately 24
mu located at Lot A5, City Centre Village Project No. 53, Xishan
District, Kunming, Yunnan province, the PRC, according to a
mutually agreed schedule, upon obtaining the approval from the
Land Planning and Management Department in Kunming for its
intended use. Until the date of this announcement, the proposed

cooperation is not yet materialised.
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Issue of ordinary shares in respect of exercise of share
options

On 3 June 2015, 2,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company
of HK$0.01 each have been issued in respect of the exercise of
2,500,000 post-listing share options. Also 9 June 2015, 9,080,000
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each have been
issued in respected of the exercise of 9,080,000 post-listing share

options.

Rights issue

On 22 June 2015, the Company and the underwriter entered
into an underwriting agreement. The Company proposes to
raise not less than approximately HK$240 million but not more
than approximately HK$260 million, before expenses, by way
of the Rights Issue of not less than 334,633,988 rights shares
but not more than approximately 360,908,387 rights shares to
the qualifying shareholders at a subscription price of HK$0.72
per rights share on the basis of one (1) rights share for every
five (5) shares held on the record date. Until the date of this
announcement, the underwriting agreement has not yet becoming

unconditional.
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Wanjia Group

On 12 May 2015, Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited (“Hui Hao (HK)"),
Fuzhou Ren An Medical Technology Limited? (g N{= Z B Z& Rl
BR/ATF) ("Ren An") and Fuzhou Huihao entered into the Joint
Venture Agreement, pursuant to which Ren An agreed to make
a capital contribution of approximately RMB26 million to the
registered capital and the capital reserve of Fuzhou Huihao. The
capital Increase constituted a deemed disposal of the Company’s
indirect equity interest in the Fuzhou Huihao through Wanjia
Group and resulted that the equity interest of Hui Hao (HK) in
Fuzhou Huihao was diluted from 100% to 75% and the Fuzhou
Huihao is held as to 75% by Hui Hao (HK) and as to 25% by Ren
An.

On 14 May 2015, Wanjia Group entered into the placing
agreement with the placing agent pursuant to which Wanjia
Group has conditionally agreed to place, through the placing
agent, on a best efforts basis, the Wanjia Group convertible
notes with principal amounts aggregating up to HK$84,292,000
to the placees at the initial conversion price of HK$0.65 per
Wanjia Group conversion share (“the placing”). Based on the
initial conversion price of HK$0.65 per conversion share, a total
of 129,680,000 Wanjia Group conversion shares will be allotted
and issued upon exercise of the conversion rights attaching to the
Wanjia Group convertible notes in full. The placing was completed
on 1 June 2015 and assuming the conversion of Wanjia Group
convertible notes in full. The equity interest of the Company in
Wanjia Group will be diluted from approximately only 63.53% to
approximately 52.94%. Until the date of this announcement, no

Wanjia Group convertible notes have been converted.
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Profiles

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Jiang Tao (“Dr. Jiang”), aged 59, holds a degree of doctor
of audiology from the Arizona School of Health Sciences of AT
Still University in the United States and two master’s degrees in
audiology and in special education from Lamar University of Texas
in the United States. He served as senior management in several
enterprises in the United States, Canada and the PRC with over
17 years of experience in senior management, consultancy and
investment in the PRC, Hong Kong, Canada and the United States.
Dr. Jiang has also established six enterprises in the PRC with
Canadian capital. He is currently the life time visiting Professor of
the Kunming Normal University, and formerly Assistant Professor
of Dalhousie University of Canada, Sichuan University, and Sun
Yatsen Medical University. Dr. Jiang was appointed as an executive
director and Deputy Chief Executive of the Company on 3 January
2007 and 26 March 2010 respectively. Dr. Jiang was appointed as
a Chief Executive Officer on 20 April 2015.

Mr. Zheng Gang (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 47, holds a master degree
in business administration from Cardiff Business School in the
United Kingdom and a bachelor degree in engineering from
Xiamen University in the PRC. Mr. Zheng has over 19 years of
management experience in finance, investment and trading. Mr.
Zheng was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
1 August 2007.

Dr. Huang Jiaqing ("Dr. Huang”), aged 64, has over 30 years
of professional experience in the PRC's medical fields, including
clinical, preventive and emergency medicine. Dr. Huang has
served as hospital doctor, director of hospital’s emergency centre,
head of the sanitation and anti-epidemic department in hospital,
head of the hospital and medical administration bureau in the
PRC municipal government. To honour Dr. Huang’s distinguished
expertise in the medical fields, he enjoys special subsidisation from
the State Council of the PRC. Dr. Huang is currently the executive
vice president of the Group. Dr. Huang was appointed as an

executive director of the Company on 30 July 2009.
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EEREREEAEHE

Mr. Yung Ka Chun (“Mr. Yung”), aged 26, obtained his master
degree of science in business majoring in accounting from the
University of Maryland, College Park in the United States. Mr. KC
Yung has entered into a service contract with the Company dated
20 April 2015 for a term of 3 years commencing from the date
of the service contract. Mr. Yung was appointed as the executive
director and authorised representative of the Company with
effective from 20 April 2015.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Wong Yu Man, James (“Dr. Wong"”), aged 62, holds two
bachelor degrees in medicine and surgery from the University of
Hong Kong. Dr. Wong also holds a doctorate degree in medicine
from Freiburg University in Germany. He has over 30 years of
experience in medical and healthcare services in Hong Kong.
Dr. Wong was appointed as the non-executive director of the
Company on 20 March 2007.

Mr. Tang Xun (“Mr. Tang”), age 34, holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Japanese from the Beijing International Studies University in
2004, and thereafter a Master’s degree in political economics from
Graduate School of Peking University as an on-job postgraduate
student in 2012.Mr. Tang Xun has over three years of experience
in private equity investment, and is currently an executive director
of Beijing Hosen Investment Management, LLP. Mr. Tang was
appointed as the non-executive director of the Company with
effective from 10 March 2015.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne (“Ms. Wong"), aged 51, has over 25
years of experience in finance, accounting, taxation and corporate
affairs. She is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia, a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Society
of Trust and Estate Practitioner and the Certified Tax Advisor in
Hong Kong. Ms. Wong holds a bachelor degree in economics
from the University of Sydney, Australia. Ms. Wong is currently the
managing director of a private company providing consulting and
management services, as well as the chief financial officer of a

local law firm and consultant of a local CPA firm. Ms. Wong is also
currently an independent non-executive director and a member
of the remuneration committee and the chairlady of the audit
committee of Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited and Phoenitron
Holdings Limited which both companies listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1 November 2007.

Prof. Hu Shanlian (“Prof. Hu"), aged 78, is a professor in
Health Economics and has a Master degree in Science from the
London School of Tropical Medicine and Hygiene. At present, he
is the director of Training Centre for Health Management and
Pharmacoeconomics Research and Evaluation Centre at School
of Public Health at Fudan University in the PRC. Prof. Hu is also
the director of Health Development Research Centre in the
Shanghai Bureau of Health. Prof. Hu also held senior positions in
the National Health Economic Institution and China Network of
Training and Research in Health Economics and Financing between
1991 and 2005, which were supported by the Ministry of Health
of the PRC and World Bank respectively. Prof. Hu was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 30
July 2009.
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EEREREEAEHE

Prof. Lu Chuanzhen ("Prof. Lu”), aged 77, is a neurologist and
has over 50 years of medical professional experience. Prof. Lu
is currently the lifetime professor of Shanghai Huashan Hospital
in the PRC and a director in the World Health Organisation’s
Neuroscience Research and Training Centre. Prof. Lu was
formerly the chairman and director of the Institute of Neurology
in Shanghai Medical University, the chairman of the Chinese
Association of Neurology and chairman of the Shanghai
association of Neurology in the Chinese Medical Society. Prof. Lu
also has an international membership with New York Academy of
Sciences. Prof. Lu was appointed as an independent non-executive

director of the Company on 30 July 2009.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Williamson (“Mr. Lam”), aged 40, joined the Group in
December 2007. Mr. Lam is the Group's chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Company. He has more than 20 years’
experience in finance and company secretarial functions. Mr. Lam
is a member of the Certified Practising Accountant in Australia
and also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”)

acknowledges the need and importance of corporate governance
as one of the key elements in creating shareholders’ value.
The Company is also committed to achieving high standard of
corporate governance that can properly protect and promote the
interests of all shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability of the Company. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) (effective from 1
April 2012) as stated in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market ("GEM")
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Save as the deviation from the code provision A.2.1, separation
of roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to code
provision A.2.1 as disclosed in the section “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer”, the Company has met all the code provisions in
the CG Code during the year ended 31 March 2015.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a set of code for the required standard
of dealings in securities by directors of the Company on terms
no less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries of directors of the Company and the directors confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard with
respect to the securities dealings of the Company and there was
no event of non-compliance during the period from 1 April 2014
to 31 March 2015.
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THE BOARD

The Board assumes overall responsibilities for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company and its business by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board
focuses on overall corporate strategies and policies with attention

particularly paid to the financial performance of the Company.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances

at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

There is a clear division of the responsibilities of the Board and the
management. The Board delegated its responsibilities to directors
and senior management to deal with day-to-day operations and

review those arrangements on a periodic basis.

Management has to report back to the Board and obtain prior
approval before making decisions for key matters or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Company. The Board has a
balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of

the business of the Company.

The Board has established three committees, namely, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference which are disclosed on the

Company’s website and the Stock Exchange Website.

Appropriate directors’ liability insurance cover has been arranged
to indemnify the directors of the Company for liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The coverage and the sum insured under

the policy are to be reviewed regularly.
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Board Composition and Attendance Records of
Directors

The Board currently composes of four executive directors, two
non-executive directors and three independent non-executive
directors. During the year, seven full board meetings were held and
attendance (either in person or through other electronic means
of communication) record of each director at the meetings of the
Board together with the meetings of the audit, remuneration and
nomination committee during the year ended 31 March 2015 and

annual general meeting held in 2014 are set out below.
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY SEHE
Audit Remuneration Nomination 2014
Board Committee Committee Committee AGM/EGM
—g-mE
BRBEXE/
Name of directors EERA Ex® ERERE FHERE REEZRE BREBIAE
Executive directors BiTEE
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong' SESEE 9/10 N/A R A N/A R A 212 22
Dr. Jiang Tao BEfEt 6/10 N/A R f N/A R A 0/0 22
Mr. Zheng Gang WL 10/10 N/A R A 212 N/A R A 22
Dr. Huang Jiaging EMERE 5/10 N/A R A N/A R A N/A R A 22
Mr. Yung Ka Chun? SEBLE 0/0 N/A R A N/A R A N/A R A 0/0
Mr. Chen Jin Shan? CEANp AR 12 N/A TR N/A TR N/A T &R "N
Non-executive director FHITER
Dr. Wong Yu Man, James IHREE 7110 N/A 7 N/A R A N/A R A 22
Mr. Tang Xun* B L 073 N/A 7 N/A R A N/A R A 0/0
Independent non- BUERTER
executive directors
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne BEEZut 9/10 4/4 22 212 212
Prof. Hu Shanlian HEHHE 6/10 4/4 212 072 212
Prof. Lu Chuanzhen REEHR 9/10 4/4 212 212 212
Notes: B &E
1. Mr. Yung Kwok Leong resigned on 20 April 2015. 1. BESEER-ZE-AFNA=+HEHE-
2. Mr Yung Ka Chun was appointed on 20 April 2015, 2. PEBLEENR-_Z—HFENA-—tTHEZE-
3. Mr. Chen Jin Shan resigned on 10 October 2014. 3. KRELUAER-Z—HNFE+AT+HEE-
4. Mr. Tang Xun was appointed on 10 March 2015. 4. BHEER-_Z-—HF=ATHEZE-
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The list of the “Directors and their Role and Function” has
been maintained at the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The directors’ biographies and the relationship among
the board members, if any, are disclosed under the “Directors’ and
Senior Management's Profiles” on pages 21 to 24 of this annual

report.

Given the composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge
and expertise that each director brings to bear in its deliberations,
the Board believes that it is appropriately structured to provide
sufficient checks and balances to protect the interests of the
Group and the shareholders. The Board will review its composition
regularly to ensure that it has the appropriate balance of
expertise, skills and experience to continue to effectively oversee

the business of the Company.

Responsibilities of directors

The non-executive director and independent non-executive
directors, with diversified expertise, skills and experience, play
an important role on formulating strategy and ensuring that
the Board maintains high standards of corporate governance.
The Board had received from each independent non-executive
director a written annual confirmation of his/her independence
and satisfied that the independence of independent non-executive
directors up to the date of this report is in accordance with the
GEM Listing Rules.

On a regular basis, senior management provides the directors with
operational and financial reports of the Group’s performance,
position and prospect. All directors are kept informed of and duly
briefed of major changes and information that may affect the

Group’s business in a timely manner.
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Every Board member is entitled to have access to board papers
and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the company secretary, and has the liberty to seek
external professional advice if so required. The company secretary
continuously updates all directors on the latest development
of the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate

governance practice.

Training and Continuous Development for Directors

Each newly appointed director is provided with comprehensive
induction to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding
of the operations and businesses of the Group as well as his
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements. For directors to keep abreast
of responsibilities as a director of the Company and of the
conduct, business activities and development of the Company,
the Company had provided trainings for directors in the form
of seminar and reading materials. The Company has devised a
training record to assist the directors to record the training they
have undertaken. Also, the completed records are received from

each of the directors as confirmation.

The Company will, from time to time, review the effectiveness of
the Group's corporate governance structure and consider whether

any changes.

EERERBE

REEEREYARECHESEXMHRERE
o AAERERDAUERATERRE
TNAEFERHARMEXER - ARAUE—
BEOEESEHNAHAIZER ETRR KA
EREEREZRNBERUBRESA L —H
HERIF2EEERTER

EFKIIRIGERER
RRAFROSEHERZECESREZEAARBE
N UEREEAEE cEERERURER
ERAXERETRAREHEEERERTER
FEEEH BRESYREABERET LT
EECERURARAZEF X EBRE
ReARATAUMNEREEMHZEARES
RAEFZI - AQFEREFICHE  UAHHPHE
ELHNSCER 2B -ARATRERE
ERECETHRBARSCEZ 28T

RRNBETERNAEB 2 EEERRB IR
B UZERERELEFHEMER-

EEBRBEEBERAT
2014/2015 FE )

29



30

Corporate Governance Report
TEERWSE

DIRECTORS

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive director should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. The
Company’s non-executive director has been appointed for specific

term and subject to re-election.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the
directors who have been longest in office since their last election
or re-election are also subject to retirement by rotation at the
annual general meeting. All retiring directors are eligible for re-

election.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person to discuss and formulate
overall strategic direction and objectives and also approve annual,
interim and quarterly results as well as other significant matters of
the Company. Execution of daily operational matters is delegated

to management.

The company secretary assists the Chairman in preparing notice
and agenda for the meetings, and ensures that the Company
complied with the corporate governance practices and other
compliance matters. Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda
of each meeting are normally made available to directors in
advance. At least 14 days' notice of all regular board meetings
were given to all directors, who were all given an opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for regular discussion. Board papers
together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information
are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each regular board
meeting or committee meeting (or such other period as agreed) to
keep directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed

decisions.
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All directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary with a view to ensuring that the Board procedures and

all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Minutes of the Board/committee meetings are recorded in
significant detail for any decision and recommendation made
during the meetings. Draft and final versions of minutes are
circulated to directors or committee members within a reasonable
time after the meetings are held and taken as the true records
of the proceedings of such meetings. All minutes are kept by the
company secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable

time on reasonable notice by any director.

All directors are entitled to have access to board papers and
related materials unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on

disclosure due to regulatory requirements.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by way
of a Board/committee meeting and the interested shareholder or
director shall not vote nor shall he/she be counted in the quorum
present at the relevant meeting. Independent non-executive
director who, and whose associates, have no material interest in

the transaction, should be present at such a board meeting.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 2 November
2001, with written terms of reference compliance with rules
5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and is disclosed on the
Company’s website. The Audit Committee of the Company is
comprised of three independent non-executive directors, namely,
Prof. Hu Shanlian, Prof. Lu Chuanzhen and Ms. Wong Ka Wai,
Jeanne. Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne is the chairlady of the Audit

Committee.
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The Audit Committee met four times a year in 2013 and the main

duties of the Audit Committee during the year include:

(@) Reviewing the Group’s audited annual and unaudited interim
and quarterly results and reports and consider any significant

or unusual items before submission to the Board.

(b) Reviewing the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal

of external auditors.

(c)  Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk

management system and associated procedures.

(d) Advising on material even or drawing the attention of the

management on related risks.

The external auditors were invited to attend the said meetings to
discuss with the Audit Committee on issues arising from the audit
and financial reporting matters. Besides, there is no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the

reappointment of external auditors.

Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee

On 11 February 2014, the Board resolved to establish a
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee in place
and stead of the previously Nomination Committee, which was
established on 27 March 2012 in compliance with the code
provision. Written terms of reference were disclosed on the
Company’s website. The Nomination Committee is comprised of
three independent non-executive directors, namely, Ms. Wong Ka
Wai, Jeanne, Prof. Hu Shanlian and Prof. Lu Chuanzhen and the
Chairman of the Board, Mr. Yung Kwok Leong. Mr. Yung Kwok
Leong was the Chairman of the Nomination Committee. On 20
April 2015, Dr. Jiang Tao is the Chairman of the Nomination

Committee and Corporate Governance Committee.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

BEREEEN-ZE—=FEHRTNAEEM
FRAEZEES2IERERRE:

(a) BHAKEZEERFE REELTH
REEXERBRE YHEEXRTESSH
EZRAMEARFLESESEE

(b) BERBEMTZINH HHMRIERK
Mo AR ERINE A A 2 B R RSN
REM R BENZERBEQESS
RftE=Z-

(0 RNADFZHBERSE  AIBEEZH
ErEBERHE  UARAERFRS
HRBM

d) BMEABEEHER IBFEEREEZ
BERR-

IERHMBALE LASE REARYK
HREEMEECREEBEREEGENTR
Mot/ EBEEHRELESSWEMIMPERK
M ZEHMZEHREMSER D

RERGRELERS
RZZE-—NFZA+—B EBSZFRALE
BEREXERZEEURREAC R -2 —=
FZRAZTEARBTUARKIBIZREEES
S EHREEECHRAQAPUBRE RS
ZEEREZEBUFITES NEES
T HEBRERREEERR URESEE
FERERLE SESRAEBRREEEEE
F-R-ZZE-—HAFENA-tTH BEELHE
BEEEREXERZEEEF -



Corporate Governance Report

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition, including the skills,
knowledge and experience of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, and identify
individuals suitable qualified to become directors and select, or

make recommendations to the Board for directorships.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
2015.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 3
June 2005 with written terms of reference as disclosed on the
Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee has four
members comprising an executive director of the Company, Mr.
Zheng Gang and three independent non-executive directors,
namely, Prof. Hu Shanlian, Prof. Lu Chuanzhen and Ms. Wong
Ka Wai, Jeanne. Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne is the chairlady of the

Remuneration Committee.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee include
the determination of specific remuneration package of all
executive directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment, and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive directors. The Remuneration Committee considers
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of

performance-based remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, two meetings was held.
First meeting was held to consider and approve the increase of
emoluments of chief executive director. The second meeting was
held to consider and approve the emoluments of a Non-Executive

Director.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2015.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual, interim and quarterly
reports, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures
required under the GEM Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements. The directors are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the relevant accounting periods under applicable statutory
and regulatory requirements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs, the results of operations and cash flows of
the Group. In preparing the annual, interim and quarterly results
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015, the Directors
have adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them

consistently.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to these
consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent

Auditor’s Report on pages 59 to 61 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY
During the year, the company secretary of the Company has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of professional training to

update his skills and knowledge.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining the Group's internal
control and for reviewing the effectiveness of these controls.
Internal control systems are designed to meet the particular needs

of the Group and the risk to which it is exposed.

In consideration of the size of the Group, the Board does not
consider to establish an internal audit team at present. However,
the key control procedure established by the Group is a day-to-day
supervision of the business by the executive directors, supported
by the managers responsible for the operation and the key division
support functions of finance, information system and human
resources. Key elements of internal control describe below have

been in place throughout the year under review:

- procedures for the approval of capital expenditure and

payments;

- regular financial information provided to management for

reviewing the Group's performance; and

= clearly defined management structure and line of

responsibility.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 March 2015, the fees paid or payable to
the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by

the auditors of the Group were as follows:

L ¥ ERRE

A 8B B2 ¥
EESERARAEB 2 ABER LRI
SEBREHT2HN - NHEEHEDREAR
EEBHRBEERAEY ZABRT -

REZBAEEHAE ESESRRBEANRK
RUIABELER - AT ARERLZER
EERFNHTESHARERFH 2 EE -
THESEEURME BMASERANER
EXEMAI KPR ZE - TXABAEPE
EeIERZECRBELBEFEANT

- RBEBFRFEXRARZER

- THRNEEERUHPBERUBTARE
BB R

- PRATEEREBIRBEEE-

£ B Bh B &
RBE-F-AF=A=+-BLFE BX
EEZBEAREZBURFELRB O I RE
NFRUMZBAMT :

Amount (HK$'000)

Nature of services RFEHEE W (T#ERT)
Audit services EZRTE 1,300
Non-audit services FBZRTE 449

The non-audit services fee was related to the Group’s spin-off

project.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company has not
made any changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date
version of the Company's Article of Association is also available on

the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board believes that a transparent and timely disclosure
of the Group’s information will enable shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision and to have
better understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. It is also vital for developing and maintaining
continuing investor relations with the Company’s potential and
existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at www.huaxia-healthcare.com
as a communication platform with shareholders and investors,
where information and updates on the Group’s financial
information and other information are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone number, fax number, email address and postal
address, in order to enable them to make any query that they
may have with respect to the Company. They can also send
their enquiries to the Board through these means. In addition,
shareholders can contact the share registrar of the Company, if
they have any enquires about their shareholdings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company after each shareholder meeting.

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings, and the
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the company secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
for the year.
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The directors have pleasure to present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

DATE OF INCORPORATION
The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 28 May

2001 under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 10 May 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of general
hospital services, pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and
pharmaceutical retail chain businesses in the PRC. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 42 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at 31 March
2015 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
62 to 219.

The Board does not recommend a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2015.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity respectively.

The Company did not have any distributable reserves as at 31
March 2015 (2014: approximately HK$654.663 million). Under
the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided
that immediately following the distribution or dividend the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, dividends shall be distributed out of the retained
profits or other reserves, including the share premium account, of

the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were:

Executive directors:
Dr. Jiang Tao
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 20 April 2015)
Mr. Zheng Gang
Dr. Huang Jiaging
Mr. Yung Ka Chun (appointed on 20 April 2015)

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 20 April 2015)
Mr. Chen Jin Shan (resigned on 10 October 2014)

Non-executive director:
Dr. Wong Yu Man, James
Mr. Tang Xun (appointed on 10 March 2015)

Independent non-executive directors:
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne
Prof. Hu Shanlian

Prof. Lu Chuanzhen

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Yung Kwok Leong and Dr. Huang Jiaging, the
executive directors of the Company and Ms. Wong Ka Wai,
Jeanne, the independent non-executive director of the Company,
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at

the forthcoming general meeting.

The biographical details of the directors and senior management
are set on pages 21 to 24 of this annual report. Details of the
emoluments of the directors and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in Notes 30 and 31 to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, the executive director of the Company and
chairman of the Board had signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 1 February
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing. Mr. Yung Kwok Leong resigned on 20 April 2015.

Dr. Jiang Tao has been appointed as chief executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period
of one year commencing from 20 April 2015 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Zheng Gang has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period of
one year commencing from 1 August 2007 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Chen Jin Shan has been appointed as an executive director
by way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period
of one year commencing from 25 April 2006 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other
party not less than one month’s notice in writing. Mr. Chen Jin
Shan resigned on 10 October 2014.

Dr. Huang Jiaging has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period
of one year commencing from 30 July 2009 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Yung Ka Chun has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a contract with the Company for a period of three years
commencing from 20 April 2015 which will continue thereafter
until terminated by either party giving to the other party not less

than one month’s notice in writing.
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Dr. Wong Yu Man, James, has been appointed as the
non-executive director by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 20 March
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.

Mr. Tang Xun, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director by way of a contract with the company for a
period of one year commencing from 20 March 2015 which will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the

other party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 1 November
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.

Prof. Hu Shanlian and Prof. Lu Chuanzhen have been appointed
as independent non-executive directors by way of letters
of employment with the Company for a period of one year
commencing from 30 July 2009 which will continue thereafter
until terminated by either party giving to the other party not less

than one month’s notice in writing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”,
no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EFRFETHRAEBRTLAFTIRHE

INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES HEGEBEZ 7  HERR (7 B R 18
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS @Bz i#a

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

Disclosure of Interests WS

(a) EFERFLFRAMEBZEZESZHE

(a) Directors’ interests and short positions in the securities

of the Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the required standards of dealings by directors of the
Company as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM

2RkE

RZE-RF=A=+—HB EEKELLD
AEBTHRABRAD A REEAIAEEH
ZE(EEREFRBERN (TBFR
RARER |) EXVEB) 2R 10 - HERH K&
BREETEBRIEES R ERAIFE352
HREBHAQARGFE 2 E L MATRT 2 &
BRAR FRBRAIER LHRAIES.46
ESOMRFTIMZ A AR ERTHRTEEZ
REEEBESTHEARQRAARBKI Iz
EERABWT:

Listing Rules, were as follows:

(i) Interests in shares of the Company: (i) REARGRGZER:
Approximate
percentage
Number of the total
Name of Director Nature of interest of shares Position issued shares
HERT
BRipfEBZ
EEES gang Bin&H e Biyaost
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong Corporate interest (Note 1) 120,960,500 Long 7.28%
SE=EE AEEE (M) 120,960,500 LS} 7.28%
Personal interest (Note 2) 396,031,016 Long 23.83%
BARER (HfaE2) 396,031,016 e 23.83%
Mr. Zheng Gang Personal interest 3,104,000 Long 0.19%
R 47 St 4 (PN 3,104,000 ) 0.19%
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Approximate

percentage
Number of the total
Name of Director Nature of interest of shares Position issued shares
HERT
. 3VE Y
EEna EanHH"E EinE B B givask
Dr. Jiang Tao Personal interest 2,000,000 Long 0.12%
BEEL (EPN: £ 2,000,000 Ha 0.12%
Dr. Huang Jiaging Personal interest 1,000,000 Long 0.06%
EMEEE (EPN 3= 1,000,000 wR 0.06%
Note 1: These shares are held through Easeglory Holdings Mzt ZERODDERBZBERER
Limited (“Easeglory”), a company incorporated ARI(THIBl) (REBEXZ
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI") with limited RE(XBEX#R =M
liability, the entire issued share capital of which is RIZERLBEE - ZBZ
owned by Marshal International Investments Limited 2EEBTRAHBEFERIR
(“Marshal”) which is in turn wholly and beneficially EBRAR (BFEES ™
owned by Mr. Yung Kwok Leong. EHFHSEREEREER
®EE-
Note 2: The 396,031,016 shares are represent (i) the MizE2 : 5%2%396,031,016 R B8
297,531,016 shares beneficially owned by Mr. Yung (IVHESEREEEZES
Kwok Leong, and (i) the 98,500,000 convertible 2297,531,016 B B &
preference shares. (i1)98,500,000/% o] 32 A% 18 5&
B o
EZBEEEFRAOF
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(i) Interests in the issued share capital of the Company’s (i) REARGHBLEZE ZFTKRAZ
associated corporation #E
Approximate
percentage of
shareholdings
in the
associated
corporation’s
Name of associated Capacity/ Number of issued share
Name of Director corporation Nature of interest shares  Position capital
{EHEBERZ
BERTREZ
EERf HREERE L VR F-1:3 BHBE B BRERHESL
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong Wanjia Group (Note 1) Corporate interest 24,192,100  Long 3.73%
(Note 2)
FERELE BE&E (M) DEES (M) 24,192,100 #A 3.73%
Personal interest 47,009,375  Llong 7.25%
fBARE 47,009375 ##& 7.25%
Notes: B 5T

1.

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited held the entire
issued share capital of Greatly Wealth Global Group
Limited (“Greatly Wealth”), a company incorporated
in the BVI with limited liability, which is in turn
interested in 411,917,648 shares of Wanjia Group,
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability of which its shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (representing
approximately 63.53% of the issued share capital
of Wanjia Group). Therefore, Wanjia Group is an
associated corporation of the Company for the
purposes of the SFO.

These shares are held through Easeglory, the entire
issued share capital of which is owned by Marshal
which is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Yung Kwok Leong.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

HEEEREEERATAFENE
BEZEESIMRILNBERAR
ABBRREEMERLT ([XH])
ZEMEBITRA M AKER
411,917,648 EB=E®E (—ER
HERBAMRIZERAT.
HEHROREBERFAERLT) KA
(HERBZEECRITREAZY
63.53% ) FIEEERE - HIL > FFH
SREBERHNE  BEREEALX
A EZ B EE -

ZERODERBZREER -ZRZ
EHCBITRABBEHES M8
HHSBEREEEEERER -



(iff)  Interests in share options under Post-IPO share option
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(i) BRAFERERBKRETEET Z

scheme: FEIRERE R -
Number of
Exercise share options
Name of Director Exercise period price granted Position
=% 1.4
EEER TER TEE BERERE At
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong 30 September 2009 to HK$0.50 1,700,000 Long
29 March 2019
SEREE “ERAFAAR=THE 0.50% 7T 1,700,000 ##&
—E-AF=ZA=thH
Dr. Jiang Tao 30 September 2009 to HK$0.50 800,000 Long
29 March 2019
EeEL “EEAFAR=ZTHE 0.50% 7T 800,000 #&

—E-AFE=AZ+NH

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the

Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any

interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the

register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352

of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

BREXFIREEN RZE-—AF=ZA=1+—
B EBERADATETHRAEHRERARAF
FEAMEBEE (EERESRBERLE
XVER) 2R HERDAEERTESR
RBERREFSZRBEMRAFEI2REABE D
AFEZECM2EMNRERLE  RIREA
EMEMRAES46E5.67HRASTHEERLD
AIRBRPT 2 AERRAE -
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(b)

Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions (b) EEBRRREMRERBKHZIEER %
in shares and underlying shares -
As at 31 March 2015, other than the interests of a director RZE-RF=A=+-—HB KRLEX[E
or chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the ERFETHRAEREARREBEE
heading “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in shares, BEzRfm HEROREESZSZER] —
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its A ERAREETRFETHAEZ
associated corporations” above, the interests and short mM UTATRAQR KRG REER
positions of persons in the shares and underlying shares DHREESCERAREESRIPERGIE
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be 3BHMEHAARFE2ECMzERR
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as K
follows:
Long positions in shares of the Company: RELFRIBZHE:
Approximate
percentage
Number of of the total
Name of shareholder shares Position Capacity issued shares
HEBT
Bini#z
BRRBE Kz H L] 4V LE =R 4
Marshal International Investments 120,960,500 Long Corporate interest 7.28%
Limited (Note 1)
BFEBRREARQT (ME1) 120,960,500 i) NEER 7.28%
Easeglory Holdings Limited (Note 1) 120,960,500 Long Beneficial owner 7.28%
ZRERABRLE (M) 120,960,500 wR BERERA 7.28%
Mrs. Yung Muk Ying (Note 1) 518,691,516 Long Interest of spouse 31.22%
SARELZ L (M) 518,691,516 3} BB RS 31.22%
MAREEXFMR QA (Note 2) 343,217,539 Long Corporate interest 20.66%
MAFEEXERAA (MEE2) 343,217,539 i) DEER 20.66%
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Approximate

percentage
Number of of the total
Name of shareholder shares Position Capacity issued shares
HERT
Bin@Ez
BREB Bin&E B 5% #;ivaask
HHLEBABR AR (Note 2) 343,217,539 Long Corporate interest 20.66%
FHLEEEERAT (HEF2) 343,217,539 e DA 20.66%
New Hope International 343,217,539 Long Beneficial owner 20.66%
(Hong Kong) Limited (Note 2)
FELEER (BB)ERATR 343,217,539 ) BEREBA 20.66%
(FFEE2)
Mr. Liu Yonghao (Note 2) 343,217,539 Long Corporate interest 20.66%
2k &k (HEE2) 343,217,539 e AE R 20.66%
Ms. Liu Chang (Note 2) 343,217,539 Long Corporate interest 20.66%
283 7+ (HsE2) 343,217,539 #e NEER 20.66%
Ms. Li Wei (Note 2) 343,217,539 Long Interest of spouse 20.66%
|+ (MsE2) 343,217,539 e Fe B = 20.66%
EF1: ZRZERTRAZIHEFE

Note 1: The issued share capital of Easeglory is 100%
beneficially owned by Marshal which is in turn

beneficially owned by Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, an
executive Director and the Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. By
virtue of her being the spouse of Mr. Yung Kwok
Leong, Mrs. Yung Muk Ying is deemed to be
interested in 120,960,500 shares held by Easeglory,
396,031,000 shares and 1,700,000 share options
beneficially held by Mr. Yung Kwok Leong in

personal capacity.

mEE MBHFDAKRARAHRT
EZ EESIERTHREARS
BRtEEREE - ARSEAR
ZLtAFERAE BB RE
WRIER 5 B PAT$5120,960,500
BREAEHSEREEUBAS
P EFHIEHE 396,031,016 %
% & 1,700,000 R EFHEHE
RS o

HEEEREEERAAF
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Note 2: New Hope International (Hong Kong) Limited is
interested in 343,217,539 shares of the Company.
The issued share capital of New Hope International
(Hong Kong) Limited is 75% beneficially owned by
EAFEEEAR AT which is in turn 51% held by
HALEBAERDT and 49% is held by FEEI1EXE
BEBRAF.

Both I#LEBMABMIRDF and AREEEEXE
PFR/A 7\l are beneficially held by Mr. Liu Yonghao,
Ms. Liu Chang and Ms. Li Wei in shareholding
proportionate among them as 62.34%, 36.35% and
1.31% respectively. Therefore, Mr. Liu Yonghao, Ms.
Liu Chang and Ms. Li Wei are interested in shares of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, the Directors were
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive's interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above, at no time since incorporation of the Company were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or of any other body corporate
granted to any directors or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors, their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire

such rights in any other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

As at 31 March 2015, there were 4,451,992 outstanding share
options, of which, were granted pursuant to the Post-IPO share
option schemes adopted on 20 April 2002 and 10 August 2011. A
breakdown setting out the number of outstanding share options,
their respective exercise price and respective exercise period under

the Post-IPO scheme was as follows:
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Number of

share options

Categories of grantees Exercise period Exercise price outstanding
ARITHEZ

KA fTER fTER MEENE

Directors

E=

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong
SERLE

Dr. Jiang Tao
BEEtL

Employees and consultants of
the Group
TREERAREM

Total &35t

30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019
“ERAEFEARA=THE
—E-NAF=ZA=TNA

30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019
ZEENFEAA=ZTHE
—E-RF=ZA=+HhA

13 July 2006 to 12 July 2016

21 March 2007 to 20 March 2017

“ETLF=A=1+-RE
—E2—+tHF=ZA=+H

30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019

—EFNAFNA=TAHE
—E-NE=ZA=+HhA

HK$0.50 1,700,000
0.50% 7T 1,700,000
HK$0.50 800,000
0.50/& 7T 800,000
HK$3.61 459,739
3.61T 459,739
HK$2.94 1,042,253
2.94% T 1,042,253
HK$0.50 450,000
0.50/& 7t 450,000

4,451,992
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there were no purchase,
sale or redemption of the Company's listed securities by the

Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set out on
page 220. This summary does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Certain connected transactions which are significant are also
disclosed as related party transactions (see Note 41 to the

consolidated financial statements).

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, the following
transactions are “Connected Transactions” and “Continuing
Connected Transactions” as defined in the GEM Listing Rules and

are required to be disclosed in the annual report of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Issue share capital of the company as enlarged by
the Conversion Shares

References are made to (i) the 2014 Announcement dated
4 December 2014 in relation to the possible alteration
of the CPS-Il Terms and possible Conversion of CPS-II
involving an application for a Whitewash Waiver; (ii) the
2015 Announcement dated 15 January 2015 in relation to,
among other things, the connected transaction in relation
to the Conversion of CPS-Il involving an application for a
Whitewash Waiver; (iii) the circular of the Company dated 13
February 2015 (the “Circular”) regarding that the CPS-Il has
been fully converted into Conversion Shares on 10 March
2015. The CPS-Il Holders hold an aggregate of 761,709,055
Shares after the Conversion, representing approximately
45.85% in the issued share capital of the Company as
enlarged by the Conversion Shares. The entire issued share
capital of Easeglory Holdings Limited is owned by Marshal
International Investments Limited which is in turn wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Yung. Mr. Yung is deemed to
have interest in those 120,960,500 Shares held by Easeglory
Holdings Limited.

Mr. Yung, a director and one of the substantial shareholder
of the Company, and is thus a connected person on the part

of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

All the conditions precedent of the CPS-II Subscription being
fulfilled, the CPS-II Subscription was completed on 10 March
2015. In accordance with the terms and conditions of the
CPS-1l Subscription Agreement, a total of 160,984,141
Second Batch CPSs were allotted and issued to Mr. Yung.
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B. CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

()

Rental agreement with Fujian Huihao
Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited (“FHP
Chain”)

Tenancy Agreement 1

Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical Co.
Ltd (“Fuzhou Huihao”), an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into two tenancy
agreements on 28 December 2009 for a term of five
years with an aggregate rental fee of RMB146,634 per
quarter from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2014
with FHP Chain for Property 1 and the Property 2
which are for used as office and warehouse of Fuzhou
Huihao. As disclosed in the announcement of Hua Xia
dated 10 September 2012, new tenancy agreement
is entered into and terminated all the above previous
tenancy agreements between Fuzhou Huihao and FHP
Chain.

On 10 September 2012, Fujian Hihao and FHP
Chain entered a new tenancy agreement (“Tenancy
Agreement 1) for the rental of (i) Level 1 and Level
4 of the office building located at No. 8 Huihao Road,
Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC
(the “Property 1”) with a gross floor area (“GFA")
approximately 1,336 square meter (“sg.m.”); and
(ii) Levels 1 to 3 of the warehouse building located
at No. 8 Huihao Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian,
Fujian, the PRC (the “Property 2") with a GFA of
approximately 9,957 sg.m.. The term of the lease
is from 10 September 2012 to 31 March 2015 with
a rental of RMB10,688 per month for the Property
1 and RMB49,785 per month for the Property 2
and is renewable upon the signing of a new rental

agreement.
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Tenancy Agreement 2

Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain Company
Limited (“Huihao Sihai”) a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tenancy agreement on 28 December
2009 for a terms of five years with an aggregate rental
fee of RMB64,188 per quarter from 1 January 2010
to 31 December 2014 with FHP Chain for Property
3 and Property 4 form part, which is used as office
and warehouse of Huihao Sihai. As disclosed in the
announcement of Hua Xia dated 10 September 2012,
new tenancy agreement is entered into and terminated
all the above previous tenancy agreements between
Huihao Sihai and FHP Chain.

On 10 September 2012, Huihao Sihai and FHP
Chain entered a new tenancy agreement (“Tenancy
Agreement 2"”) for the rental of (i) Level 3 of the
office building located at No.8 Huihao Road, Shangjie
Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC (the
“Property 3"”) with a GFA of approximately 600 sq.m.;
and (ii) Level 4 of the warehouse building located
on No.8 Huihao Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian,
Fujian Province, the PRC (the “Property 4") with a
GFA of approximately 3,319 sgq.m.. The term of the
lease is from 10 September 2012 to 31 March 2015
with a rental of RMB4,800 per month for the Property
3 and RMB16,595 per month for the Property 4 and
is renewable upon the signing of the new rental

agreement.

FHP Chain Company was held as to 50% of its issued
share capital by Mr. Weng lJiale, who is a brother of
Mr. Weng lJiaxing (“Mr. Weng”), an former executive
Director of the Group and a nephew of Mr. Yung, a
substantial shareholder of Hua Xia. Therefore, FHP
Chain is an associate of Mr. Weng and Mr. Yung, and
is therefore a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules
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(i)

The annual cap for the Group’s total transaction
amount with FHP Chain contemplated under the
Tenancy Agreement 1 is RMB725,676 (equivalent to
approximately HK$913,989) and Tenancy Agreement
2 is RMB256,740 (equivalent to approximately
HK$323,364) for the year ending 31 March 2014.
During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group
paid rental charge of RMB725,676 (equivalent to
approximately HK$913,989) in respect of the Tenancy
Agreement 1 and RMB256,740 (equivalent to
approximately HK$323,364) in respect of the Tenancy

Agreement 2.

Purchase agreement with a connected person
Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited (“Huihao Hong Kong"),
an indirectly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a purchase agreement on 26 April 2012
for a term of three years ending 31 March 2015
with Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical Company Limited
("FHP Company”). Upon reviewing the latest trading
pattern and the actual purchase amount of the
pharmaceutical products, Huihao Hong Kong and FHP
Company entered into a new purchase agreement
(the “Purchase Agreement”) on 19 September
2013 which superseded the remaining term of the
previous purchase agreement. Pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement, Huihao Hong Kong Group have agreed to
purchase certain pharmaceutical products from FHP
Company for a term of two years ending 31 March
2015.

FHP Company was held as to 55% of its issued share
capital by Mr. Weng lJiale, who is a nephew of Mr.
Yung, a substantial shareholder and an executive
director of the Company. Therefore, FHP company is an
associate of Mr. Weng and Mr. Yung, and is therefore
a connected person of the Company under Rule
14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules.
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(iii)

The annual cap for the Group’s total transaction
amount with FHP Company contemplated under the
agreement is HK$1.93 million for the year ending
31 March 2015. During the year ended 31 March
2015, the Group total actual purchase transaction
amount approximately HK$1.858 million (equivalent to

approximately RMB1.475 million).

Sales agreements with connected persons

Huihao Hong Kong entered into a sales agreement
on 26 April 2012 for a term of three years ending
31 March 2015 with Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“FHP Company”). Upon reviewing
the latest trading pattern and the actual purchase
amount of the pharmaceutical products, Huihao Hong
Kong and FHP Company entered into a new sales
agreement (the “FHP Sales Agreement”) on 19
September 2013 which superseded the remaining term
of the previous sales agreement. Pursuant to the FHP
Sales Agreement, Huihao Hong Kong Group has agreed
to sell and deliver certain pharmaceutical products to
FHP Company for a term of two years ending 31 March
2015.

The annual cap for the Group’s total transaction
amount with FHP Company contemplated under the
agreement is HK$10 million for the year ending 31
March 2015. During the year ended 31 March 2015,
the Group total actual sales transaction amount
approximately HK$1,317 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,046 million).
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The independent non-executive directors of the
Company, Pro. Hu Shanlian, Pro. Lu Chuanzhen and
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne have, for the purpose
of Rule 20.37 of the GEM Listing Rules, reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that such continuing connected
transactions, for the reporting period, have been

entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of

the Group;

(i)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available
to or from (as appropriate) independent third

parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions and on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The independent non-executive directors of the
Company have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and have confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions were entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or, if there are not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms available to
or from (as appropriate) independent third parties;
and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the

Company as a whole.
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The Company's auditors were engaged to report on
the Group's continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Company’s auditors have issued
their unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group in
accordance with Rule 20.38 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on merit,

qualifications and competence of employees.

The remuneration policies of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the Group's operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the code provisions set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 15 to the Listing Rules. Since its listing on the Stock
Exchange, the Company has complied with the code provisions
of the CG Code for the year ended 31 March 2015, save for the
exceptions explained in the Corporate Governance Report in this

report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, the percentage of the Shares which are in hands of the

public exceeds 25% of the total number of issued shares.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD
Details of significant event occurring after the reporting period are

set out in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statement.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2015 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
who will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and

being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

Jiang Tao
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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B st @ F AR A
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to
219, which comprise the consolidated and Company statements
of financial position as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
W 3L1% BED IR B

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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Independent Auditors’ Report

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2015 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Sze Wai, Basilia
Practising Certificate Number: P05806

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

rEMBRAE

Asat31 March 2015 R=ZZE—HF=F=+—H

2015 2014
—HEfF —T-—@NOF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M =E THET FE T
ASSETS g5E
Non-current assets ERBDEE
Property, plant and equipment M- -BERRE 72,030 36,374
Prepaid lease payments FE{NHEEMRE 30,255 31,365
Investment properties BREWHE 9 8,093 8,306
Goodwill [EES 10 31,939 788,420
142,317 864,465
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 14 133,516 133,939
Trade and other receivables and ESRHEMERIER
deposits re 15 497,111 528,144
Financial assets at fair value through BAFLBEERERYRZ
profit or loss K EE 16 - 1,259
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmMIA 17 284 384
Pledged bank deposits EIRFEITER 18 12,970 17,431
Cash and cash equivalents HENREEEEB 18 88,793 92,418
732,674 773,575
Total assets HEHAE 874,991 1,638,040
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves BER &R
Share capital & < 19 17,601 17,562
Reserves ] 204,209 706,691
Equity attributable to owners EOFHEAEGES
of the Company 221,810 724,253
Non-controlling interests FFIERER 159,688 426,170
Total equity Rk 381,498 1,150,423
62 HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
EEMBARARE

Asat31 March 2015 R=ZE—HF=HA=+—H

2015 2014
—E—1hf —E—OF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M =E FEx FET
LIABILITIES &\
Current liabilities mEBAS
Trade and other payables B RHEMENTIE 21 287,349 310,259
Bank borrowings RITEE 22 121,454 88,088
Amounts due to non-controlling AT IEZERRR 2 E
shareholders 23 1,147 1,213
Tax payables FE A i 18 5,042 11,258
414,992 410,818
Non-current liabilities EREBIAR
Convertible note iR RE 24 5,432 5,012
Promissory note O E 25 72,712 71,361
Deferred taxation ERER I8 26 357 426
78,501 76,799
Total liabilities AfRHAEE 493,493 487,617
Total equity and liabilities BaRARBREEH 874,991 1,638,040
Net current assets mENEERE 317,682 362,757
Total assets less current liabilities BEMRERTHAR 459,999 1,227,222

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2015

and signed on its behalf by:

Jiang Tao
Director

Yung Ka Chun
Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
BB AR &

Asat31 March 2015 R=ZZE—HF=F=+—H

2015 2014
—E—1F —E—mF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M =E THET FHBT
ASSETS HE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG F 12 279,703 975,503
Current assets mEEE
Other receivables and deposits HihEWRERIZRSE 15 397 355
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmI A 17 284 384
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE R B B A B FRIE 12 61,692 63,123
Cash and cash equivalents BHeERBEELEEEE 3,474 16,490
65,847 80,352
Total assets HEHE 345,550 1,055,855
EQUITY g
Capital and reserves BEER &R
Share capital % A% 19 17,601 17,562
Reserves ] 20 (38,870) 674,297
Equity attributable to owners of EAFIHBAEGES
the Company (21,269) 691,859
LIABILITIES =K
Current liabilities g h-Ki
Accruals and other payables Bt ERREMENRIE 21 4,090 2,940
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE 1S B B A T TR 1B 12 284,228 284,257
288,318 287,197

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015



Statement of Financial Position

B AN R

Asat 31 March 2015 R =ZE—RFE=8A=+—H
2015 2014
“B—-HEf C—EZ—@NOF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M =E THET FHBT

Non-current liabilities ERDAE
Convertible note AR EE 24 5,432 5,012
Promissory note 7 B 25 72,712 71,361
Deferred taxation I AE 4 18 26 357 426
78,501 76,799
Total liabilities =K% 366,819 363,996
Total equity and liabilities BErRaEHA 345,550 1,055,855
Net current liabilities mENREBEH (222,471) (206,845)
Total assets less current liabilities SEHERTHAR 57,232 768,658

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2015 and signed on its
behalf by:

Jiang Tao Yung Ka Chun
Director Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEREREMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B ZE - —HAF=A=+—HIEFE

2015 2014
—E—-AfF —E-IF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M & T#ET FET
Turnover & %] 28 1,780,309 2,243,159
Cost of sales HERE (1,502,581) (1,974,156)
Gross profit 3] 277,728 269,003
Other revenue H ity Uy 2 28 9,502 10,258
Other gain, net Hipuh s FE58 28 476 1,360
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (141,745) (94,873)
Administrative expenses THRAX (120,667) (92,316)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREEE (785,169) =
Loss on early redemption of REBRAREE ZEE
promissory note - (16,269)
(Loss)/profit from operations EEEXE (BR) &# 29 (759,875) 77,163
Finance costs BB E R 32 (11,520) (10,493)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB (B538) &% (771,395) 66,670
Taxation I8 33 (10,789) (29,216)
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE(FER) B (782,184) 37,454
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FFEEHRM2ME (E5iE)
for the year KA
ltems that may be reclassified HETER2EEERZ
subsequently to profit or loss: BHH:
Exchange differences on translating BEBICEER 2
foreign operations BN ER 2,131 7,284
Total comprehensive (loss)/income AFEE2HE (HIR),
for the year KA#E (780,053) 44,738

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
eaEaEkEMEEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B Z=E—HAF=ZA=+—HLEFE

2015 2014
—E—-AfF —E-IF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M & T#ET FET
(Loss)/profit for the year EEEE (5B &F:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company FOFEEA (505,581) 21,913
Non-controlling interests R ER (276,603) 15,541
(782,184) 37,454
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ME{EXEER2@T (HE)
for the year attributable to: WA
Owners of the Company ELAFHAA (504,393) 28,398
Non-controlling interests FEREERER (275,660) 16,340
(780,053) 44,738
(Loss)/earnings per share attributable ZE2F#HE A E{L S
to owners of the Company (B]R) B7
— Basic (HK cents per share) —EXR (ZREN) 35 (28.73) 1.52
—Diluted (HK cents per share) — 58 (ZRBW) 35 (28.73) 1.52

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMi i BZE R M BERRkz— D

consolidated financial statements.

EEBRBEEEERAT 67
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Consolidated Statement of Changes

AEEEEEX

m

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B ZE - —HAF=A=+—HIEFE

in Equity

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FLTRA ARG
Share-based  Convertible (Accumulated Non-
Share Share Capital Other Special  Translation payment note Statutory loss)/retained Sub  controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
HRhE
114 HR (RHER)/
k% RiER 231 ] i ] R ERER REd ] RERRE HERRE REEN Mt FEERES L £1] ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn T T T T T T T Thn Thn T T T
(Note (c) (Note (g)) (Note (a)) (Note (d)) (Note (e)) (Note (f) (Note (b))
(W) (W) (W&a) (W) (Kie) (&) (GEQ)
At1 April 2013 R-Z-Z§mA-A 11,824 190,250 579,395 = (6,735) 26,304 16,146 2,537 25454 99,890 945,065 40974 986,039
Other comprehensive income REREM2ARA
for the year, net of tax fBsE:
Buchange diference on tanslating ~~ BERHERZERER
foreign operations - - - - - 6,485 - - - - 6,485 799 7,284
Proft or the year KEERA - - - - - - - - - 19 21913 15,541 37,454
Total comprehensive income REERANALE
for the year - - - - - 6,485 - - - 21913 28398 16,340 44738
Issue of non-edeemable convertible BT TRETRRELR
preference shares 5,042 114,958 - - - - - - - - 120,000 - 120,000
Evercie of share options TEERE 69 11,761 - - - - (@) - - - 12,030 - 12,030
Lapse of share options BREAN - - - - - - (74) - - 74 - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTITEE - - - - - B - - 11,625 (11,629) = = =
Dividend paid to non-controling KN FAEREEZRE
interests - - - - - - - - - - - 4731) (4131)
Dividend by way of a distribution HENARARRE
in specie - - (283,785) (89,802) - - - - - - (373,587) 373,587 -
Professional expenses incurred in BEGLE NP1
connection with issuance of ELZBEER
new shares of a subsidiary - - - (7.693) - - - - - - (7,693) - (7,693)
At31 March 2014 and 1 Aprl 2014 R=F-BE=A=1-AK
“Z-MEMA-A 17,562 316,969 295,610 (97,455) (6,735) 32,789 15,645 2537 37,079 110,252 724253 426,170 1150423
Other comprehensive income REREM2ARA
for the year, net of tax fRsE:
Buchange diference on tanslating ~ BERHERZERER
foreign operations - - - - - 1,188 - - - - 1,188 943 2131
Loss for the year KEERE - - - - - - - - - (505,581) (505,581) (276,603) (782,184)
Total comprehensive income REERANALE
for the year - - - - - 1,188 = > > (505,581) (504,393) (275,660) (780,053)
Exercise of share options fikERE 3 1,969 - - - - (58) - - - 1,950 - 1,950
Lapse of share options BREXN - - - - - - (15,399) - - 15,399 - = -
Non-controling interests arsing on the ~ WEBHBAREEZ
acquisiion of subsidiaries (Note 13) SR (K3H13) - - - - - - - - - - - 9,178 9178
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTITEE - - - - - B - - 3569 (3,569) = = =
At 31 March 2015 RZB-EEZA=1-R 17,601 318,938 295,610 (97,455) (6,735 39717 188 2,531 40,648 (383,499) 21810 159,688 381,498

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015



Notes:

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ ==

The increase in special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$2,935,000 of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the share capital of a subsidiary acquired

pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2001.

The decrease in special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$41,580,000 of the Group represents the difference between the
fair value and the contracted value of consideration shares paid for
acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2007.

The increase in special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$31,910,000 of the Group represents the difference between the
fair value and the contracted value of consideration shares paid for
acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2008.

As stipulated by the relevant People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
laws and regulations, the subsidiaries of the Company established
in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its net profit after taxation for the
statutory surplus reserve fund (except where the reserve balance
has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ paid-up capital). The reserve
fund can only be used, upon approval by the board of directors and
by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase
capital.

The increase in capital reserve amounting to approximately
HK$579,395,000 of the Group as the result of capital reduction
taken by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2012.

The decrease in capital reserve amounting to approximately
HK$283,785,000 during the year ended 31 March 2014 represented
special interim dividend paid in specie in connection with the
separate listing of shares of Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (“Wanjia
Group”), a subsidiary of the Company, on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
11 October 2013 (Note 36).

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of operations
outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policies set out in Note 4.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEREBER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B ZE - —HAF=A=+—HIEFE

(e)

The share-base payment reserve represents the fair value of services
estimated to be received in exchange the grant of the relevant
options over the relevant vesting periods, the total of which is
based on the fair value of the options at grant date. The amount is
recognised as staff costs and related expenses with a corresponding

increase in the share-based payment reserve.

The share-base payment reserve which is expired would be released
directly to retained profits.

The convertible note reserve represents the equity components of
the convertible note issued. Convertible note issued are split into
their liability and equity components at initial recognition at the fair
values of the convertible note, which is determined by independent
qualified professional valuers.

The decrease in other reserve of approximately HK$89,802,000
during the year ended 31 March 2014 represented the difference
between the amount of special interim dividend paid in specie and
the non-controlling interests’ share of net assets of Wanjia Group
pursuant to the separate listing of shares of Wanjia Group.

The decrease in other reserve of approximately HK$7,653,000
during the year ended 31 March 2014 represented the capitalised
listing expenses arised from the separate listing of shares of Wanjia
Group.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEEHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B ZE—E—HAF=HA=+—HILLFE

2015 2014
—E—-1F —ZE-mF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
THETT FH&T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES #EXBZHRERE
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREiA (B5E) EF (771,395) 66,670
Adjustments for: FEIFR
Interest income HE WA (4,139) (3,315)
Interest expenses FMEFEX 11,520 10,493
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FENHEERIEE 1,257 1,257
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BRERZEBINE 14,678 10,551
Change in fair value of investment properties REMENFEEY 252 -
Change in fair value of FTESMI AN FEEE
derivative financial instruments 100 (315)
Loss on early redemption of promissory note REERALEEZER - 16,269
Gain on disposal of property, HENE BRERZEZ
plant and equipment Uy &= (4) (299)
Realised gain on financial assets at fair value RATFEEBERIEZ
through profit or loss MR EEZ2E#RINE - (117)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MEZRHEMEBURIERER 2
trade and other receivables VERIEN SR 5,317 1,863
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in B 5 & H M ERRIERR
respect of trade and other receivables REEEER (818) (746)
Impairment loss on goodwill EmEREEE 785,169 =
Operating cash inflows before movements in EEESEHRAKERESRA
working capital 41,937 102,311
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD () 13,928 (7,652)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other BEFNEMEWRRER
receivables and deposits BERA () 71,503 (14,308)
Decrease in trade and other payables ES R HEMEMNERD (111,913) (27,389)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due to non- FEAS SRR 2 RIERD
controlling shareholders ($2hn) (66) 151
Decrease/(increase) in financial asset at BEAFEERERYRZ
fair value through profit or loss B EE®L, () 1,259 (1,143)
Net cash generated from operations XBMBRESFER 16,648 51,970
Withholding tax paid e FENH - (2,383)
PRC enterprise income tax paid B BESERER (17,074) (27,198)
Net cash (used in)/generated from e (FFR) 3RS FE
operating activities (426) 22,389
EEBREEEBRAT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nﬂ' = fﬁ% JIL E %‘Eﬂ

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ ==&

—HAF=RA=t—-HLEFE

2015 2014
—hf —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET F&T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREETHZHA&RE
Interest received B2 UFH 2 4,139 3,315
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE BERSE (20,817) (10,153)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEVE BERSZBEZ
plant and equipment FiECE e 396 609
Net cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries U & B A B1IR &7 i 7F 58 (4,002) -
Net cash used in investing activities REGZHARESFE (20,284) (6,229)
Interest paid 2 FE (9,749) (7,651)
Decrease/(Increase) in pledged bank deposits EIRIFRITEIORSD () 4,461 (13,772)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ENFERERRE - (4,731)
Redemption of promissory notes RN ZE - (20,000)
Proceeds from exercise of share options TEBREMBRIE - 12,030
Professional expenses incurred in connection BT — BB QR A
with the issuance of new shares of EEzExEA
a subsidiary - (7,653)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIE R BKIE 153,067 88,193
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBITHER (132,684) (51,656)
Net cash generated/(used in) from financing METBRE (FIA)RLFE
activities 15,095 (5,240)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRRSSEEEH (HY),
cash equivalents e (5,615) 10,920
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FHMNZHRERAELEFEHEE
of the year 92,418 79,980
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes JMEEFE R g~ S & 1,990 1,518
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of FRZBASRBEE£EEERH
the year 88,793 92,418
Analysis of the balances of cash and HeRNeFERARBGESH
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents BHEeRBEEEEEB 88,793 92,418
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMT 2 MisE AR EREMBERRZ2—HH -

consolidated financial statements.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
May 2001 as an exempted company with limited liability. The
shares of the Company are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange. The registered office
of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681 GT George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The head office and principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong is located at 19/F., New Wing,
101 King's Road, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the functional currency of
the Company, and the functional currency of most of its
subsidiaries is Renminbi (“RMB"”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in thousands of units of HK$
(HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
general hospital services and pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain business in the
PRC. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in

Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. REORGANISATION

In the preparation for the listing of shares of Wanjia Group

on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 11 October

2013, the Group underwent a corporate reorganisation (the

“Reorganisation”) and as a result of which Wanjia Group

became the holding company of certain subsidiaries of

the Company. The Reorganisation included the following

principal steps:

(a)

incorporation of Luxuriant Expand Global Investments
Limited (“Luxuriant Expand”) on 10 April 2012 and
allotment and issue of 100 ordinary shares of Luxuriant

Expand to the Company at par on 4 July 2012;

incorporation of the Wanjia Group on 9 July 2012 in
the Cayman Islands and transfer of the Incorporation
Share from Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
to Greatly Wealth Global Group Limited (“Greatly

Wealth”) at nil consideration;

acquisition of 1 ordinary share, representing the
entire issued share capital in Timely Hero Enterprises
Limited (“Timely Hero"), by Luxuriant Expand from the
Company on 3 September 2013 in consideration of
the allotment and issue of 200 shares of US$1 each in
Luxuriant Expand, all credited as fully paid up, to the

Company;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. REORGANISATION - continued

(d) capitalisation of the outstanding amount of
approximately HK$866,811,000 due from Timely Hero
to the Company on 3 September 2013 in consideration
of (i) the allotment and issue of 1 share of US$1 in
the share capital of Timely Hero to Luxuriant Expand,
credited as fully paid up, at the direction of the
Company; and (ii) the allotment and issue of a total
of 100 shares of US$1 each in the share capital of
Luxuriant Expand, all credited as fully paid up, to the
Company in consideration of its receipt of 1 share in

Timely Hero at the direction of the Company; and

(e) acquisition of 300 shares in Luxuriant Expand,
representing its entire issued share capital by the
Wanjia Group from the Company on 3 September
2013 in consideration of (i) the allotment and issue of
648,405,299 shares, all credited as fully paid up, to
Greatly Wealth at the direction of the Company and
the crediting as fully paid at par of the Incorporation
Share registered in the name of Greatly Wealth; and (ii)
the allotment and issue of 100 shares of US$1 each in
the share capital of Greatly Wealth, all credited as fully
paid up, to the Company in consideration of its receipt
of 648,405,299 shares from the Wanjia Group at the

direction of the Company.

Upon the completion of the Reorganisation, Wanjia Group
became the holding company of Luxuriant Expand, Timely
Hero, Nurture Fit Limited (“Nurture Fit”), Hui Hao (HK)
Group Limited (“Hui Hao (HK)”), Fujian Huihao Sihai
Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited (“Huihao Sihai”),
Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical Co.
Ltd (“Fuzhou Hiuhao”), Putian Huihao Medicine Co. Ltd
(“Putian Huihao”), Fujian Huiming Medicine Co. Ltd (“Fujian
Huiming”) and Huihao Medicine (Quanzhou) Co. Ltd.
("Quanzhou Huihao"”). The Reorganisation became effective
on 3 September 2013.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first

time, the following new standards, amendments and
interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™), which
are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on 1
April 2014.

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment Entities

and HKAS 27
(Amendments)
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
(Amendments) — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
(Amendments) for Non-Financial Assets
HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
(Amendments) Continuation of Hedge
Accounting
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment entity
and require a reporting entity that meets the definition of
an investment entity not to consolidate its subsidiaries but
instead to measure its subsidiaries at fair value through

profit or loss in its financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment Entities — continued

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is

required to:

. obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional

investment management services;

o commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for returns from capital

appreciation, investment income, or both; and

o measure and evaluate performance of substantially all

of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for

investment entities.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of

set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to
disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit
("CGU") to which goodwill or other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives had been allocated when there has
been no impairment or reversal of impairment of the related
CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce additional
disclosure requirements regarding the fair value hierarchy,
key assumptions and valuation techniques used when the
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU was determined
based on its fair value less costs of disposal.

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from the
requirement to discontinue hedge accounting when a
derivative hedging instrument is novated under certain
circumstances. The amendments also clarify that any change
to the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument arising
from the novation should be included in the assessment of
hedge effectiveness.

HK (IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

HK (IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies addresses the issue of when to
recognise a liability to pay a levy. The interpretation defines
a levy, and specifies that the obligating event that gives rise
to the liability is the activity that triggers the payment of the
levy, as identified by legislation. The interpretation provides
guidance on how different levy arrangements should be
accounted for, in particular, it clarifies that neither economic
compulsion nor the going concern basis of financial
statements preparation implies that an entity has a present
obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered by operating in
a future period.

The application of the above new and revised HKFRSs had no
material effect on how the results and financial position for
the current or prior accounting periods have been prepared
and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has
been required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have

been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 (2011)
(Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 11

(Amendments)
HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15
HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
(Amendments)

HKAS 19 (2011)
(Amendments)

HKAS 27
(Amendments)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle*

Mandatory Effective Date
of HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosure®

Financial Instruments®

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Accounting for Acquisition of
Interests in Joint Operation*

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®
Disclosure Initiative*

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation*

Agriculture: Bearer Plants*

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contribution’

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements*
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs"”) — continued

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
with limited exceptions

3 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning
on or 1 January 2016

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which

are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
of ‘vesting condition’ and ‘market condition’; and (ii)
add definitions for ‘performance condition’ and ‘service
condition” which were previously included within the
definition of ‘vesting condition’. The amendments to HKFRS
2 are effective for share-based payment transactions for

which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability should
be measured at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective
of whether the contingent consideration is a financial
instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a
non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other
than measurement period adjustments) should be recognised
in profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective
for business combinations for which the acquisition date is

on or after 1 July 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
- continued

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose
the judgements made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments, including a
description of the operating segments aggregated and the
economic indicators assessed in determining whether the
operating segments have ‘similar economic characteristics’;
and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should only
be provided if the segment assets are regularly provided to

the chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS
13 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove the
ability to measure short term receivables and payables with
no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial. As
the amendments do not contain any effective date, they are

considered to be immediately effective.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property, plant
and equipment or an intangible asset is revalued. The
amended standards clarify that the gross carrying amount
is adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation of
the carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated
depreciation/amortisation is the difference between the
gross carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking

into account accumulated impairment losses.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
- continued

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services to a
reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as related
party transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid
or payable to the management entity for the provision of key
management personnel services. However, disclosure of the

components of such compensation is not required.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material effect on the Group's

consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which

are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types
of joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint

arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted
for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those
contracts do not meet the definitions of financial assets or
financial liabilities within HKAS 32.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
- continued

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and
HKFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive and application of both
standards may be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring
investment property must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment
property in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in
HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal
group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners
(or vice versa), or when held-for-distribution accounting is
discontinued. The amendments apply prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to
clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement
in a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures
required in relation to transferred assets and clarify that
the offsetting disclosures (introduced in the amendments
to HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities issued in December 2011 and effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013) are not
explicitly required for all interim periods. However, the
disclosures may need to be included in condensed interim
financial statements to comply with HKAS 34 Interim
Financial Reporting.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
- continued

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality
corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate for post-
employment benefits should be issued in the same currency
as the benefits to be paid. These amendments would
result in the depth of the market for high quality corporate
bonds being assessed at currency level. The amendments
apply from the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented in the financial statements in which the
amendments are first applied. Any initial adjustment arising
should be recognised in retained earnings at the beginning

of that period.

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements
relating to information required by HKAS 34 that is
presented elsewhere within the interim financial report but
outside the interim financial statements. The amendments
require that such information be incorporated by way of a
cross reference from the interim financial statements to the
other part of the interim financial report that is available to
users on the same terms and at the same time as the interim

financial statements.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
will have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated

financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS
9 was amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for

derecognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or

loss.

o With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities” credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as fair value through

profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in
the future may have an impact on the amounts reported
in respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities. Regarding the Group's financial assets, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect

until a detailed review has been completed.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
28 (2011) Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

The narrow-scope amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 introduce clarifications to the requirements when
accounting for investment entities. The amendments also
provide relief in particular circumstances, which will reduce

the costs of applying the Standards.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material impact on the Group’'s

consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture
Amendments to HKFRS 10:

- An exception from the general requirement of full gain
or loss recognition has been introduced into HKFRS
10 for the loss control of a subsidiary that does not
contain a business in a transaction with an associate or
a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity

method.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

BRI RIEETEEMER
HEAU([FRMBEWEERN])
— ¥
FRMBREEURIRLHTA -
EERE  RRIRDE B R R
S5O T AL ¥ B AN S B 0 0 75 3 A O ot
BEENRESHEELYE HAEEY
BAEMS  EERFBRAARERY
S EBEHDTIAER

FEEMBHEEERB 100 FEME
BEEUAE12RREESERNS
285k (—2B——F) (BAIF)REX
B EeABHIIERZER
BEBYBMEERE 105 BB BRE
ERE125E R BB ST ER 285K E
HE BT RBFHREBRETETERE
ZREZBRE ZEETTHBERRIE
HES%  EEREERZSER 2R -

ESHANEAZSBITITEHAEE 2
REVMBRRBREALE -

FEMBEREENE10RREFLESH
HRIE28 (ERTF ) REFZHRAH
BELFRESELECHNEEL EB
ZE

BEMBEREERFE 105 ZBRTA:

- BEBYBRSEAFIREHAE
BB B (H B2 DURE 55 0% B BR = Bk
ENAIRNGELRETZIRETY
EBYRER) 2EHRSHREEE
BB 2 —RBEETABISMER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture — continued

New guidance has been introduced requiring that
gains or losses resulting from those transactions are
recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the remeasurement at fair value of
investments retained in any former subsidiary that
has become an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method are recognised
in the former parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new

associate or joint venture.

Amendments to HKAS 28:

The requirements on gains and losses resulting from
transactions between an entity and its associate or joint
venture have been amended to relate only to assets

that do not constitute a business.

A new requirement has been introduced that gains or
losses from downstream transactions involving assets
that constitute a business between an entity and its
associate or joint venture must be recognised in full in

the investor’s financial statements.

A requirement has been added that an entity needs to
consider whether assets that are sold or contributed in
separate transactions constitute a business and should

be accounted for as a single transaction.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture — continued

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will have a material

impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for

Acquisition of Interests in Joint Operation

HKFRS 11 addresses the accounting for interests in joint
ventures and joint operations. The amendments add new
guidance on how to account for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint operation that constitutes a business. The
amendments specify the appropriate accounting treatment

for such acquisitions.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKFRS 11 will have a significant impact on

the Group's consolidated financial statements.
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

HKFRS 14 permits first-time adopters to continue to
recognise amounts related to rate regulation in accordance
with their previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
("GAAP") requirements when they adopt HKFRS. However,
to enhance comparability with entities that already apply
HKFRS and do not recognise such amounts, the standard
requires that the effect of rate regulation must be presented
separately from other items. An entity that already presents
HKFRS financial statements is not eligible to apply the

standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

- continued

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016 with earlier application

permitted.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS
14 will have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated

financial statements.
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is for companies to recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to
customers in amounts that reflect the consideration (that is,
payment) to which the company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The new standard will
also result in enhanced disclosures about revenue, provide
guidance for transactions that were not previously addressed
comprehensively and improve guidance for multiple-element

arrangements.

HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2017 with earlier application permitted.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact
of HKFRS 15 upon initial application but is not yet in a
position to state whether there will have a significant impact

on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 are designed to further
encourage companies to apply professional judgement in
determining what information to disclose in their financial
statements. For example, the amendments make clear that
materiality applies to the whole of financial statements and
that the inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit
the usefulness of financial disclosures. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that companies should use professional
judgement in determining where and in what order

information is presented in the financial disclosures.

The amendments can be applied immediately and become
mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 1 will have a significant impact on the

Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 both establish the principle for the
basis of depreciation and amortisation as being the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits of
an asset. The amendments clarify that the use of revenue-
based methods to calculate the depreciation of an asset is
not appropriate because revenue generated by an activity
that includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors
other than the consumption of the economic benefits

embodied in the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") — continued
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation — continued

The amendments also clarify that revenue is generally
presumed to be an inappropriate basis for measuring the
consumption of the economic benefits embodied in an
intangible asset. This presumption, however, can be rebutted
in certain limited circumstances.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016 with earlier application
permitted.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
the amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will have a
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011) Defined Benefit

Plans: Employee Contributions

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify how an entity should
account for contributions made by employees or third
parties to defined benefit plans, based on whether those
contributions are dependent on the number of years of
service provided by the employee.

For contributions that are independent of the number
of years of service, the entity may either recognise the
contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the period
in which the related service is rendered, or to attribute them
to the employees’ periods of service using the projected unit
credit method; whereas for contributions that are dependent
on the number of years of service, the entity is required to
attribute them to the employees’ periods of service.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 19 will have a significant impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements as the Group
does not have any defined benefit plans.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in

Separate Financial Statements

The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method
to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates in their separate financial statements. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016 with earlier application permitted.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 27 will have a significant impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, which is a collective term
that includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the HKICPA, and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustments in the next year are discussed in Note 5
to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of significant accounting policies followed by the
Group and the Company in the preparation of the financial
statements is set out below:

Basis of preparation

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is historical cost except
for certain financial assets (including derivative financial
instruments) and investment properties that are measured
at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration of given in exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of preparation — continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;
o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
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The consolidated financial statements incorporate the FRENBBREMARDARBAATARE
financial statements of the Company and entities (including MEARMZEHER (EEEBEER)

structured entities) controlled by the Company and its

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an

investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

- the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote

holders;

- potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

- rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

- any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at

previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries — continued

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a

joint venture.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,

except that:

(i) deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

(i) liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions of
the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

(iii) assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
If, after
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the

assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair values or another measurement basis required by
another HKFRSs.

When the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the “measurement
period” (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the

acquisition date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss

being recognised in profit or loss.

Merger accounting for common control
combination

The financial statement incorporates the financial statement
items of the combining entities or business in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had been
combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling

party.

The net assets of the combining entities or business are
combined using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised with respect
to goodwill or any excess of acquirer’'s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over its cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the contribution of the

controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of
the combining entities or business from the earliest date
presented or since the date when combining entities or
business first came under common control, where this is a
shorter period, regardless of the date of common control

combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Merger accounting for common control
combination - continued

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between the combining entities or business are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated but considered
as an impairment indicator of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of combining entities or business have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the Group.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, cost of furnishing information to shareholders, costs
or losses incurred in combining operations of the previously
separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation to the common
control combination that is to be accounted for by using
merger accounting are recognised as an expense in the

period in which they are incurred.

Goodwiill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business

less accumulated impairment losses.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Goodwill - continued

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the

determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow

to the Group and revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

as follows:

(a)

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyers, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective

control over the goods sold.

(b) Provision of services
Revenue from provision of hospital service is recognised
when the services are provided.

(c) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using effective interest method. When a
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flows discounted at original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans is recognised using the
original effective interest rate.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms

of the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Leasing - continued

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance assets are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair values at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly to the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a

straight-line basis.

Prepaid lease payments for land use rights

Prepaid lease payments for land use rights are stated as
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of interest in
leasehold land are amortised on a straight line basis over the

relevant interest in leasehold land.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the property, plant and equipment,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that

asset.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, using the straight line
method, over its estimated useful lives. The principal annual

rates are as follows:

Building Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Plant and machinery 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% to 33%
Motor vehicles 20%
Office equipment 20%

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, other costs that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income.

Impairment of assets (other than goodwiill,
intangible assets with indefinite lives)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of assets (other than goodwiill,
intangible assets with indefinite lives) — continued
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income items that are never
taxable and deductible.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Income tax — continued

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the liabilities method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill (or negative goodwill) or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
the other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Income tax — continued

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the liability is settled or
the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited
to consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly or equity, in which case the

deferred tax is also dealt within equity.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss,
except when they related to items that are recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business

combination.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL"). The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the

market place.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
(“FVTPL")

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial

asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near future; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of an identified
portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent actual

pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
("FVTPL”) — continued

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading

may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’'s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial

asset and is included in the “other revenue”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and bill receivables and other
receivables, loan receivables, cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposits) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses
were recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment losses
reversed do not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment losses not been recognised.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are
generally classified into other financial liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The Group's
financial liabilities are generally classified into other financial
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity - continued

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain
both financial liability and equity components are classified
separately in respective liability and equity components
on initial recognition. On initial recognition, the fair
value of the liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, respecting the embedded call option for the
holder to convert the bond into equity, is included in equity

(convertible notes reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible notes reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible
notes reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible notes reserve
will be released to the retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income upon conversion or

expiration of the option.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity - continued

Convertible notes — continued

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the proceeds. Transactions
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to convertible notes reserve. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the

convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Company and not designed as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to

the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises

a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the

relative fair values of those parts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBFHREMSE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

4.

FEEMHBRBE &

Financial instruments — continued EMTHR-—&
Derecognition — continued BEER &

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to

interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in

order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary

items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Current assets and liabilities

Current assets are expected to be realised within twelve
months of the end of the reporting period or in the normal
course of the Group’s operating cycle. Current liabilities are
expected to be settled within twelve months of the end of
the reporting period or in the normal course of the Group's

operating cycle.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be

recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually

certain, an asset is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the

Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not

restricted to use.

Provisions

Provisions recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the
time value of money is material, the amount of a provision
is the present value of the expenditures expected to be

required to settle the obligations.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage
and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,

these amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and to the state-managed retirement benefits
schemes for the employees of the Group’s overseas entities
are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is

without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit
plans under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
separate entities such as social security plans in the PRC,
and the Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further contributions if any of the funds do not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods. The
Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are

recognised in the financial year to which they relate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Employee benefits - continued

IV.

Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date using the binominal
lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the share
options, the total estimated fair value of share options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account

the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when it

is released directly to retained profits).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interests and other costs incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing costs
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the period in which the

costs are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

Investment properties
Investment properties are completed properties which are
held for their investment potential, any rental income being

negotiated at arm’s length.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Investment properties — continued

Investment properties under construction have been
accounted for in the same way as completed investment
properties. Specifically, construction costs incurred for
investment properties under construction are capitalised
as part of the carrying amount of the investment
properties under construction. Investment properties under
construction are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Any difference between the fair value
of the investment properties under construction and their
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the year in which the item is

derecognised.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash

flows of the financial assets have been impacted.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of financial assets - continued
For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

(b) default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

(d) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 7 to 90 days, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted

at the original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of financial assets - continued

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 March 2015 = E—HRF=H=+—H

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TE®HBFEHE-—15
POLICIES - continued

Related Parties Transactions REALTEZS
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: EASKEREzALIE:
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is (@) fM—BALTHZALTRERTRRK
related to the Group if that person: ERETIGRG AERNEEEE
I8
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) EHAEFEFRNER:;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i BAREBEEAFE T
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) BAEERAEEFATEE
the Group or the Group's parent. EEAEBMEE -
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) MBTIER —HEEBHEHASE
conditions applies: BERE:
() The entity and the Group are members of the () ZEREAEEAR-—%E
same group (which means that each parent, MWEEAR (RREBEZEA
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the BB Q R R E R E A
others). HEIEREE) °
(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (il —EEEEE —BERANEK
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a ERAHEERT (A&
member of a group of which the other entity is a BeHE N ARREE AT M
member). F—EBRAREEZRER
7)o
(iliy The entities and the Group are joint ventures of (i) ZERHEAEEEAR—BF
the same third party. =EMNEE AT
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and (ivy, —RHERBAEE=-"FEEMNSE
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. RARE—BERRE=FER
HEEE AT e
1 28 HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Related Parties Transactions - continued
(b) - continued
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or

an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between

related parties.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in Note 4, management has made
certain key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk in causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBFHREMSE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(a)

(b)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has
been impairment of goodwill in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 4. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions made
by management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions

underlying the value-in-use calculations.

Impairment of trade receivables

The aged debt profile of trade debtors is reviewed on a
regular basis to ensure that the trade debtor balances
are collectible and follow up actions are promptly
carried out if the agreed credit periods have been
exceeded. However, from time to time, the Group may
experience delays in collection. Where recoverability of
trade debtor balances are called into doubts, specific
provisions for bad and doubtful debts are made
based on credit status of the customers, the aged
analysis of the trade receivable balances and write-off
history. Certain receivables may be initially identified
as collectible, yet subsequently become uncollectible
and result in a subsequent write-off of the related
receivable to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Changes in the
collectability of trade receivables for which provisions

are not made could affect our results of operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(c)

(d)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the
useful lives of property, plant and equipment in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expenses to
be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at the time
the asset is acquired based on historical experience, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well
as technical obsolescence arising from changes in the
market demands or service output of the assets. The
Group also perform annual reviews on whether the

assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.

Impairment of non-current assets

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable, an
assessment of the carrying amount of that asset will
be performed. Triggering events include significant
adverse changes in the market value of an asset,
changes in the business or regulatory environment, or
certain legal events. The interpretation of such events
requires judgement from management with respect
to whether such an event has occurred. Upon the
occurrence of triggering events, the carrying amounts
of non-current assets are reviewed to assess whether
their recoverable amounts have declined below their
carrying amounts. The recoverable amount is the
present value of estimated net future cash flows which
the Group expects to generate from the future use of
the asset, plus the assets residual value on disposal.
Where the recoverable amount of non-current assets
is less than its carrying value, an impairment loss is
recognised to write the assets down to its recoverable

amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

er

31 March 2015 =&

5.

R kR E

—HEF=A=+—H

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(e)

()

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgements are required
in determining the provision for income tax. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
Where the final

tax outcome of these matters is different from the

the ordinary course of business.

amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions

in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The

outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is
individually determined at the end of each reporting
period based on its market value and by adopting
direct comparison method. Direct comparison method
assumes each of these properties is capable of being
sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant
possession and by making reference to comparable
sales evidence as available in the relevant market
condition, the fair value of the investment properties

will change in future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY - continued

(g) Measurement of fair value of equity-settled
transactions
The Company operates share option schemes under
which employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions. The cost of these equity-settled
transactions with employees is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted,
using assumptions including expected volatility and
risk free interest rate. Such cost is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will

ultimately vest.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported internally to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods or services delivered or provided. The Group
has merged its organisation into two operating divisions:
provision of general hospital services, and pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain
business. The chief operating decision maker has decided
to combine the provision of general hospital service and the
provision of healthcare and hospital management services
into one single operation division in order to manage and
review the performance of the hospital related business
more efficiently. These divisions are the basis on which the

Group reports its segment information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBFHREMSE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued SHEH-&
Segment revenue and results SHERRREE
2015 —E—hF
Pharmaceutical
wholesale and
distribution and
Provision of pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
services business Eliminations Consolidated
EMRRR
REGEN PBLURED
R SEEHERE He =8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET TET TET
Turnover BEE
External sales HIMEE 214,040 1,566,269 - 1,780,309
Inter-segment sales PEEHE - 1,418 (1,418) =
Total turnover mEEm 214,040 1,567,687 (1,418) 1,780,309
Inter-segment sales are charged at D EREHENRAF
arm's length HEERE
Results E$ |
Segment results DEEE 9,669 (756,100) - (746,431)
Unallocated other revenue and RAB 2 E KSR KA
income 23
Unallocated corporate expenses AAMZLELH (13,467)
Loss from operations BeXKEE (759,875)
Finance costs B &R (11,520)
Loss before taxation R AIEE (771,395)
Taxation | (10,789)
Loss for the year rEEER (782,184)

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment assets and liabilities

2015

7= A
7 N = |

Bt 75 3R 3R M &

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

6. PEEH-&
SHRERAR
—g-i%

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and
distribution and

Provision of  pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
services business Consolidated
EWRBR
RtzaH SHLUREY
BRkl SEIEHEES o3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET
Consolidated statement of financial position & B # ikl &
Assets gE
Segment assets NEEE 223,334 644,490 867,824
Unallocated corporate assets AP LEEE 7,167
Consolidated total assets REEERE 874,991
Liabilities =N
Segment liabilities 2EERE 40,179 367,781 407,960
Promissory note REEE 72,712
Convertible note ARREE 5,432
Deferred taxation B IE 357
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROz EEEE 7,032
Consolidated total liabilities GEBEAR 493,493
ZEEBREBEERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBFHREMSE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. NEEHE &
PHEERAE &

Segment assets and liabilities - continued

2015 — continued —E—-hFE-E
Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

distribution and

Provision of pharmaceutical

general hospital retail chain
services business Unallocated Consolidated
ENHBER
RitFaE FBLREN
BRES CEEHERY RAE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Other information Htt#H
Capital expenditure* ERELH 35,057 15,346 7 50,410
Depreciation e 9,593 5,081 4 14,678
Amortisation of prepaid BAHEREES
lease payments 1,069 188 1,257
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HENE BERREZ
plant and equipment (W) /BE (84) 80 (4)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZREEE - 785,169 785,169
Impairment loss recognised RESREMEKNE
in respect of trade and BRZRESR
other receivables 1,356 3,961 5,317
Reversal of impairment loss HEZREMEKTE
recognised in respect of B2 ZAERERE
trade and other receivables (688) (130) - (818)
Change in fair value of derivative ~ T4 SBMIEAFELE
financial instruments - - 100 100
Change in fair value of RENEZ A TLESR
investment properties - 252 - 252
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant & EXBZEEIENE BERSZE
and equipment.
'I 36 HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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GEMBHREMEE

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. #HEH-&
Segment revenue and results SHERRREE
2014 —E-MF
Pharmaceutical
wholesale and
distribution and
Provision of pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
services business Eliminations Consolidated
EMRBR
RELZEN DEAREY
B R TEEHEER HeE =E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TET TET TER
Turnover BXE
External sales HIMEE 150,685 2,092,474 = 2,243,159
Inter-segment sales SHEBHEE - 3,981 (3,981) =
Total turnover Pl E ] 150,685 2,096,455 (3,981) 2,243,159
Inter-segment sales are charged at PEEEEDRAT
arm's length HEKE
Results £
Segment results PEEE 15,591 86,991 = 102,582
Unallocated other revenue and RAEZ EM R IEA
income 322
Loss on early redemption of REBRAIZEZEHE
promissory note (16,269)
Unallocated corporate expenses RABzEEZE (9,472)
Profit from operations R KR 77,163
Finance costs BHEEH (10,493)
Profit before taxation BB AR 66,670
Taxation BE (29,216)
Profit for the year REERT 37,454
EEBREEEBRAT
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GEMBFHREMSE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. DEEH &
Segment assets and liabilities SHEERAR
2014 —E-NF

Pharmaceutical

wholesale and

distribution and

Provision of pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
services business Consolidated
BYIRER
BftRen UK EY)
BlRRE SEEEEEK ey
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TER TER
Consolidated statement of financial position & B # ikl &
Assets HE
Segment assets PREE 190,394 1,429,758 1,620,152
Unallocated corporate assets AOBobEERE 17,888
Consolidated total assets GEEEME 1,638,040
Liabilities =4
Segment liabilities 2EEE 22,982 381,956 404,938
Promissory note ARREE 71,361
Convertible note RREE 5,012
Deferred taxation BB E 426
Unallocated corporate liabilities RPBZL¥8E 5,880
Consolidated total liabilities GEEEHEE 487,617

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. HEH-&

Segment assets and liabilities - continued SHEERAR -

2014 — continued —E-NE-F
Pharmaceutical

wholesale and
distribution and

Provision of pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
services business Unallocated Consolidated
EMHBER
REGEM DEUREY
BRRE  SEEHEER AAE 2E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TER TET TEx
Other information Htt#H
Capital expenditure* ERELH 4,883 5,263 7 10,153
Depreciation e 6,887 3,653 11 10,551
Amortisation of prepaid BABERRES
lease payments 1,069 188 - 1,257
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HENE BEREZEZ
plant and equipment Wi,/ (FE) 325 (26) - 299
Impairment loss recognised in respect & 5 & 2t KB
of trade and other receivables BRZHESE 1,329 518 16 1,863
Reversal of impairment loss HE S R E KRR
recognised in respect of ERZREERER
trade and other receivables - 746 - 746
Change in fair value of TESBMIENTELE
derivative financial instruments - - 315 315
o Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant * BEXBAXEBERNBEYE BERREE-
and equipment.
ZEEREEBRA A 139
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GEMBRERWE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note 4.
Segment results represent the profit generated by each
segment without allocation of finance costs, loss on early
redemption of promissory note, other corporate revenue,
income and expenses and taxation. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated corporate assets. Unallocated
corporate assets mainly include part of property, plant
and equipment, cash and bank balances of the central
administration companies. Goodwill is allocated to

reportable segments as described in Note 10.

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated corporate liabilities, promissory note,
convertible note and deferred taxation. Unallocated
corporate liabilities mainly include the accruals
and other payables of the central administration

companies.

Geographical information

The Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC. All of
the Group’s turnover is derived from customers based in the
PRC.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Geographical information - continued
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets analysed by the geographical area in which

the assets are located:

GEMBHRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

DHREH-E

WERH @
UTAREEFRREES 2 HRBE
EZREED

Carrying amount of

non-current assets

FRBEEZIREE
2015 2014
—Z—1F —E-mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FE T
Hong Kong B 415 412
PRC Bl 141,902 864,053
142,317 864,465

Information about major customers FREEERZCEH

For the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, no single

customer contributed 10% or more to the Group’s turnover.

Revenue from major services and products
The Group's revenue from its major services and products
was stated in Note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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e MBRERWE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. DE-BEREME
The Group . -4
Furniture Machinery
and Leasehold and Motor Office
Building fixtures improvements  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
L FHRKE HRMERE HBIRERE RE BOEZRG &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET
Cost BF
At 1 April 2013 RZE-=fNmA—-H 5,833 4,058 32,060 25,155 11,425 24,108 102,639
Additions RE = 343 2,930 2,752 1,004 3,124 10,153
Exchange realignment ERHE 106 73 572 453 173 407 1,784
Disposals HE - - (383) - (2,621) (550) (3,554)
At 31 March 2014 and R=Z-I%
1 April 2014 =A=1t-Bk
—£-MmEMA-A 5,939 4,474 35,179 28,360 9,981 27,089 111,022
Additions RE - 623 5,988 2,221 2,984 8,995 20,817
Acquisitions through business  EBEKA B
combination (note 13) (KE13) - 389 16,010 11,878 836 480 29,593
Disposals 3 = = - - (466) (1,061) (1,527)
Exchange realignment ERHE 29 41 346 247 53 157 873
At 31 March 2015 R-E-1%
=A=1-H 5,968 5,527 57,523 42,712 13,388 35,660 160,778
Depreciation and impairment #f % R # {&
At 1 April 2013 RZE-=%NmE-H 1,087 3,552 17,963 20,422 7,908 15,286 66,218
Provided for the year REERE 178 364 4,467 1,855 1,116 2,571 10,551
Written back on disposals HEREE - = (383) = (2,387) (474) (3,244)
Exchange realignment ERAR 20 64 3N 368 108 252 1123
At 31 March 2014 and R=Z-m#
1 April 2014 =A=1+-Bk
~“E-MEMA-A 1,285 3,980 22,358 22,645 6,745 17,635 74,648
Provided for the year TEERE 178 313 6,285 3,206 1,345 3,351 14,678
Written back on disposals BEREE - - - = (340) (795) (1,135)
Exchange realignment ERAR 1 37 218 165 38 98 557
At 31 March 2015 RZZB-1%F
=ZA=1-H 1,464 4,330 28,861 26,016 7,788 20,289 88,748
Net book value RERE
At 31 March 2015 R-Z-1%
=ZA=+-H 4,504 1,197 28,662 16,696 5,600 15,371 72,030
At 31 March 2014 R-E-RE
=A=t-H 4,654 494 12,821 5,715 3,236 9,454 36,374

The building was held outside Hong Kong under medium

term lease.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

ZEFREBRIN AT HANTE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHREMEE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

8. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 8. WMMHEERER
The Group
EEME
2015 2014
—E—RF¥ —ZE—-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FE T
The Group's prepaid lease payments AEBEFENEERBEERE:
comprise:
Leasehold land in the PRC under medium  RABEUFEHENEE 2
term lease HEL 31,516 32,620
Analysed for reporting purposes as: ERIRAZE 2D :
Current assets (include in trade and other HREEE (T AE S REMEUR
receivables and deposits) (Note 15) REREZE) (HEE15) 1,261 1,255
Non-current assets ERBEE 30,255 31,365
31,516 32,620

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represented payments
for land use rights situated in the PRC. The leasehold lands
have a lease term of 25 to 35 years and the Group has
processed the land use rights of the leasehold land during

the lease term.

At 31
carrying amount of approximately HK$1,909,000 (2014:

March 2015, prepaid lease payments with

HK$1,979,000) were pledged as collaterals to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 37).

FEEZRENHEEREARURPEZ
T AR 2R -HAE L 2
R25E35F  MAKEE A EBAEE L
b {56 R ©

R-ZFE-HF=A=+—H0 EREAEY
1,909,000/ T (=& — MM 1,979,000
BRT)ZENHERECHEREFRRRM
BFREBEZRITMEE LKA (K
37) e
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31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2015 and 2014 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out at that date by an independent

qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group.

The valuation was arrived at by using the direct comparison
approach with reference to market evidence of transaction

prices for similar properties.

There had been no change from the valuation technique
used in the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their

current use.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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9. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 9. BMEMR
The Group
TKE

2015 2014

—E—1fF —E-—MF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

Completed investment properties BERIREYHE 8,093 8,306
At fair value BoFE

As at 1 April RMEUB—H 8,306 8,157

Exchange realignment & o A 39 149

Fair value change ANFEEE (252) =

As at 31 March R=B=+-—H 8,093 8,306

FEEZREVER-Z-HFR=F
—HE=ZA=+t-HZAFEDREHR
AEBYEFRECBYSERERME
B BT 2 AEMERE -

HEDSERBNFRZRZERTER
HEAEBRELBUEEN-

B 1E O REIR A 2 (6 B T R BEE B B o 1AST
s ATEE NERERBERS
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GEMBHRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued ARV E Bad
The carrying amount of investment properties shown above R ENMEREERRE:
comprises:
2015 2014
—Z—-1¥F —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$’'000
THET F&ET
Land in the PRC: RAEZ i
Medium-term lease FRHEAFE A0 8,093 8,306

The Group leases out its investment properties which are
shop units of a 9-storey composite building to various
tenants. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 1 year to 5 years, at the end of which all terms are
renegotiable. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
The rental income generated from investment properties is
approximately HK$321,000 (2014: HK$450,000) There were
no direct operating expenses arising from the investment
properties for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.
The properties held had committed tenants for 3.4 years
(2014: 1.5 years). At the end of the reporting period, the
Group contracted with tenants for the following future

minimum lease receivables:

FEBERHEREYE (B EIBHEEK
BrE@HEr) HtHFZEHAF -HEB
EUNLS A ESF FMEHERNREHE
AEHZEE BEAEEEIAEE &
EYERIZEE WAL %321,000% 7T
(ZZ— P4 : 450,000 T) - BE=-F
—AFER-ZZF-NE=A=+—HLHF
E BEHRENEELECEELEEN
R FBEEYERBCABBEF R34F
(ZZ—F 1.55F) - AMEBAR A&
BEAFITNZRREEERESWOT :

2015 2014
—E-1F —E-MEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Within one year —FR 226 300
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZELF (BREEMF) 462 54
688 354
ZEEBREEBAERAA
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e MBRERWE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

9. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 9. WMBEMER-—I®
Details of the Group’s investment properties and information R-E—HFR-ZF-—MNEF=R=1+—
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2015 and 2014 B AEEZREMEFERERATE
are as follows: BHRzEROT :

Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 as at 2015
R-Z—1F
E— R BE=W ZRFEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
TER TER TER TERT

Investment property unit NAREZ
located in the PRC REWEEN - 8,093 - 8,093
Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 asat 2014
R-Z-NF
E—% B® E=R ZAYHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER

Investment property unit NAREZ
located in the PRC REWEE N = 8,306 = 8,306

There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during the
years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

As at 31 March 2015, investment properties with
carrying amount of approximately HK$8,093,000 (2014:
HK$8,306,000) were pledged as collaterals to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 37).

'I 46 HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

10. GOODWILL 10. B &
The Group
FEME
2015 2014
—E—hF —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FERT
Cost 5% 3
As at 1 April ROEUA—H 1,063,233 1,063,233
Additional amounts recognised BEFERABEZEKESH
from business combinations occuring iR 2N EE
during the year (Note 13) (KFEE13) 28,679 =
Exchange realignment E & AR 9 _
As at 31 March R=B=+—H 1,091,921 1,063,233
Accumulated impairment losses RAitBEGR
As at 1 April RMUA—H 274,813 274,813
Impairment losses recognised in the year FRERABEESE 785,169 =
As at 31 March R=A=+—H 1,059,982 274,813
Carrying value IR (E
As at 31 March B=B=+—H 31,939 788,420

Note:

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in

Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

EEBRBEEEERAT
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e MBRERWE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

11. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the following cash generating units (CGUs). The
carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated impairment
losses) as at 31 March 2015 and 2014 are allocated as

follows:

11. 2R E R

RBEIETMS  BBEIRETIRS
EXEBEN RZZE—RER-ZZT—NE=
A=+—B m8zkEE (IREH
BEE)PEBOT :

The Group
r 3 |
2015 2014
k- Sk %2 —E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FEx
Jiaxing City Shuguang Western and Chinese 3z & B2 ¥ # 0 & B
Composite Hospital Company Limited BRAR ([FZHEX])
(“Jiaxing Shuguang”)
— provision of general hospital services - R ERMHEE BT RE
in the PRC 2,899 2,899
Fuzhou Huikang Enterprise Management BMNERGCEXEEZN
Consultancy Ltd. and Zhuhai Jiulong BRATRKBNESEK
Hospital Company Limited BRAT ([BRBHRE])
(“Zhuhai Jiulong”)
— provision of general hospital services - R BERMES T ERRE
in the PRC 26,827 -
Nurture Fit Limited and its subsidiaries REARAAREWE QA
— pharmaceutical wholesale and — Rz AL R 2 8
distribution and pharmaceutical R &Y ZEEHEEEL
retail chain business in the PRC - 785,169
Quanzhou Huihao RME L
— pharmaceutical retail chain business in “RABEZEYSEEHEE
the PRC ES S 361 352
Hui Hao Yi Yao (Xiamen) Co., Ltd. B s (BEM)BRAF
— wholesales and distribution of —“RAPEMEBERDHEER
pharmaceutical and related products HEE M
in the PRC 1,852 -
31,939 788,420
148 HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

— continued

Jiaxing Shuguang - Provision of general hospital

services in the PRC

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 4-year period, as the directors consider the
lease term of hospital premises as the budgeted period,
and a discount rate of 12.04% per annum. Cash flow
projections during the budgeted period are based on the
same expected gross margins throughout the budget period.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount is
based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of this CGU.
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for the market

development.

Fuzhou Huikang Enterprise Management
Consultancy Ltd. and Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital
Company Limited - Provision of general hospital
services in the PRC

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 4-year period, as the directors consider the
lease term of hospital premises as the budgeted period,
and a discount rate of 12.04% per annum. Cash flow
projections during the budgeted period are based on the
same expected gross margins throughout the budget period.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount is
based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of this CGU.
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for the market

development.
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11. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

— continued

Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries - Pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical
retail chain business in the PRC

During the year ended 31 March 2015, as a result of
the promulgation and implementation of the new Good
Supply Practice in Fujian, the PRC which imposes stringent
regulations on pharmaceutical distributor operation and
causes significant decrease in pharmaceutical wholesales
business of Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries. According to
subsequent publications of relevant government policies
in effect, only 10 medicine distributors remained on the
enterprise list and those unqualified distributors are not
qualified to supply pharmaceutical products to public
hospitals and healthcare institutions under new tenders
commensurate with the new Good Supply Practice. Majority
of the existing distributor customers of Nurture Fit and its
subsidiaries, who are not on the new Good Supply Practice
qualified enterprise list, are expected to walk out from
the sector. As a result, the projected sale revenues from
the wholesale business are expected to tumble over the

projection period.

Also, due to the constraint of the existing direct sale
distribution facilities of the Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries
where it is unable to cater for all the public hospitals and
public healthcare institutions over the whole Fujian Province,
the Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries is expected to take up
only part of the market shares on distribution sale business
which are covered by those existing distributor customers. As
a result, there shall be dropped in the overall market share
of the Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries over the wholesale and

distribution segment.

As the carrying amount of this CGU is lower than the
recoverable amount, impairment losses of approximately
HK$785,169,000 was recognised during the year ended 31
March 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

- continued

Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries - Pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical
retail chain business in the PRC - continued

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and with discount rates of
11.95% per annum. Cash flow projections during the
budgeted period are based on the same expected gross
margins throughout the budget period. The management
considers that it is prudent and appropriate to adopt a steady
8% annual growth rate of cash flows projections for each
flows beyond the budgeted period. This growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the market.
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for the market
development.

Quanzhou Huihao - Pharmaceutical wholesale
and distribution business in the PRC

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 5-year period, and a discount rate of 11.95%
per annum. The cash flow projections during the budgeted
period are based on the same expected gross margins
throughout the budget period. The cash flows beyond the
budgeted period have been extrapolated using a steady 8%
per annum by reference to market rate. This growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
market. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount
is based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of this CGU.
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for the market
development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRERWE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

11. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

- continued

Xiamen Huihao

The recoverable amount of this cash generating unit
("CGQU") is determined based on a value in use calculation
which uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period and
with discount rates of 11.95% per annum. Cash flow
projections during the budgeted period are based on the
same expected gross margins throughout the budget
period. The management considers that it is prudent and
appropriate to adopt a steady 8% annual growth rate of
cash flows projections for each flows beyond the budgeted
period. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the market. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which recoverable amount is based would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this CGU. Management determines
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and

the expectations for the market development.

12. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

1. BEREINR &

EFIE 5

BREELENV ((REEEBEM]) 27
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REFR DERBEREHRERZE
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12. RIFBLRZES

The Company

F. B/ |
2015 2014
—E—RF¥ —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T8 FHET
Unlisted shares, at costs FEmRG BEAARE 1,243,078 1,243,078
Less: Impairment loss recognised W EERBEEE (963,375) (267,575)
279,703 975,503
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG = 61,692 63,123
341,395 1,038,626
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - continued

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest

free and recoverable/repayable on demand.

There are subsidiaries incurred losses continuously and
the directors of the Company carried out a review on the
recoverable amounts of the investments in subsidiaries.
The carrying amounts of the investments in subsidiaries
are reduced to their recoverable amounts which are
determined by reference to the estimation of future
cash flows expected to be generated from the respective
subsidiaries. Accordingly, impairment losses of approximately
HK$695,800,000 (2014: HK$Nil) were made during the year.

The carrying amounts of the investments in subsidiaries are
reduced to their recoverable amounts which are determined
by reference to the estimation of future cash flows expected

to be generated from the respective subsidiaries.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March
2015 are set out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial

statements.

In the preparation for the listing of shares of Wanjia Group
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Group
underwent the Reorganisation, and as a result of which the
outstanding amount of approximately HK$866,811,000 due
from Timely Hero to the Company on 3 September 2013 was
capitalised in the Company’s investment cost on the same
date (Note 2).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRERWE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

13. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

13. W RGP B 22 7

Date of Proportion of
Principal activity acquisition shares acquired Consideration
TERE KiEEH I ik Bt 13 L 61 &
% HK$'000
% TEx
Xiamen Huihao Pharmaceutical wholesale 21 April 2014 60 6,204
(Note a) and distribution business
in the PRC
EMEH (fia) RAOBERBER D EES “EZ-MENMA=t+—H
Nanping Huihao Pharmaceutical wholesale 15 June 2014 60 9,417
(Note b) and distribution business
in the PRC
B ELF (Hiwtb) RABRZERMER D HEK “EZ-MEFSATHA
Fuzhou Huikang Enterprise Provision of healthcare and 4 September 2014 100 47,707
Management Consultancy hospital management services
Ltd and Zhuhai Jiulong and provision of general
Hospital Company Limited hospital Management services
ENERLXERZEHA RUBERBREERER “E-MENANA
BRAARKENEER RUGEMEREERS
BRAT
63,328

Note: Bt &

(@)  The name of Company have been changed from EFHIE & (@ RBUBIEZTHEZ ARAEBEHEH
HEHRAF to BHELE (EM)BMRDAE after acquisition ESEREERARESEREIFEE (B
completed. FI)BRAF e

(b)  The name of Company have been changed from B & 1E & (b)y RKWBBEZTHEZ AREBEHER

HEEERDTA to BFEEEE (FEF)BRAQA after acquisition

completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERME

31 March 2015 = &E—HRF=H=+—H

13. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 13. KB B A E — 18
- continued
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date RUWBEBSAMUBEERERZ2EE:
acquisition:
Fuzhou Huikang
Enterprise
Management
Consultancy Ltd
and Zhuhai
Jiulong Hospital
Company Xiamen Nanping
Limited Huihao Huihao Total
EMERL X
ERAN
FRAFR
HENMER
HFRAR EMEF BFEEH it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THR THR
Property, plant and equipment U ER 29,525 - 68 29,593
Trade and other receivables B REMELRE 9,952 5,365 29,652 44,969
Inventories RE 1,633 1171 10,701 13,505
Cash and cash equivalents RERBRELEER 1,071 4,863 5,685 11,619
Trade and other payables g5 RHMERKE (21,301) (4,147) (17,855) (43,303)
Bank borrowings RITER - - (12,556) (12,556)
Net assets acquired mHEEEER 20,880 7,252 15,695 43,827
The receivables acquired in these transactions with a fair REZEXRZPUBZAFELNLS
value of approximately HK$9,952,000 for Fuzhou Huikang 9,952,000 8 T (MEBMERLXEEZE
Enterprise Management Consultancy Ltd. and Zhuhai Jiulong MAERAARKENEBRAERATM
Hospital Company Limited, approximately HK$5,365,000 =)~ #5,365,0008 T (MEMAEHFM
for Xiamen Huihao and approximately HK$29,652,000 for =K ,%"329,652 OOO}&JTE (MEFEEFm
Nanping Huihao were approximate to their gross contractual %‘) ZFEH& ARERE RSN EEME

amounts and no balance was expected to be uncollectible. ﬂﬁ*ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂﬂ—:T\—H&@ °
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WEEEEE:
Fuzhou Huikang
Enterprise
Management
Consultancy Ltd
and Zhuhai
Jiulong Hospital
Company Xiamen Nanping
Limited Huihao Huihao Total
EHERLE
TEEN
FRAAR
KBnEER
BRLTA EMEH BFEHF Mgt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THEx TR THx
Consideration transferred BEIRE 47,707 6,204 9,417 63,328
Plus: non-controlling interests m:EERER = 2,900 6,278 9,178
Less: fair value of identifiable net B AR EEERR
assets acquired AYE (20,880) (7,252) (15,695) (43,827)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEEcEE 26,827 1,852 = 28,679
HEZBEEEFRAF
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13. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

- continued

The considerations for acquisition of Xiamen Huihao and
Nanping Huihao were satisfied by cash. The consideration
for acquisition of Fuzhou Haikang Enterprise Management
Consultancy Ltd and Zhuhai Jiulong was satisfied by
assuming all the payment obligations and the liabilities of

the loan in stead and place of the vendors.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Fuzhou Haikang
Enterprise Management Consultancy Ltd and Zhuhai Jiulong
and Xiamen Huihao because the cost of the combination
included a control premium. In addition, the consideration
paid for the combination effectively included amounts in
relation to the benefits of expected synergies, revenue
growth, future market development and the assembled
workforce of Fuzhou Haikang Enterprise Management
Consultancy Ltd and Zhuhai Jiulong and Xiamen Huihao.
These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for

identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is

expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

The non-controlling interests in Xiamen Huihao and
Nanping Huihao recognised at the acquisition date was
measured by reference to the present ownership instruments
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of their

identifiable net assets.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

Turnover of approximately HK$14,348,000 and loss of
approximately HK$ 1,630,000 contributed by Xiamen Huihao,
turnover of approximately HK$98,813,000 and profit of
approximately HK$738,000 contributed by Nanping Huihao
and turnover of approximately HK$46,558,000 and profit
of HK$1,846,000 contributed by Fuzhou Huikang Enterprise
Management Consultancy Ltd and Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital
Company Limited were recognised in the Group's loss for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

Had these business combination be effective at 1 April 2014,
the turnover of the Group would have been approximately
HK$1,817,185,000, and the loss for the year would have
been approximately HK$778,914,000. The directors of the
Group consider these number to represent an approximate
measure of the performance of the combined group on
an annualised basis and to provide a reference point for

comparison in future period.

13. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 13. KB B A E — 18
- continued
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries: WEME AR 2R EREFEE:
Fuzhou Huikang
Enterprise
Management
Consultancy Ltd
and Zhuhai
Jiulong Hospital
Company Xiamen Nanping
Limited Huihao Huihao Total
A R £ 3
EERN
FRAFR
KiBhEER
BFRLTH EMEH ESCY st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TiEx TiEx
Consideration paid in cash NBREZF2NKE - 6,204 9,417 15,621
Less: cash and cash equivalent BWEESRIEER
Balances acquired He%EBA (1,071) (4,863) (5,685) (11,619)
Net cash (inflow)/outflow Re A/ REFE (1,071) 1,341 3,732 4,002
Impact of acquisitions on the results of the Group BREERHEAKERRCEE

AEEHE-—ZE-—HF=A=1+—HIF
ErERARIAEMBRFER & %48

#714,348,0005% T & 518 £91,630,00058
TP EF BRIz E%£E8498,813,000

B T ROE R 49738,0008 T R B ME R R
XEEAABRAARKBIESRRSE

PR A B 8k 2 & %58 446,558,00058 7T
REFI#1,846,0005 Tt

BREBESHNR-ZFT-—NFONA -

BEM BAEE2EX£BHBOAE
1,817,185,0008 T R EREESL N A

778,914,000 T - AREBESER B %
LHFRRBRFYHUEHER 2RE 2

HETE AARARRBBETHERREHRS

o

EEBRBEEEERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRERWE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

14. INVENTORIES 14. &8
The Group
&M
2015 2014
—E—RF —E-—MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Finished goods R 133,516 133,939
15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 15. B RAEMBERFRARZEE
DEPOSITS
The Group The Company
F%£H b /N
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-1f C"Z-—-NE CZEB-RFE C—ZT-—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTART TR FTAERT
Trade receivables g5 BWE 297,403 284,223 - -
Bill receivables EWEE 6,229 7,748 - =
Prepayments and deposit paid FERREREFEE 145,130 140,693 397 355
Prepaid lease payments BAHEERE (HEE8)
(Note 8) 1,261 1,255 - -
Other receivables H fth fE 78 54,094 101,789 - =
504,117 535,708 397 355
Less: Impairment loss R E At B WK B
recognised in respect wRZHERR
of other receivables (7,006) (7,564) - -
497,111 528,144 397 355

The individually impaired other receivables related to debtors
that were in financial difficulties and the directors of the
Company assessed that the amounts are not expected to be
recovered based on past default experience, payment history

and subsequent settlement of the debtors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSITS - continued

Included in the Group's other receivables as at 31 March
2015 were valued added tax (“VAT") recoverable of
approximately HK$8,171,000 (2014:HK$9,750,000), loan to
independent third parties of approximately HK$24,026,000
(2014: HK$18,404,000) which is unsecured, carries interest

at 6% per annum and is recoverable on demand.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, included in other
receivables, a loan to Zhuhai Jiulong of approximately
HK$47,745,000, which were secured by entire issued share
capital of Zhuhai Jiulong and carries interest at 5% per
annum, was settled due to the Company completed the
acquisition of Zhuhai Jiulong. For details, please refer to the

Company’s announcement dated 1 September 2014.

As at 31 March 2015, bill receivable of approximately
HK$6,229,000 (2014: HK$7,748,000) will be matured within
six months after the end of the reporting period. All the bill

receivable are denominated in RMB.

Payment terms with customers from the pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain
business are mainly on credit. Invoices are normally payable
from 30 to 90 days of issuance. Payment terms with
customers from general hospital and healthcare and hospital
management services are normally payable from 0 to 30
days. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables

based on invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

GEMBRERME
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15. RHRAMELERARES®

—#&

AEER-—ZE-—HAF=A=+—HZH
ftb FE U SR IE B FE AT U B S E R (IR
M1)#H8,171,0008 T (ZE— & :
9,750,000 T ) RBEFEBUE=F 2
B 7 #24,026,0008 T (=& — g F:
18,404,000 t) MBEBEE R A EIK
B BRENEcHTERBREREER-

RBE-Z—AF=A=+—HLFE"
HitERREBEERATFHRBAEZER
#47,745,0008 TSR BKBEZ 2 E
ERTRAEERARREFE %R
WEAARZHBBHRENEMEE -F
S F2RALARBEHNA—ZT—TF
AB—BZ2Afe

R-BE-RFE=A=+—H0 EKREEY
6,229,000/ 5t (=& — M & : 7,748,000
BT BRREBHREEAREE
FEREZEUARKEE-

AEBMRZYRBR DEUREYNTE
BHEEBEFILZNARARNEER
AR - B R —RAN B H HHIR30E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBREWE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSITS - continued

15. RS RAMELERARES®

The Group
TEH

2015 2014
“B—-HEf C—EZ—@NOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
0 to 90 days 0Z90H 218,913 227,618
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 51,122 28,337
181 to 365 days 1812365H 18,212 16,002
Over 365 days HiE365H 15,970 14,092
304,217 286,049

Less: Impairment loss recognised R 5 R R IR B R 2
in respect of trade receivables RERER (6,814) (1,826)
297,403 284,223

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default. Trade receivables are past due
at the end of the reporting period but the Group has not
recognised an allowance for doubtful receivables because
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances nor does it have a legal right of offset against
any amounts owed by the Group to the counterparty. The
individually impaired trade receivables related to customers
that were in financial difficulties and the directors of the
Company assessed that the amounts are not expected to be
recovered based on past default experience, payment history

and subsequent settlement of the customers.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

denominated in Renminbi.
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15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSITS - continued

Ageing of trade receivables that are past due but

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

— iR

HAREMELRARES®

EAMEBELERRAEZRBEHRTLZ

not impaired R
The Group
F%E
2015 2014
—E—1hf —E-OF
HK$000 HK$'000
THT FET
Overdue by: EEH
1 to 90 days 1290H 51,122 28,337
91 to 180 days 91£180H 18,212 15,884
Over 180 days HBiB180H 9,156 12,384
Total #at 78,490 56,605
Movements in the provision for impairment loss BEHBERRAZREGIRERZED
of trade receivables
The Group
*5H
2015 2014
—E—1F —E—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET
At 1 April MROEA—H 1,826 1,692
Exchange realignment & WA 28 26
Impairment losses reversed REEERE (130) (645)
Impairment losses recognised ERRAZBEEE 5,090 753
At 31 March R=B=+—H 6,814 1,826
$EEEEEERAT 161
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15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
DEPOSITS - continued

Ageing of impaired trade receivables

15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHREMSE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

HAREMEBELRARES®

Bl {E R % Bl RIFZER

The Group
TEE
2015 2014
—E—1fF —ZE-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Over 365 days HiB365H 6,814 1,826

Movement in the provision for impairment loss of other

receivables is summarised as follows:

Hitt W RRE 2 BEBREREZ DM

W

The Group
E 3|

2015 2014
—E—RF —E—MEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH#T FEx
At 1 April HRMEUA—H 7,564 6,441
Exchange realignment BE AR (97) 114
Impairment losses reversed VEREY Ei=b A E (688) (101)
Impairment losses recognised ERRAZBEEE 227 1,110
At 31 March R=A=+—H 7.006 7,564

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015




16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

16. MAFEBBIRZINEZ M

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS B5E
The Group
5E
2015 2014
—E—hLfF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FE T
Investment at fair value BAFLEZRE - 1,259

At 31 March 2014, the Group's investment in open-
end asset portfolio wealth management products were
designated at financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of which fair values are determined by reference to
the quoted market bid prices available on the relevant PRC
market. During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group

had disposed all of the financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss.

RZEBE-—NE=A=+—H XEERH
HAEEACEHEVERZ2REWIEE
AEREATEBEBERIIRCUBEE |
AFEDNZERBEETRETSEASZH
SHERENEE - BE_=—HF=A
E+—HLEE AEBEHEMRBERA
TEEBEBRIIRZMEEE-

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 17. TEEMIR
FKERFLT

The Group and the Company

Redemption

option

contract

EEHESH

HK$'000

F#E T

At 1 April 2013 R-ZZE—=FMAE—H 69

Fair value change ANEEEE 315
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R-ZE-NFE=A=+—HE

—Z-MFMB—H 384

Fair value change NEEZE (100)

At 31 March 2015 R-E—AF=A=+—H 284

ZEEBREBERAA

2014/2015 FE 3K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBFHREMSE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

17.

18.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
- continued

The Group and the Company - continued
Note:

Derivative financial instruments represented the early redemption
option element of the convertible note issued by the Group and are
measured at fair value by an independent valuer using the binomial
tree pricing model (“Binomial Model”) at the end of each reporting
period.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 March 2015, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group included currencies denominated in Renminbi
("RMB"”) amounted to approximately HK$81,214,000
(2014: HK$66,905,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, but conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through

banks authorization to conduct foreign exchange business.

Bank balances are deposits with creditworthy banks with no

recent history of default.

As at 31 March 2015, certain bank deposits of the Group of
approximately HK$12,970,000 (2014: HK$17,431,000) were
pledged as collateral to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group. The pledged bank deposits carry interest at 2.4%

(2014: 2.8%) per annum and were denominated in RMB.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

17.

18.

TTESMIA-&

FRERFAF -\
By &E -

FESRTARARERT 2 TRREBNR
SHERBRG REIEEGREREDR
£ = B E B ([ EXER) U
ATEHE.

BeRBeSFERAREEH
MITER
R-ZE-EF=ZA=+—H AEEZR
SRESEEBEEEEAARE (AR
) ETEAEKS1,214,0008 T (=
— U £ : 66,905,000/8 JT) 2 K- AR
MIATERRRAEMEY HERETE
NEBERRFIREE EERNTESER
EAIBARBEIBRBING REEEEE
BRITBEEBARBEIRAHMER
EITIMEZET -

$R1T 4 £ 2 AT 50 30 4B 1E HE 3D 48
BEBRAZER.

R-ZEBE-—HRAFE=ZA=+—80 XAEEE
FRITERL12,970,000/8 T (= ZF—
F:17,431,0008 ) EEREBETEAER
ZRITRE 2K R T LR - 2R A
ROERBRENR2LE(ZF—DF:
28E) T ERUARKE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H
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19. SHARE CAPITAL 19. &
Number of share Amount
B {7 8 B 4]
HK$'000
TEx
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares EEK
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE0.01# T il
- at 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014, -R-Z—=FMA—A8-
1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 —Z—mE=ZA=+—AH"
—Z-—MNEMB—-BR
—$-E§ZA=+-H 110,000,000,000 1,100,000
Non-voting convertible preference shares — FER Z 1 W12 K 1B 55 Ik
Non-voting convertible preference BSERmE.IETCERRE
shares of HK$0.01 each A] R B ST AR
- at 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014, -R=-2—=%£MB—AH"
1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 —Z—-@mE=A=+—AH"
—Z—QmFEMA—-HR
—E—-h&¥=HR=+—H 40,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRME:
Ordinary shares ZAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREECIEBTZEBER
—at 1 April 2013 -RZE-—=FWA—H 1,083,938,264 10,839
— converted from convertible preference —ERTRRELER
shares 69,550,000 696
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREECIBTZESER
— at 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 -RZZE-NE=A=+—-HEK
—E-MENA-H 1,153,488,264 11,535
— exercise of share options (Note (b)) —{THEERE (HEEDb) 3,900,000 39
— converted from convertible —ERTBRRE LR
preference shares 504,201,680 5,042
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BIRE{E.01E T il
- at 31 March 2015 -R-E—HFE=A=+—H 1,661,589,944 16,616
Non-voting convertible preference shares ~ ZERZE TR RE LI (HE())
(Note (a))
Non-voting convertible preference shares of & REE0.017B T 2 ERERE
HK$0.01 each RRE LR
—at 1 April 2013 -RZE-—=FWA—H 98,500,000 985
— issue on redemption of promissory -REREARREERET
note 504,201,680 5,042
ZEEBREBEERAA
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GEMBREWE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

19. SHARE CAPITAL - continued

19. IR X -8

Number of share Amount
B {7 8 B & #
HK$'000
TET
Non-voting convertible preference shares of & REE0.017B T 2 ERERE
HK$0.01 each MRRE LR
- at 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 -RZE-NF=A=+—-HRK
—E-MENAF-H 602,701,680 6,027
— conversion to ordinary shares —EBRALTER (504,201,680) (5,042)
Non-voting convertible preference BERmEIETCERRE
shares of HK$0.01 each A] B B SE AR
- at 31 March 2015 -R-E—HFE=RA=+—H 98,500,000 985
Note: B &E
(@)  The preference shares are non-voting shares. The holders (@ BEERAERFERERMG BEBRIZIEA

of the preference shares are entitled to receive the same
dividends as the holders of ordinary shares. In addition, the
holders of the preference shares have the right to convert
any preference share into the Company’s ordinary shares at
any time at the conversion price at the rate of 1 to 1 each.
The conversion price will be subject to adjustments only upon
occurrence of certain dilutive events.

As at 31 March 2014, 3,900,000 post-listing share options
have been exercised to which ordinary shares have not been
allotted. Those ordinary shares were allotted in April 2014.
There was no post-listing share options have been exercised
during the year ended 31 March 2015.

On 9 January 2015, the Company entered into a deed of
amendments with the holders (the “CPS-Il Holders”) of
the preference shares which was allotted and issued on 10
October 2013 (the “CPS-1l") for an alteration on the terms
(the “Proposed Alternation”). The Company and the CPS-II
Holders agreed to remove one of the conversion restrictions
of the CPS-Il that no conversion of the CPS-Il would be
permitted, if the conversion shares to be allotted and issued
upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to CPS-
Il by the holders of CPS-Il together with the ordinary shares
already held by the holders and his/her/its/their parties acting
in concert represent 30% or more of the then issued ordinary
share capital of the Company (or otherwise pursuant to other
provisions of the Takeovers Code) and trigger a mandatory
general offer obligation under Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code
on the part of the holder(s) of the CPS-II.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the
then existing shares in all respects.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

20. RESERVES 20. &0
The Company b /N
(Accumulated
Share-based losses)/
Share Capital payment  Contributed  Convertible Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus  note reserve profits Total
UkHE
-1 14 THRERE (RHER)/
KiridmE REGH e 1] BARR 1] RERT @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AR AR AR AR TAR TAR AR

At 1 April 2013 RZE-=#MmA-A 190,250 579,395 16,146 1,452 2,537 (29,822) 759,958
Issue of non-redeemable convertible  B47 A BB AT AR B S5 B

preference shares 114,958 - - - - - 114,958
Exercise of share options TRERE 11,761 - (427) - - - 11,334
Lapse of share options BRELN - - (74) = = 74 -
Profit for the year KEERR - - - - - 71,832 71,832
Dividend by way of a distribution ~~ HEBHNDRAXKA 2RE

in specie (Note 36) (B &E36) - (283,785) - - - - (283,785)

At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R=ZE-WE=A=1+-HK

“2-MENA-A 316,969 295,610 15,645 1,452 2,537 42,084 674,297
Exercise of share options (note )~ {THEEE AR (MizEb) 1,969 - (58) - - - 1,911
Lapse of share options BREXX = = (15,399) = = 15,399 =
Loss for the year REEER = = = = = (715,078) (715,078)
At 31 March 2015 R=2-ZE=A=+-H 318,938 295,610 188 1,452 2,537 (657,595) (38,870)
(@) The contributed surplus of the Company represents (@) ADBZHANBEHBIBEARDARER
the difference between the aggregate net assets of the —EE—FoREEHAME M
subsidiaries acquired by the Company under the group BARZAEEFEEARRD T U
reorganisation in 2001 and the nominal amount of the BRT2ROZEEMERIZE
Company'’s shares issued for the acquisition. o
(b) As at 31 March 2014, 3,900,000 post-listing share by RZE-—-DNE=ZBA=+—8"
options have been exercised to which ordinary shares 3,900,000f0 LR BIRIEC EITRE
have not been allotted. Those ordinary shares were MEBRTBEERE ZZZER
allotted in April 2014. ER—ZF—MEM AR

EERBEEEERAT
2014/2015 FE 3K 167



168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M SR ME

31 March 2015 =&

—HEF=A=+—H

20. RESERVES - continued

The Company - continued

(b)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
had no distributable reserves (including share premium,
capital reserve and retained profits/(accumulated
loss)) (2014: HK$654,663,000). Under the Companies
Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account of the Company is available
for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders
subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the distribution or dividend the Company
is able to pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, dividends shall be distributed
out of the retained profits or other reserves, including
the share premium account and capital reserve of the

Company.

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20. %% — 8
ENTE -

(b)

BE_T—hHF=A=1+—HLHF
B AARALEAMI KRR (2
EROGE EXARERREER
J(REER)) (ZE2—-—mEF:
654,663,000/87T) - RIEFAEFHS
DNEE (BIERT)HE228 £ A
AZEBERRARMABRRET
MBS IRKREBRABERE

EBEEERBEERBREPIHZE
o BIARDR 2RO EERRT LD
;‘Jﬁﬁiwﬁ,@ﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁfﬁiﬁ
ARABIZABERMA REEB
RARRBREFRH B (BF
BRPEERREREE) BT

21. R R HMEMSHRIRF

The Group The Company
F5E FoF

2015 2014 2015 2014
—if —Z-@0OF —if —Z-@OF
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
THERT TET THERT TET
Trade payables B 5 ENIE 189,619 204,136 - =
Bills payables EAEE 18,697 36,070 - =
Receipts in advance B R IE 17,410 22,989 - =
Accruals and other payables FExtE A & H it (S FRIE 61,623 47,064 4,090 2,940
287,349 310,259 4,090 2,940

Included in the Group’s accruals and other payables as at

31 March 2015 were deposits received from customers of
approximately HK$13,887,000 (2014: HK$16,117,000).

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - continued
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on

invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

21.

GEMBHRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

55 B Ffth FE £ 8 IR — 48
BT ARBEHRZE S AR
2 MRS A7

The Group
*xEH

2015 2014
—Z—hF —E-MF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHE T
0 to 90 days 0290H 123,096 137,660
91 to 180 days 91&180H 25,230 16,007
181 to 365 days 181&365H 14,510 19,058
Over 365 days HiB365H 26,783 31,411
189,619 204,136

The average credit period on purchases of certain goods is in

range from 30 to 90 days.

The bills payables will be matured within six months from the
end of the reporting period. The bills payables were secured
by certain pledged bank deposits. All the bills payables are
denominated in RMB.

BEETERZFHEEHRRN F30AH
£90H -
ENRERNREHRETNEBREH -
BNREUE TERFRITERERE
H-FERNRBIIUARBERE-

22. BANK BORROWINGS 22, RITEE
The Group
T5E
2015 2014
—F-Ef —ZT-@NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F#E T
Bank borrowings — secured RITEE -—FIEA (xR D))
(Notes (a) and (b)) 121,454 88,088
EEREEEEFROAF

2014/2015 FE 3R
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GEMBREWE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

22. BANK BORROWINGS - continued

22. BITHE—&

The Group
F%E
2015 2014
“e-RF —E2—@mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR
Carrying amount repayable: BEERTEHE:
Within one year shown under —FR - FTARBAE
current liabilities 121,454 88,088

Notes:

As at 31 March 2015, the secured bank borrowings of
approximately HK$121,454,000 (2014: approximately
HK$62,920,000) carries variable interest rate ranging from
7.28% to 9.00% (2014: 7.78% to 8.40%) per annum.

And at at 31 March 2014, secured bank borrowings of
approximately HK$25,168,000 carries fixed interest rate at
8.10% per annum.

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the secured bank borrowings
were secured by prepaid lease payments and investment
properties (Note 37), and were secured by corporate
guarantee by inter-group company.

The carrying amount of the Group’s bank borrowings are all
denominated in RMB.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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RZEBE-—RF=A=+—0 FEKHFE
TEEN121,454,0008 T (=ZF— M
F :#962,920,000/8T) JI AN F7.28E
ZI.00E (== —MF:7.78E £8.40
E)z A ERRGFE -

MR-ZZE-—NE=A=+—HB 5EH
$R 4T & 925,168,000 7T J3 LL8.10/E
ZEEERNRGT B -

R-E—RFR-ZE-—NF=R=+—
B ERFRTEEDAEAFEESRK
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23.

24.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders are unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

CONVERTIBLE NOTE

On 9 May 2007, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital of Hero Vision at a consideration of HK$157,300,000,
of which HK$33,000,000 was satisfied by the issue of
convertible note (the “Convertible Note”). The Convertible
Note initially matures at the second anniversary of the issue
date. On 8 May 2009, the maturity date of Convertible
Note was extended from 8 May 2009 to 9 May 2017. The

conversion price per share was HK$1.90.

The Convertible Note contains three components,
redemption option, liability and equity elements. The
equity element is presented in equity heading “Convertible
note reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability

component is 10.97%.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using
a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond. The residual amount, representing the value of the
equity conversion component, was included in shareholders’

equity in convertible note reserve.

23.

24.

e MBRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

FEf IR R Z R IF

BAFERRR 2RESERR REK
RREREE-

CIE: Y& 3

R-ZZLFREAIA - AEEURE
157,300,000 T WIBE S 2 HERTR
78> R {E 33,000,000 T 2 E BT H]
BEREE (TTRREE]) XS8R
EERBITHREAMBEIREIR-
RZZZAFEREANA TEREEZZ
HECH-_ZEZTAFHEANBEEZC
Z—tERANA -BREKRER1.90%

JC ©

THRRZERERDRER AERER
=My -EHMONERRTRREE
EEIET2M BEHRI 2EBRNERE
10.97[E °

BERDZRAFEDUAEEFRTRKRE
FemENEAE RN SEAREER
B 2BE DFATRREERZBZR
REmA

EERBEEEERAT
2014/2015 FE 3K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

24. CONVERTIBLE NOTE - continued

The Convertible Note recognised in the consolidated

24, "I RE &
REAHBRRERI > TREBEE>

statement of financial position was calculated as follows: STEmMT
The Group
and the
Company
TREAR
r. /|
HK$'000
FHET
Fair value of Convertible Note issued RIEZELFHEANBBTZABRREEZ
on 9 May 2007 NEE 54,750
Derivative financial instruments PTHESRIA 514
Equity component BRI (25,125)
Liability component on initial recognition and  #IZEREZEEHLIRRZZEZTLF
amortised cost at 9 May 2007 FANHEZ#ERA 30,139
Amortised cost at 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=FMA—HZBHHALK 4,627
Interest expense FIERZ 515
Interest payable EARIE (130)
Amortised cost at 31 March 2014 and RZE—NOF=A=+—HBER=ZZ—0OF
1 April 2014 MA— B Z#HEKA 5,012
Interest expense FEREX 550
Interest payable FE A3 R 2. (130)

At 31 March 2015 R-_E—AR¥E=H=+—H 5,432

As at 31 March 2015, the outstanding principal amount of
Convertible Note was HK$6,500,000 (2014: HK$6,500,000).

Interest expense on the convertible note is calculated using
the effective interest method by applying the effective

interest rate of 10.97% to the liability component.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

25. PROMISSORY NOTE 25. ZARFRE
On 8 March 2010, the Company issued promissory R-ZZ-—ZFE=ANB KAFETLE
note (the “Promissory Note”) in a principal amount of £§290,000,000 B TR —_E_ZF =
HK$290,000,000 due on 7 March 2020. The Promissory BtBEMzELERE ([EAAEE]) -
Note was issued for acquiring the entire issued share capital AREEDARBEEERARAZRE
of Nurture Fit Limited and bear interest at 1% per annum, BAORAMBIT REMNRI1EFE > 8F
payable semi-annually in arrears. The effective interest rate is FRE—IR - BERFERIE-
3%.
The Group
and the
Company
*RER
b 3/
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2013 A—ZE—=#1 3 —H 192,635
Interest expense FE R X 3,963
Interest payable EARE (1,506)
Redemption during the year FREE (123,731)
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R=-Z-NFE=A=+—HERK
—E-NFEMA—H 71,361
Interest expense FERZ 2,151
Interest payable EARE (800)
At 31 March 2015 R-2—1F=R=+—H 72,712
SERREMERAT 173
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBREWE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

25. PROMISSORY NOTE - continued
During the year ended 31 March 2015, none of the
Promissory Note (2014: HK$140,000,000) was early
redeemed by the Company.

As at 31 March 2015, the outstanding principal of
the Promissory Note was HK$80,000,000 (2014:
HK$80,000,000).

26. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax balances recognised

and movements thereon during the current and prior year:

25.

26.

EARRE-#&
REBE-ZE-—AF=A=1t—HLFE:
AABWEIZREEALEE (= —10
£ 1140,000,00058 7T ) °

R-E-—REFE=A=+—RH EREE>
i REEARELEEA80,000,000/87T (==
— P94 : 80,000,000 7T ) °

i 5E 1R IR
AT BAEERBEEEER> X 5E
ERAGHBRET 2B

Deferred tax liabilities: BERMFAR:
Convertible
note
CIE: Y38
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2013 A—E—=%1A—H 490
Credited to profit or loss (Note 33) s ABE (MIFE33) (64)

At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R=-Z-NFE=A=+—HRK
“E-mFMA—H 426
Credited to profit or loss (Note 33) sTAEE (MFE33) (69)
At 31 March 2015 BR-E—ARAfF=A=+—H 357
174 HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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GEMBHREMEE

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

26. DEFERRED TAXATION - continued 26. EFERIA — 18
Deferred tax liabilities: — continued BIERFAAR: — &
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for UTHAUMB2HRENmMET ZIELER
financial reporting purposes: LR
2015 2014
“B—1F —E-MmEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET
Deferred tax assets EERIBERE - =
Deferred tax liabilities BELEBIBERE (357) (426)

(357) (426)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the RBEHR AEERAATZAREAB
Company has unutilised tax losses of approximately FE1E 2 B#39,868,000/8 T (=& — M
HK$39,868,000 (2014: HK$39,091,000) and nil (2014: nil) f:39,091,0008 T) RE(=ZF -
respectively available to set off against future assessable FE) A AFIK SRR ER B Al o B
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect REERBEBR ZHME A R Z R HKiaF
of the unutilised tax losses due to the unpredictability of R B A AR B R R B R S 1R
future profits streams of the subsidiaries which incurred the BRELEMEEE ZEBEBHIEEER
tax losses. These tax losses in Hong Kong may be carried BROLGERTESEBIETRERES
forward indefinitely and the tax losses in PRC may be expired A 2Hf o
within five years.
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Post-listing share options

Pursuant to the post-listing share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 20 April 2002, the Company may grant
options at HK$1 per offer to any director, employee, any
supplier of goods or services, any customer, any person or
entity that provides research, development or other technical
support or any shareholder of the Group or any investee or
any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any investee, for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to them, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the post-listing share option scheme shall
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. No participant shall be granted an option,
if exercise in full, would result in the total number of shares
already issued under all the options granted to him or her
that are for the time being subsisting and unexercised in
any 12-month period would exceed 1% of the total number
of shares in issue. The exercise price of the share will be
determined at the higher of the average of closing prices of
the shares on the Stock Exchange on the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options; the
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant; and the nominal value of the shares. The share
options are exercisable for a period not later than 10 years
from the date of grant.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

Post-listing share options - continued

The Company also adopted a new share option scheme
(the “New Share Option Scheme”) on 10 August 2011,
the Company may grant options not less than the highest
of (1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; (2) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant; and (3) the nominal value
of the share on the date of grant to any employee of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries including any executive
and non-executive directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, and any suppliers, consultants, agents and
advisers or any person who, in the sole discretion of the
Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group.
The total numbers of shares may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the relevant class of shares in issue from time to time.
No options may be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company
if this will result in this limit being exceeded. Any grant of
options to a connected person (including but not limited
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder)
or its associates must be approved by the independent
nonexecutive directors (excluding any independent
nonexecutive director who is the grantee of the options).
No participant shall be granted an option, if exercise in full,
would result in the total number of share issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to him or her
that for the time being subsisting and unexercised in any
12-month period would exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue. The share options are exercisable for a period
not later than 10 years from the date of grant but subject to

the early termination of the New Share Option Scheme.

GEMBHRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H
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GEMBRERWE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

Post-listing share options — continued

27. iRRR MRt B4R
M E &

Details of the movements in the number of share options

during the year are as follows:

Number of share options
BEENE
Outstanding Granted ‘Exercised  Adjustment Llapsed  Outstanding Exercise
at 1 April during during during during  at 31 March Date of price Exercise
Type of participants 2014 the year the year the year the year 2015 grant per share period
RZE-ME RZZ-1%
2a% HA-A R HER E3 % ZBZt-H 14
b RFRTE Rt fiE HE %% RFTE RHAM fiEm T
Directors
s
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong 1,700,000 - - - - 1,700,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
SEREE “EENE 058n ZBBAEAR=1RHEZ
=R=+H ZE-AEZAZTAA
Mr. Zheng Gang 2,814,084 - - - (2,814,084) - 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
BRA%E “E-%F 1128n —B-BF=A-+=AZ
ZAtNE “E-RE=A-+tZH
Mr. Chen Jin Shan 2,084,507 - - - (2,084,507) - 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
CEAIp S Z2-2f% 1.128n “B-S£=B-1=ZRE
=Bt/ “2-RFZf-tZH
Dr. Jiang Tao 800,000 - - - - 800,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
ERft “EENE 05T ZEEAEAAZTAE
SHEH “E-hE=f=thE
1,563,380 - - - (1,563,380) - 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
Z2-2f% 1128n —B-BFZA-+ZREZ
=A+NR —E-RF=fA-+ZH
Dr. Huang Jiaging 312,676 - - - (312,676) - 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
EMERLE ZF-%f% 1128n —B-BF=A-+=AZ
ZAtNE “E-1%ZA-+tZH

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

GEMBHRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

27. iRRR MRt B4R

Post-listing share options - continued Tk
Number of share options
BkENA
Outstanding Granted fExercised  Adjustment Lapsed  Outstanding Exercise
at 1 April during during during during  at31March Date of price Exercise
Type of participants 2014 the year the year the year the year 2015 grant per share period
RIS-OF RZS-1%F
$HZE mA-A R HER R " ZBZt-H 14
b RFTE R fifE ] %% CESH RIHAM iR s
Employees 459,739 = - - - 459,739 13 July 2006 HK$3.61 13 July 2006 to
12 July 2016
&8 “BERE 3618 —BREAFLATZAZE
tA+=A “Z-XEtAtZR
1,042,253 - - - - 1,042,253 21 Mar 2007 HK$2.94 21 March 2007 to
20 March 2017
it 2 29487 “EELEZAZT-HE
Ef=r=F “B-tE=A-tH
450,000 - - - - 450,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
“E2ENE 05%% ZBEAEAAZTAZ
ZA=tH ZE-AEZA=thA
21,574,648 = = - (21,574,648) - 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
“2-%f 1128 —E-ZF=f=+ZRE
=RtNB “E2-RE=A-1ZH
32,801,287 = = - (28,349,295) 4,451,992
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.49 - HK$0.19 - HK$0.50 HK$1.16
NETHTEE 0497 0.19%5% 0.50%7 11687

As at 31 March 2014, 3,900,000 post-listing share options have
been exercised to which ordinary shares have not been allotted.

Those ordinary shares were allotted in April 2014. There was no

post-listing share options have been exercised during the year ended

31 March 2015.

R-ZZE—ME=A=+—H" 3,900,000 £
TAIBRECSETEMERERZEER &
LLBEREBZER-_T-—NENARZE -HZE
—E-HF=A=+—HBLEFE BMELTE
EREETE

EEBREEEERAT
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er

31 March 2015 =&

R kR E

—HEF=A=+—H

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

Post-listing share options — continued

The post-listing share options outstanding at 31 March 2015

had weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.24
(2014: 1.42) years.

Notes:

(i)

(if)

The Group recognises the fair value of share options granted
as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income when they were granted
with a corresponding increase being recognised in share-
based payment reserve. The employee share-based payment
reserve is transferred to share capital and share premium,
together with the exercise price, when the option holder
exercises its rights. As a transitional provision, the cost of
share option granted after 7 November 2002 and had not
yet vested on 1 January 2005 were expensed retrospectively
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the respective periods. During
the year ended 31 March 2015, nil (2014 nil) share-based
payment expenses were recognised.

The estimated fair value of each option granted on 13 July
2006, 24 July 2006, 21 March 2007, 30 March 2009, 18
March 2010 and 30 December 2011 are approximately
HK$0.226, HK$0.0188, HK$0.0384, range from HK$0.012
to HK$0.021, range from HK$0.036 to HK$0.062 and
HK$0.0058 respectively.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

Post-listing share options — continued
Notes: — continued

(iii)

(iv)

The fair values were calculated using the Binomial Option
Pricing Model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

GEMBHRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

27. iRRR MRt B4R

L MR — 48
MisE: —
(i) AFEDA-EXMEEEEXHE -

HZEXBAZERNT

Share option grant date

WRERHAY
13 July 24 July 21 March 30 March 18 March 30 December
2006 2006 2007 2009 2010 2011
ZEZRE ZEERE =t 1 245 =t 1 kS 2% 2§
Date of grant i A& tA+=A +tA-+WMA Z=A=+-H ZA=+H ZAt+NB +ZA=tH
Stock asset price HK$0.83 HK$0.82 HK$0.51 HK$0.03 HK$0.098 HK$0.128
RHEEE 0835 082%7 05157 0.03%7 0.098% 7 0.128% 7
Exercise price HK$0.627 HK$0.62 HK$0.51 HK$0.05 HK$0.117 HK$0.160
TEE 062757 0.62% 7 05157 0.05% 7 0.117%7 0.160% 7
Expected volatility 57.06% 44.89% 119.62% 100.13% 95.53% 53.02%
RHRE
Risk-free rate 3.984% 3.830% 3.682% 1.62% 1.68% 0.25%
ERBEXE
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
EHREER

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected
share price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily
prices over the one year immediately preceding the grant
date. The above calculation is based on the assumption that
there is no material difference between the expected volatility
over the whole life of the options and the historical volatility
of the shares set out as above.

Because the Binomial Option Pricing Model requires the input
of highly subjective assumptions, including the volatility of
share price, changes in subjective input assumptions can

materially affect the fair value estimate.

As at 31 March 2015, 4,451,992 (2014: 32,801,287) share
options are exercisable.

(iv)

ERMRELD R BRERESEZKE
DRBESZERH AN -—F2EHERH
B LR ELRERBRESN
HAZERRER RS ZROESE
RIE 2 =B IFERBRR -

HR-EAREEERATESEEZE
2B BERDERZKE  MEBR
R2BEARERNGE N FENME -

R-ZE-—RAF=RA=+—H AFTE
ZBERAESE 54,451,992 (=2 —Y
£ 32,801,2874%) °
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GEMBRERWE

31 March 2015 = E—HRF=H=+—H

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

Post-listing share options - continued
Notes: — continued

(v)  In accordance with the terms of share-based arrangement, the
share options granted on 30 March 2009 are exercisable in
the following manner:

(@ up to 40% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 30 September
2009 to 30 March 2010;

(b)  up to further 30% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 31 March 2010
to 30 March 2011; and

(c)  all the remaining 30% of the share options granted to
each grantee shall be exercisable on or after 31 March
2011 to 30 March 2013, and in each case, not later
than 29 March 2019.

(vi)  In accordance with the terms of share-based arrangement, the
share options granted on 18 March 2011 are exercisable in
the following manner:

(@ up to 40% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 23 March 2010
to 22 March 2011;

(b)  up to further 20% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 23 March 2011
to 22 March 2012;

(¢)  up to further 20% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 23 March 2012
to 22 March 2013; and

(d)  all the remaining 20% of the share options granted to
each grantee shall be exercisable on or after 23 March
2013 to 22 March 2014, and in each case, not later
than 22 March 2015.

'I 82 HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28. TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE 28.

Turnover represents the aggregate of the net invoiced value
received and receivable from third parties in connection with
the retail and wholesale and distribution of pharmaceutical
products, provision of general hospital services and
healthcare and hospital management services, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts. An analysis of
the Group's turnover and other revenue is as follows:—

GEMBRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

EXARAMG R
EXEERTERBMBRIHENAR
BHGAHBRRERBARERER
RBCURERE=H 2 FREEER
HONBRRERESNE) AEEZ
EEARAMBEZHFMT

2015 2014
—E—-1fF —E-HEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHETT F#& T
Turnover: SEH:
Retail of pharmaceutical and related ZYRHBEERZE
products 220,762 238,100
Wholesale and distribution of BYIREBEERERDH
pharmaceutical and related products 1,345,507 1,854,374
Provision of general hospital services RMUESHEERRS 214,040 150,685
1,780,309 2,243,159
Other revenue: Hthdr -
Bank interest income RTRE WA 1,529 925
Realised gain on financial assets at RATEEBERIEZ
fair value through profit or loss MR EEZ2E2BR N - 117
Loan interest income ERFE WA 2,610 2,390
Rental income HEWA 2,511 2,373
Exhibition income BElA 1 2,816
Sundry income HETE U A 2,851 1,637
9,502 10,258
Other gain, net: Httly & B8
Exchange gain [ 5, U 6 =
Gain on disposal of property, plant and ~ HEWE - BEKZE 2 W
equipment 4 299
Change in fair value of derivative TESMI A AR EEZS
financial instruments (100) 315
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in & 5 Rk E BN FRIBERER 2
respect of trade and other receivables REEERE 818 746
Change in fair value of REMEATFERZH
investment properties (252) -
476 1,360
ZEEBREBEAERAA

2014/2015 FE 3R
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GEBHREMSE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

29.

(LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 29. BEXRY (BR/) E#
(Loss)/profit from operations has been arrived at after SR (R, ORR TSR T HE
charging: BREN:
2015 2014
“E-AfF C—E2—NmF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT FET
Directors’ remuneration (Note 30) EE=ME (HEE30) 4,210 2,739
Other staffs’ retirement benefits Hh & T 2R INEFFH B
scheme contributions 12,185 10,399
Other staff costs Hib& T RA 102,681 86,369
119,076 99,507
Auditors’ remuneration ZE BN &
— audit services — &t IR 1,300 1,300
- non-audit services —EETRE - 2,169
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FHEZREMENRIERRZ
trade and other receivables WEEE 5,317 1,863
Cost of inventories sold EEFEHE 1,459,734 1,944,985
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  ¥& {0 & 7k 78 # 85 1,257 1,257
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BRERZEINE
equipment
- owned by the Group -HAEEEE 14,678 10,551
Impairment loss on goodwill BEBEEE 785,169 -
Operating lease rentals in respect of land BETHREF2LLHEHS
and buildings 35,987 23,160
Loss on early redemption of promissory  REEE& K ZIE 2 EE
note - 16,269

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration of every director for the years ended 31
March 2015 and 2014 are set out below:

Salaries and
Fees other benefits
ﬁﬁ_&
g s
2015 2014 2015 2014

Z2-1F -E-QNE ZE-IF C—E-QF
HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER ThR TR

30.

GEMBHRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

EENe
FREENBE-_E-OFER-B-WF
ZAZt+-ALEFEZHFHBERRGID

T:
Retirement
Share-based benefits scheme
payment expenses contributions Total
URhEeER BHRT
fREX HEER i
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
-1 -E-mE ZB-If -E-Mf -1 -—E2-M%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET TiEx TET TER

Executive directors BITER
Yung Kwok Leong SES ([§%£])
("Mr. Yung") (resigned (R=B-1F
on 20 April 2015) MA=+HEE) - - 720 720 - - 18 15 738 735
Chen Jin Shan (resigned on ~ R& 1 (R=E-ME
10 October 2014) TA+HEHE) - - 32 60 - - - - 32 60
Jiang Tao %= - = 1,560 360 - = 5 = 1,565 360
Zheng Gang it - = 1,366 1,085 - = 18 15 1,384 1,100
Huang Jiaging SmE - - 120 120 - - - - 120 120
- - 3,798 2,345 - - 4 30 3,839 2,375
Non-executive directors ~ FH{TER
Wong Yu Man, James INR - - 120 120 - - 6 6 126 126
Tang Xun (appointed BA(RZZ-1F
on 10 March 2015) =R+ HEZHE) - - 5 - - - - - 5 -
- - 125 120 - - 6 6 131 126
Independent non- BUERTES
executive directors
Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne EEZ 120 118 - - - - - - 120 118
Hu Shanlian HE 60 60 - - - - - - 60 60
Lu Chuanzhen REE 60 60 - - - - - - 60 60
240 238 - - - - - - 240 238
240 238 3,923 2,465 - - 47 36 4,210 2,739

During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, the
executive director of the Company, Mr. Yung was also the
chief executive officer of the Company.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors or chief executive officer as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the directors or chief executive officer has
waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during the
year (2014: Nil).

BE-_E-—HER-_ZE-—NE=B=1+—
ALEEE ARAZHTESHEETS
AR ZITHARE -

RAFE AEEYEOEERTETH
ABXNME ARSI EMBREERES
MBRSNBEBEE REESHER]T
BHAEBRAFERREMAHE (=N
FE) -

EEBRBEEEERAT
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GEaBHREMSE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

31. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 31. EEEM&

Senior management emoluments and five highest
paid employees

The five highest paid individuals during the year included
three (2014: two) directors. Details of whose remuneration
are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial

statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the details of the
remuneration of the remaining two (2014: three) non-

directors, highest paid employees are as follows:

ERETEARHERIBESHESR

FRAEEBRSHBAARE=8(=ZZ—X
FMB)ES - HEZHMEFHERSE
BB HRERMEE30

BE—_Z-—RAF=A=1+—HILFE &
THME(ZE—NF =Z=R)FEEZH
SHEECHMEFBNT

2015 2014

—E—-AF —E—OF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THB T

Basic salaries and allowances BEAREH & NIERL 1,310 1,901
Retirement benefits scheme EARBRIFTEIHI

contributions 38 45

1,348 1,946

The number of these non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as

follows:

HWEBRTIHHEBE2ZEHESZHES
HESAH:

2015 2014
—E—hF —E—-F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,0005 T 2 3

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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GEMBFHREMEE

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

31. EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS - continued 31. EEM& —1&

Senior management emoluments and five highest EREBEAEMERLEEEFHFES
paid employees - continued — &
The emoluments of the senior management (excluding RRAZBREBAE (FEREEE)Z
directors) of the Company are within the following band. MEBRN TS EHE -
2015 2014

—E—1%F —E-mF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 1 1
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to RAEE AEEVENSHREEAES
the senior management or the five highest paid individuals AEESHALT NS UK H N
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as REBREAMBES R BBHE-

compensation for loss of office.

None of the senior management or the five highest BESHEEAESIEZEREFALIR
paid individuals has waived or has agreed to waive any TEEEHRESRERERAME (=F
emoluments during the year (2014: Nil). —[HE ) o
32. FINANCE COSTS 32. MERH
2015 2014
—E—1%F —E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH#T TExT
Interest on: LUTIEE ZFE:
— interest expenses on bank -~ ARAFERE2HEEZ
borrowings wholly repayable RITEE2FERX
within five years 8,819 6,015
— interest expenses on convertible -~ ABRBREE2FEMAX
note 550 515
— interest expenses on promissory —EAREBZRNERX
note 2,151 3,963
11,520 10,493
SERREDERAT 187
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31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

33. TAXATION 33.

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements for the year as the Group
has no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong (2014: Nil).
Provision on profits assessable elsewhere has been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations

and practices in respect thereof.

MR

AEENDZEERAAEEXRE AR AHE
RRER+REELERREZAELER
ZENBEEYRMEH - ARAEEL
BERERELERRBEN (ZF—HF:
2) AETERFAFEFSUBRRA
REBRNEBELERE HbE 2 BR
BORNDRBEAREEBAEER2HA
Eh REREMZREMRTHERTE

2015 2014
—E—1%F —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTET
Current taxation: BN EARR IR :
Provision for the year KEERE
— The PRC — AR 10,736 25,746
Under provision in prior year: FFEREBETR:

— The PRC —FE 122 1,151
Withhold tax paid [EERREEE - 2,383
Deferred tax during the year (Note 26)  FRIEFEFR B (HfzE26) (69) (64)

10,789 29,216

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31 March 2015 = &—H&E=H=+—H

33. TAXATION - continued

The tax charge for the year is reconciled to the profit before

33. R4

AEEREXHEGSBEERAMEE

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2015

U 34 5% B S BRBEAT R 2 R A0 T

BE_Z—AF=RA=+—HLEE

Hong Kong the PRC Total
ik hE - hy
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TET % THET % THET %
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBLAT (B598) & (805,197) 33,802 (771,395)
Tax at applicable income tax rate RERREHEGEZHE (132,858) 16.5 8,451 25.0  (124,407) 16.1
Tax effect of expenses and income AAHMHR B AN 2
not deductible or taxable for tax AXRRAZHETE
purposes 129,566 (16.1) 1,750 5.2 131,316 (17.0)
Under-provision in prior year BEFERETR - - 122 0.4 122 (0.1)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FRERFBEFBE2HEFE 3,223 (0.4) 535 16 3,827 (0.4)
Tax credit/charge and effective tax AEEHERR/ZHK
rate for the year BRF=E (69) - 10,858 322 10,789 1.4
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLEFE
Hong Kong the PRC Total
BB HE @it
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TEx % TiET % TERT %
(Loss)/profit before taxation BBA (F58) ORF (38,885) 105,555 66,670
Tax at applicable income tax rate BEAMEHETE2HE (6,416) 16.5 26,389 25.0 19,973 30.0
Tax effect of expenses and income FAHHRBERB 2
not deductible or taxable for tax RAIRBAZHBEZE
purposes 3,804 ©.8) (569) 05 323 49
Under-provision in prior year BEFERERR - - 1,151 1.1 1,151 1.7
PRC withholding tax paid BHREENE 2,383 6.1) - - 2,383 35
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  KRERRBEER 2 HBESE 2,548 (6.6) (74) (0.1) 2,474 3.7
Tax charge and effective tax rate for ~ AEEHBX HRBBRBE
the year 2,319 (6.0) 26,897 25.5 29,216 43.8
EEEBEEARA A
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33. TAXATION - continued

The National People’s Congress which was concluded on
16 March 2007, the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law was
approved and became effective from 1 January 2008. The
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law introduces a wide range of
changes which include, but are not limited to, the unification
of the income tax rates for domestic-invested and foreign-

invested enterprises at 25%.

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, starting
from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding income tax will
be imposed on dividend relating to profits earned by the
companies established in the PRC in the calendar year
2008 onwards to their foreign shareholders. For investors
incorporated in Hong Kong which hold at least 25% of
equity interest of those PRC companies, a preferential rate of
5% will be applied. The Group has applied the preferential
rate of 5% as the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are directly
held by an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. No deferred tax has been provided for in respect
of the temporary differences attributable to such profits as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHREMSE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

33. R4

RZEZELF=ZA+ASABERNZEA
RRRAEG FECEMSHRLIERSB
WH-IZENF-—F—AREN - FED
EFBHESIA—RIINE  BFEETR
REBEBRRERNMELENAESRESR
—525% °

REFEEEFRERE BB N\F—
A—RE BEREFERINITE=
SEENFEFERMAOEN N EEN
REH RSB 10%WTFEMFTSH - H R
EEBEMALEFEAEZEFELAE
DR RENREE  BERSPNWEE
BRE -ARAKEETENHWELRHDH
—HEEEBEMALNREZRATE
BER MAKER %BNEERZHM
BiIH - N AR BB B 2 HI B 0 iy =
FEAVEFR - AR AT RERA o] R A8 SR B
RE MU BRZERFEIE 2 ERFE
BAFHIEER HE M -
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34. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO 34. EATFIHE AW (5518) i@
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY #

BE-ZE-—HF=A=+—HIEFEE"

B8 F4849715,078,0008 T (=& — 1

For the year ended 31 March 2015, net loss of approximately
HK$715,078,000 (2014: net profit of approximately

HK$71,832,000) has been dealt with in the financial FRAFEELT1,832,0008 7T) B RAK
statements of the Company. NAZ A ERKREIE
35. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 35. BBk (5R) &F

AARBEEARESREAREE (B
8) /BRTRBEUT BEFE:

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per

share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on

the following data:

2015 2014
—2-A1F —E-MmF
HK$'000 HK$’000
TH#T FEx
(Loss)/earnings (B]R) 287
(Loss)/profit for the purpose of basic AU ESREARBERR 2
and diluted earnings per share (E18) aF
— (Loss)/profit for the year —NNFEE AEL
attributable to the owners of the REE (FB) &R
Company (505,581) 21,913

No. of shares

No. of shares

K& E B% 19 1 B
‘000 ‘000
TB% T8
Weighted average number of ordinary FAUFTEERELRBA 2
shares for the purpose of basic BRI E
earnings per share
— Ordinary shares in issue —-ERITEER 1,186,354 1,103,672
— Preference shares in issue —ERTELER 573,693 336,096
Weighted average number of ordinary FAUFESREAREERER 2
shares for the purpose of basic and R R g
diluted earnings per share 1,760,047 1,439,768
ZEEBREBEERAA
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35. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE - continued
For the year ended 31 March 2015, the calculation of
diluted earnings per share did not assume the exercise of the
Convertible Note and outstanding share options under the
New Share Option Scheme existed at 31 March 2015 as the
exercise of the Convertible Note and the post-listing share
options would decrease the loss per share, and therefore are

anti-dilutive.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the calculation of
diluted earnings per share did not assume the exercise of the
Convertible Note and outstanding share options under the
New Share Option Scheme existed at 31 March 2014 as the
exercise of the Convertible Note and the post-listing share
options would increase the earnings per share, and therefore

are anti-dilutive.

35. BBk (EHR) BF -\
BE-_Z-—AF=RA=+—HLEFE &
EEREERABIEBRTERA=S
—AF=A=1+—HEGFEZTERE
BRIBREAEETZERTERER
B RTETRREER LT RBRES
SEREETR EMERREELE-

BE-_Z-NE=RA=+—HLFE &
EEREERABITEBRITEA=S
—MNE=A=1+—HEEFEZTERARE
BRFBREAEETHRITEZER
B RTETRREER LT RBRES
SERBAEM EMERRBETE-

36. DIVIDENDS 36. &2
2015 2014
—h5F —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Dividend recognised as distribution REEBRIBDRZBE
during the year
2014/15 special interim dividend of —E-NE/ -AFEERHRHRE
HK$Nil per share BREET - 283,785
On 16 August 2013, a conditional special interim dividend RZZE—=F\A+ B BESE2ERE

was declared by the Board to be satisfied through a
distribution in species by the Company of approximately
36.47% of the issued share capital of the Wanjia Group after
the capitalisation and reorganisation, subject to the spin-off
condition (that is the listing sub-committee of the board of
the Stock Exchange granting the listing of, and permission to
deal in, the shares of Wanjia Group on the Stock Exchange)
(the "Distributions”).

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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36. DIVIDENDS - continued 36. kB —#&
The listing approval was obtained on 10 October 2013, FHHEER=ZZE—=F+A+HEE:
and on the same date, approximately 36.47% of the shares BEEERMDZ2836.47%ERED RN
of Wanjia Group were distributed to the owners of the BHDRKFARARZEEA MEZEE
Company pursuant to the Distributions and the shares of ZRMER—_ZE—=F5T+A+—HEH
Wanjia Group were listed on the Main Board of the Stock RPrERL

Exchange on 11 October 2013.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final ESETERKNEBEE-_ZE—HF=H
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil). =t+—HEFEEzZRBERE(ZZ—@O
F/E)o
37. PLEDGED ASSETS 37. EEHEE

At the end of the reporting period, the followings assets RBEHR THEEEARTAEEZ

were pledged to secure the Group’s banking facilities: SRATRLE M T A4 o

The Group
*£E
2015 2014
—E—1Lf —E—OF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET T
Pledged bank deposits (Note 18) SR IFRITER (KFEE18) 12,970 17,431
Prepaid lease payments (Note 8) AR EFE (MFES) 1,909 1,979
Investment properties (Note 9) REWE (KEE9) 8,093 8,306
22,972 27,716
ZEEBREBEAERAA 193
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38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group were committed to make the following future
minimum lease payments in respect of land and buildings
rented under non-cancellable operating leases with lease

terms from one year to ten years which fall due as follows:

38. EEHARE
AR E BRI T b RAEF 2 T T B8
EEBE AMA—FE+F)TAMT
ARBEESHRREME :

The Group
F5E

2015 2014
Ze—-AfF C—E2—QmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within one year —F R 39,054 19,492
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_EZhFE (BEEEWE) 69,350 29,450
Over five years BB AT 62,417 2,613
170,821 51,555

39. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(@) On 10 April 2013, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with Mr. Yung, pursuant to
which, Mr. Yung has agreed to subscribe for and
the Company has agreed to issue 504,201,680 non-
redeemable convertible preference shares (the “Second
Batch CPSs”) at the total issue price of HK$120 million
to set off against HK$120 million principal amount
of the Promissory Note. The Second Batch CPSs were
issued on 10 October 2013.

(b) A special dividend, by way of a distribution in specie
of approximately 36.47% of the issued share capital of
Wanjia Group after the Reorganisation at HK$1.20 per
share upon its separate listing on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, of approximately HK$283,785,000
was distributed on 10 October 2013 (Note 36).

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

39. EBLERH

(@ R=-ZE—=FNMA+H AAFH
SEETURBHZE B $
AERERBMAATCEERLT
504,201,680 7~ 1] f& @ 7] #2 AR (2
ER(TE-#HATBRRELR]) £
3% 1718%5120,000,00058 7T - LAIK 84
A ZEYE 27K £ %8120,000,0005%
T BE—HATBRREERER=-ZF
—=f+A+B%T

by ZEZBEYIRBEESEEREALZ
ZEBITRAN3IC47T%H AR
HR BT ERE L R A
ZEBRI20BT2HRPEHRE
283,785,000 TER=—ZE— =
+ A+ Bk (KizE36) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS - continued

(c) On 1 September 2014, Fuzhou Jiahui Enterprise
Management Consultancy Limited (“Fuzhou Jiahui”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary (the “Purchaser”),
entered into the agreement with the vendors in
respect of acquisition of Zhuhai Jiulong, pursuant to
which the Purchaser has agreed to acquire (i) the Sale
Capital of Fuzhou Huikang, together with its wholly-
owned subsidiary Jiulong Hospital Company Limited
(the “Target Group”) and (ii) a loan of approximately
RMB37,941,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$47,707,000). The consideration is satisfied by the
Purchaser assuming all the payment obligations and
the liabilities of the loan instead and in the place of
the vendors. Upon completion on 4 September 2014,
Zhuhai Jiulong is wholly and beneficially owned by
the Group. For details, please refer to the Company

announcement dated 1 September 2014.

40. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of trustee. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme,
which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

GEMBRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

39. KB/ H 1R

(0 R=ZZE—HNFEhA—B —EEE
2EMBARBMNEELXER
BABRAR([BMNEE] (B
B EESFRUEBIRE AT LI
B B - BEFEREMER
WEOBMNERZHERE  BEF
H2EMBARKENE ([BEE
B R(HERYAR37,941,000
7t (BBERK47,707,0008 7T) °
REBAESTBRRARKEE S RIE
EXzENREEREEZFR
TfR-R=ZFT-—NFEAANARTER
BBKBAEDHAEEZ2EES
BE -FEFE B2HALFREH
ARZE-NMFELA—HZOfe

40. Btk ¥ 5t &

AEEABE2REERESRIBY
MAEETE ([518]) B zEER
FEEEESRER  FABHRBEARE
HZEEZ - AEERBBEFMEAS%ME
SRR BETSEHERER

ARRPEMWEQRZEERPEBF
BECERERRNBATEKE - ALQ
AZHENBARRRFMEIZET
B 70 tb B3R R 48 R 5T 8 SRR BLER Y R K
BA - AEEBRKERNE 2 —FME
RIRBEEMEHTT MR

EEBRBEEEERAT
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31 March 2015 = E—HRF=H=+—H

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
during the year, the Group had entered into the following
transactions with related parties which, in the opinion of
the directors, were carried out in the ordinary course of the

Group's business:

(a) Key management personnel
Remuneration for key personnel management

represented amount paid to the Company’s directors as

41. EXREALRS

BREaMBREAMHIFEZIRER
BERNFARAEEBEBAEALET
TIRZ ESRB ZEXZIRAEAE
Bz RAEXBBREPET:

(a) ¥EEEBEAR
FTEEBASHFMIEXNTALA
ESCEB (FREARME30) M

detailed in Note 30 as follows: i
2015 2014
—E—1hf —E-OF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET F&ET
Short-term employee benefits EHEERER 4,210 2,739
Share-based payment expenses URHAERMARZEX - =
4,210 2,739

(b) Mr. Yung Kwok Leong is a substantial shareholder
of ultimate holding company, he has entered into a
personal guarantee agreement on 14 March 2014
with China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited to secure
banking facilities on behalf of the Group in aggregate
amount of RMB10,000,000 for one and half years,
and had been settled during the year ended 31 March
2015.

On 9 January 2015, Mr. Yung has entered into of
a deed of amendments with the Company for the

Proposed Alteration.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 4. EXREALRS &
TRANSACTIONS - continued
(d) During the year, the Group had the following (d) FR - AEEEBEATZZSWN
transactions with related parties: T
2015 2014
“E-AfF C—E2—NmF
Name of related parties Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$'000
REALRE ZHHHE FET FHE T
Non-controlling shareholder of Edward Management fee paid
Hospital Company Limited 1,591 1,937

EFEREEBRARAAZFERRR CNEEE

Spouse of Mr. Yung Rental fee paid 117 97
FEEHE [EEREik
For the transactions constitute connected transactions under FIRBAIZENR LR AZER S B E
GEM Listing Rules, please refer to “Connected Transactions” BRXZMs F2HETEREIET
under “Report of the Directors”. ZIBERS ]
ZEEBREBEAERAA
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

General information of subsidiaries

12 FEMEBLT
(a) MEARZ—HEIH
AATAR=ZZE—HRE=A=+—H

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of

which are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2015

are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid

ZEEWBLE (ZMEBERLE)

HBEWT:

establishment/ Class of ordinary share/ Percentage of equity interest
Name of subsidiary operations share held registered capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
BERTR
301300 WEEER ERMEW
HWELARER BRI/ ERBE  HRERHER EMRFEE BRESHL TERE
Direct Indirect
EE M
2015 2014 2015 2014
~$-if “E-UF "$-IfF “E-QOF
Fujian Maidsen Enterprises Company The PRC Registered RMB40,000,000 - = 100% 100%  Provision of healthcare and
Limited* hospital management services
BREBRBEERAR FE B A K #40,000,0005 RUBEREREERY
Edward Hospital Company Limited* The PRC Registered RMB40,000,000 - = 55% 55%  Provision of general hospital
services
EFERERRARAR" TE B A K #40,000,0005 REFSMEBRERS
Jiaxing Shuguang* The PRC Registered RMB15,000,000 - = 55% 55%  Provision of general hospital
services
REBR HE B AR#15,000,0007C RYUGAMBRRY
Zhuhai Zhongkangan Enterprises The PRC Registered HK$3,000,000 - = 100% 100%  Provision of healthcare and
Management Limited* hospital management services
HERRRLEERERAR FE B 3,000,000 7T RUBEREREERY
Wanjia Group Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Ordinary HK$6,484,000 - - 63.53% 63.53% Investment holding
EREEERERLA HEHE EE 6,484,000%8 7T REZR
Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 - - 63.53% 63.53% Investment holding
(“Huihao Hong Kong")
i (BR)BEEEARAA & EE 1,000,000/ 7 REZER
(TBHEE])
Luxuriant Expand Global Investment British Virgin Island  Ordinary US$100/US$50,000 - - 63.53% 63.53% Investment holding
Limited
RMBERREERAT REBRLES EE 100%£7,/ REER
50,000% 7T
Timely Hero Enterprises Limited British Virgin Island  Ordinary US$1/US$50,000 - - 63.53% 63.53% Investment holdings
BECEERAA RBELZEE EE 1%7T,//50,000% 78 REZR
Nurture Fit Limited British Virgin Island ~ Ordinary US$1/US$50,000 - - 63.53% 63.53% Investment holdings
RHERAR RBRLEE EE 1% 7,/50,000% 7T REER
Fujian Province Fuzhou City The PRC Registered RMB60,000,000 - - 63.53% 63.53% Pharmaceutical wholesale and
Huihao Pharmaceutical Co., Limited distribution business in the
(“Fuzhou Huihao") PRC
BRABNTEFREERAT FE B AR #60,000,0007 RPEZEMHBR D HEYR
(TENEH])
Putian Huihao Medicine Co., Limited The PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 - - 63.53% 63.53% Pharmaceutical wholesale and
(“Putian Huihao”) distribution business in the
PRC
EREHEABEARAR HE B ARK%10,000,0007 RAEZENHRE D HEH
(TEBEF])
Fujian Huiming Medicine Co., Limited The PRC Registered RMB20,000,000 - - 63.53% 63.53%  Pharmaceutical wholesale and
("Fujian Huiming") distribution business in the
PRC
BRAEHBREERAF FE B AR #20,000,0007 RPEZEMHBR D HEYR
(MEREH])

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 42. ¥ EMBLT &
(a) General information of subsidiaries (a) MEBARIZ—MEE &
- continued
Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
establishment/ Class of ordinary share/ Percentage of equity interest
Name of subsidiary operations share held registered capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
ERTR
301300 WMEEER EREEE
HELARER i/ B R PR AR HEMRFEE 2 T304 TERE
Direct Indirect
EE M
2015 2014 2015 2014
Z2-1F “T-NF Z8-1F -“Z-MF
Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical The PRC Registered RMB15,856,000 - - 63.08% 63.08% Pharmaceutical retail chain
Chain Company Limited business in the PRC
(“Huihao Sihai")*
BREEANSBEEEEREALF FE B AEM¥15,856,0007C RAEZENTEEHEEY
([EHFmE]) "
Huihao Medicine (Quanzhou) Co., Ltd* The PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 - - 63.53% 63.53% Pharmaceutical Wholesale and
distribution business in the
PRC
EHBE (RN BRAA =] =5 AR #10,000,0007T REEZENHBR D HEH
(TRMNEH])
Huihao Pharmaceutical (Xiamen) The PRC/ Registered RMB10,880,000 - - 38.12% - Pharmaceutical Wholesale and
Company Limited* distribution business in the
PRC
ERRE (EM)ERAF HE/ B AR#10,880,0007C RAEZENHBRRE S HEH
([EMESF])
Huihao Pharmaceutical (Nanping) The PRC Registered RMB12,500,000 - - 38.12% - Pharmaceutical Wholesale and
Company Limited* distribution business in the
PRC
EFBRE(BY)ERAA =] =5 AR #12,500,0007 REEZENHBR D HEH
(TETEH)*
Shanghai Whole-Care Hospital The PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 - - 100% - Provision of healthcare and
Management Co., Limited hospital management services
LEERBREEERAR HE B AR#10,000,0007T RUBRREREERY
Fuzhou Jianhui Enterprise Management ~ The PRC Registered RMB1,000,000 - - 100% - Investment holding
Consultancy Limited
BNEELXERAATRAA HE B AR#1,000,0007 REZR
Fuzhou Huikang Enterprise Management ~ The PRC Registered RMB1,000,000 - - 100% - Investment holding
Consultancy Limited
BMERCXEEZATRAA HE B AR#1,000,0007 REZR
Zhuhai Jiulong The PRC Registered RMB 10,000,000 - - 100% —  Provision of healthcare and
hospital management services
HENE HE B AR#10,000,0007T RUBRREREERY
9 The English transliteration of the Chinese names in this 4 ABREFX BB ZRELBZEM

report, where indicated, is included for information
only, and should not be regarded as the official English
names of such Chinese names

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

HE TERAEEPXERZE
HEXERE

ERAFIARFAMBARANDESIAAY
FEBXEASEEREAZEE -EER
AREHEMHBAR 2ERSERIER
RTE-
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31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 42.
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-

controlling interests:

Place of Proportion of ownership
Incorporation interests and voting rights
Name of and principal held by non-controlling
subsidiary place of business interests
BERBIHHR RAERERRFRRESR
HELTZE TEERNL Rz RERZLH
2015 2014

ZE-1f ZZ-[Of%
HK$'000 HK$'000

FRMEBLF &

(b) WEEAFRBMBZEDRM
BATZHN
T RIS E AR &
£E %2 EHEA T2

(Loss)/profit allocated to Accumulated non-
non-controlling interests controlling interests
PEREFBRERL
(BR) /@7 AHFARER
2015 2014 2015 2014

—2-if C-I-@mF ZZ3-If C-E-QF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TAR TiER TR TiET THR
Wanjia Group (note) The PRC 36.47% 36.47% (281,376) 10,555 103,054 384,430
EE&E (i) i
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests 56,634 41,740

BEFERBEZMAFEANBLR

Note:

The non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Wanjia
Group, represented Wanjia Group Holdings Limited, an
investment holding company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands, and its subsidiaries as a group as a result of the
Reorganisation (Note 2), for purpose of this Note.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is
set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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FffEE

RAMEMS AQAZFEERB A
ABEEE(NBEEZEEEREARA
A —EAREEHSEMRLZRERE
BRAFDREWEQREEA (MEE2)
miES —E&EH-

FEBREAFEREZ 2 AEE M
BRA M BERBERHSIMT o T 58
BERMEDEERERA 2 S5 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 42. FEMELT —E
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) MBEXRIEZRERZFEZEN
that have material non-controlling interests BATZHE &
— continued
Wanjia Group EEEE
2015 2014
—g-5% —®-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHETT F#& T
Current assets nBEE 618,170 621,814
Non-current assets EREEE 37,170 810,905
Current liabilities nBaE 372,296 386,996
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - -
Equity attributable to owners of ARAEE ARG ER
the Company 273,781 1,045,307
Non-controlling interests R ER. 9,263 416
Revenue Y & 1,567,687 2,096,455
(Loss)/profit for the year NEE (F5B) &F (773,280) 49,068
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of PINNTE ¥ N
the Company (E18) =F (772,949) 48,920
(Loss)/profit attributable to non- RS G
controlling interests (B18) &EF (331) 148
(Loss)/profit for the year NEE (FBE), &R (773,280) 49,068
SERREDERAT 201
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 42.

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

that have material non-controlling interests

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHREMSE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

FEMBLAT &
(b) BAEXFERESZZFZEM
BABZHER-&

- continued
Wanjia Group - continued BERSEE-&
2015 2014
—E—AfF —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Other comprehensive income attributable 242 B #EA A FE(G HAth
to owners of the Company g 1,423 4,467
Other comprehensive income attributable  JE 3% IR A 5 FE G H Ath
to non-controlling interests e g - 8
Other comprehensive income for the year 7N E H fth 2 mE UK & 1,423 4,475
Total comprehensive (loss)/income RABHEE AEAL
attributable to owners of the Company 2MH (B18) WRazE (771,526) 53,389
Total comprehensive (loss)/income =R A
attributable to non-controlling interests 2MH (E18) WResE (331) 156
Total comprehensive (loss)/income AEEETE (FE)
for the year Wz 42 %8 (771,857) 53,543
Dividends paid to non-controlling EfNFEERERIRE
interests - 179
Net cash inflow from operating activities RE&EZEFE =
BRERAFHE 577 7,726
Net cash outflow from investing activities REREEE 2
BE&REFaE (18,890) (4,424)
Net cash inflow from financing activities REBEEE =
BRERAFHE 16,452 8,918
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be (RE) /RAFE (1,861) 12,220

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015




42.

43.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued

(c) Significant restrictions
Cash and short-term deposits of RMB held in the PRC
are subject to local exchange control regulations.
These local exchange control regulations provide for
restrictions on exporting capital from the PRC, other

than through normal dividends.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes bill payables, bank borrowings, promissory note
and convertible note), cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising

issued share capital and reserves.

42.

43.

e MBRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

FTERBAF &

() EXRH
RPEZEARBZRERESRE
A 0 S0 R I PR R
ZEENEEHEHIRRFER
HERBHRE (RBBEFERE
5h)

BFXRREE
FEEERREANRRALEEE
BREEE  WRBECERRERE
BARRERBABR - NBEFE &
EE BB

FEEzEAERBRER (ETEERE
NRE -RITEE AARBERTRRERE
B) BEkBEEEEBRALAER
BFAEARGRE (ERBFECSBITRER
f#) o

EERBEEEERAT
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31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

43. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratios at 31 March 2015 and 2014 were as

. BEEREE-&

BEARKE

R-2-EFR-B-MFE=A=+-

follows: HeEESBLLERNT:
2015 2014
—E—1F —E—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Debt (note (a)) B (KiEE(a)) 218,295 200,531
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRBELEEHEE (88,793) (109,849)
Net debt B FER 129,502 90,682
Equity (note (b)) B A (FEE(b)) 221,810 724,253
Gearing ratio EEABGBLE 0.58 0.13

Notes: P &E -

(@) Debt comprises bill payables, bank borrowings, convertible

note and promissory note as detailed in notes 21, 22, 24 and

25 respectively.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

GEMBHRERME

31 March 2015 = &E—HRF=H=+—H

44. €T HR

(a) EMIRSW

Financial assets HGERE
The Group The Company
F5H FoH
2015 2014 2015 2014
—iF —Z-MmF ZT-EF _—ZT-MOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FT#RT TExT FTET TER
Loans and receivables EXKEWHIE
(including cash and cash (BEAER
equivalents) BeLEER) 477,916 496,045 65,563 79,613
Derivative financial PEARATEESB
instruments classified as fair B= 58k 2
value through profit or loss  $TE € BRI A 284 384 284 384
Financial assets designated at ¥ ERAFEER
financial assets at fair value 125 8E 2
through profit or loss BHREE - 1,259 - -
Financial liabilities MBAR
Amortised cost 85 R R 470,684 452,944 366,462 363,570

Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk (including currency risk and interest

rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s

overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's

financial performance. The management manages

and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

(b) MBERBEEEARRBR

FEEZEBEHSBMERARE:

TBER (BEEEARRAEE
@) EERBEAREBEEEMR- A

SECERRAREEIRERER
REFRHN ST S  BREH R
SEMBRARZEETFNZERE
RE-EEEEERERZERE
BRURBEERzZSAERERBE
i o

EEBREEEERAT
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

()

Market risk
The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign exchange

rates and interest rates.

Market risk exposures are measured using

sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change to the Group's
exposure to market risks or the manner in which

it manages and measures the risk.

Foreign currency risk management

The Group has minimal exposures to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in the functional currencies of the respective
subsidiaries. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect
of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is also exposed to market interest
rate risk mainly in relation to floating rate bank
borrowings (Note 22). The Group's cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of benchmark interest rate published
by the People’s Bank of China arising from the

Group’s RMB denominated borrowings.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

44. @M TR -8
(b) MERBREEEERBE &

()

h 45 B bR
AEEZEBETESAEEE
ZERRANEZZD 2B BEA
B o

FORE 2 T AR BRE S
Wit

FEBAAZ 2HERAREE
BERITERRzFELES
o

SR R E
AEEZIERRBERN  RE
RAKE 2 KBREBRZ
EEREEZEURBANBEL
A2 EBE NEEE
RYEEEIERSZ EER
BEZIEHABR - AEH
A B B H NS R B - S
REXLEREZRBHEHFERINE
2 Bz

T m e & 2
AEETHEREREFHA R
RITEERE TSN XREAR
(MfaE22) - AEEZBRERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

()

Market risk — continued

Interest rate risk management — continued

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
However, the management monitors interest
rate risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need

arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. For variable-rate
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of liability outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March
2015 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$408,000 (2014: HK$131,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable rate borrowings during the
year ended 31 March 2015.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rate has
increased during current year mainly due to

increase in variable-rate borrowings.

e MBRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

44. @M TR -8
(b) MERBREEEBERBE &

()

4% B —
FIEmbE EHZE &

REE I EEREARR=H
LU i HLH B 2 R R AR - R
- EEEEEEN AR
YR EEREEHPEAF
2k

HE DT

TXZBREDMIIRBIELT
ETERBEPRAAZ 2
NEEBEE -SRZEMEEM
5 HAMDERRBEHRR
HAREEZBESHENEEF
ERYREZE ROAIPEER
EBRABRENRERTIRA
IRS0EF  EREEEFreT
EARSERR 2N REH-

i FIZE EF T HBRS0E %
MArEEMEEHETE 8l
rEEBEBEZE-_ZT—HF=A
E+—BLEEZRFER
4/ #8 h#408,00058 7T (=
FT— 94 : 131,000/ Jt) ° bt
DEEREAEERBZE_-_F
—HAF=R=+—HLFE
AT EEEREAZ 2AZR/
[{fn;o

ARE B 2 R R E R A B S
BN TEREEZEML
BB e

HEEEREEERAA
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GEMBRERWE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
(ii) Credit risk

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees provided by the Group is
arising from:

o the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position;
and

o the carrying amount of the respective
pledged investment properties and prepared
lease payments as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location mainly arised in the PRC. As
at 31 March 2015, the Group's concentration of
credit risk by customers is approximately 29.9%
of trade receivables due from the Group’s five
largest customers (2014: 15.8%).

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual’s trade debt and debt investments
at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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EREFZEREERBALRE
WAREEREAEF 2B B EW
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REFERAREERE A&
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

(i)

(iii)

Credit risk - continued

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating

agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit ratings, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of credit
risk. Trade and other receivables consist of a
large number of customers, spread across diverse

industries.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the

maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has available
unutilised short and medium term bank loan
facilities of approximately HK$64,983,000 (2014:
HK$111,164,000) respectively.

GEMBHRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

44. €T

A —i#

(b) MERREEEARRBR &

(ii)

(iii)

& 5B —
HRZEXZHFHRAEER
BREEFREBSEETFRZ
RIT BURBESFER
AR -

BREENSFENRZE TR
TeRBELFEERARES
S REEREFTMEMER
FERARETSH-EHZRA
EVERRIRAEEFRS
EETE

RBReRRER
ExERAEERDESAR
ZERREMR MESSEEY
—EeEzZRBDESARE
BER AUEEAEEZE
HohHERAESRENR
HESERFR-AKHER
REZEZH#EE RITEER
REEEME  URFEHE
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B AEEEARBAEER
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GEMBHmEME

31 March 2015 = E—HRF=H=+—H

44 &M T H-&
(b) MERBREEEERBE &

44, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
RBREEMEE - &

(iii) Liquidity risk management - continued (iii)

The following tables detail the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities as well as derivative and certain non-
derivative financial assets which are included
in the maturity analysis provided internally to
the key management personnel for the purpose
of managing liquidity risk. For non-derivative
financial assets, the tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted contractual maturities
of the financial assets including interest that
will be earned on those assets except where the
Group anticipates that the cash flow will occur
in a different period. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the tables reflect the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The tables include both interest and principal cash

flows.

The Group
At 31 March 2015

TRAMBIIAE 2B ERE
RITETAURETIHELTER
BEEZFBEHNHR E5F
ARBTFRFEEEEAEZ
HRS UEERBESRA
BoRESTEMBEEMS
TRIDERMBEEZRUR
EHRNBMARE (BEZSEE
P EREZ R E) iR MR
EEEABREMBBEEZ
BERERD - RIESTEN I
BEMS TRRHUENRAEAE
ERERNRZE&EE B8
BEBZRBBERESRET

REEANERFERESRE-

*&EH
R-2—H1F=R=+—H

Weighted
average
effective Within Total
interest 1 year/ 2to Over undiscounted Carrying
rate  on demand 5 years S5years  cash flows amount
mEEY —-&£R/ E330)
ERHE REX —E1f¥ BEILF BEREHE BEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% THET TET TET TERT TET
Non-derivative financial ~ JEfEMBRR
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk H A E - 269,939 - - 269,939 269,939
Bank borrowings RITEE 8.5% 126,975 - - 126,975 121,454
Amounts due to non- B FERERAE
controlling interests - 1,147 - - 1,147 1,147
Promissory note AR EE 3% - 80,000 - 80,000 72,712
Convertible note MRBEE 10.97% - 6,500 - 6,500 5,432
398,061 86,500 - 484,561 470,684

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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GEMBHREMEE

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 44. T R 48
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MBEREEEERRBE &
policies — continued
(iii) Liquidity risk management - continued (iii) RBELRBEEE-&
At 31 March 2014 R-ZEBE-MNFE=A=+—H
Weighted
average
effective Within Total
interest 1 year/ 2to Over  undiscounted Carrying
rate on demand 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
METH —FR/ RER
BERF% RER —2n% BREE ReREL REE

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TR TER TER TR TR

Non-derivative financial FHEHEAE

liabilities
Trade and other payables B Z REMEMHE - 287,270 - - 287,270 287,270
Bank borrowings RITEE 8.1% 90,289 - - 90,289 88,088
Amounts due to non- B FERERTE
controlling interests - 1,213 - - 1,213 1,213
Promissory note AR RE 3.0% - - 80,000 80,000 71,361
Convertible note TERER 10.97% - 6,500 - 6,500 5,012
378,772 6,500 80,000 465,272 452,944
The Company b /N
At 31 March 2015 R-E—HF=A=+—H
Weighted
average
effective Within Total
interest 1 year/ 2to Over undiscounted Carrying
rate  on demand 5 years 5years  cash flows amount
mEEY —£R/ E33)

RRf= REX “En¥ BRIF RenENE RE{E
% HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
% TEx TiEx TiER TET TET

Non-derivative financial ~ FfiEHBERE

liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk H A FHE - 4,090 - - 4,090 4,090
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE{T B 2 R A - 284,228 - - 284,228 284,228
Promissory note RAEE 3% - 80,000 - 80,000 72,712
Convertible note ARREE 10.97% - 6,500 - 6,500 5,432
288,318 86,500 - 374,818 366,462

EERBEEEERAT 2A¥]
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GEMBRERWE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
(iii) Liquidity risk management - continued
At 31 March 2014

44 €M T H-&

(b) MERREEEARRBR &

(i) RBHESERAMRETE &

R-ZZE—WFE=Z=RA=+—H

Weighted
average
effective Within Total
interest 1 year/ 2to Over  undiscounted Carrying
rate on demand 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
EFH -FR/ RER
BERF% RER ZE0F BBEE RERELE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TER TR TERT TERL TR
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade and other payables B % REME[HE - 2,940 - - 2,940 2,940
Amounts due to subsidiaries - 284,257 - - 284,257 284,257
Promissory note 3.0% - - 80,000 80,000 71,361
Convertible note 10.97% - 6,500 - 6,500 5,012
287,197 6,500 80,000 373,697 363,570

(c) Fair value measurements
The following note provides information about how the
Group determine fair values of various financial assets

and financial liabilities

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and

financial liabilities that are measured at fair value

on recurring basis

The following table gives information about how the
fair value of these financial assets and liabilities are

determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and

input used).

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

GEMBHRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

(c) Fair value measurements - continued (o)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and

financial liabilities that are measured at fair value

on recurring basis — continued

Fair value

Fair value as at hierarchy

44. eMT R -8

DFEEHE-®
BEMEENATEHEBEZFEE
HERERMBARZATE-®

Valuation techniques and

key inputs

RUTHHZAFE QFEER [KEHPEREEBAHE
31 March 31 March
2015 2014
—Z-1F —E—mE
=Z=B=+—H =ZA=+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TERT
Financial assets
MBRE
Derivative financial include 284 384 Level 3 Binominal Model. instruments Key
inputs share price, volatility, time
to maturity and conversion price.
TTEMBIA E3; AR T TP ARIBEEE
B R ZIHEERE
B®E-
Financial assets at fair value - 1,259 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active
through profit or loss market
BAVEEBBEBEIIKRZ ERE REBTSMB2EANE

MBEE

During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014,

there were no transfers of fair value measurements

between Level 1 and Level 2, and there were no

transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets

and financial liabilities.

HEEEREEERAA

REBEZE-_ZE-—HEFR-_Z—NFE=
B=+—HLtEE HEEERM
KEEEIARE2R 2B ENTF
Eif2E% AW EEFEIREAR
o
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GEMBREWE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(c) Fair value measurements - continued

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and

financial liabilities that are not measured at fair

value on recurring basis

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors

consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets

and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated

financial statements approximate to their fair values.

At 31 March 2015
R-Z—-31%=R=+-—AH

44 &M T H-&

() XFERIE-®
EFRSHRBELULNTFEAEBZF
KEMBERERMBARZILFE

EERR BRTRAFEESIN  FTA
REVBBRRAVBEERYBE
Bz REEEE A FEMEE-

At 31 March 2014
R-Z2-DmFE=A=+—H

Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REE LFEE BRMEE NFEE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET FTART FTART
Financial liabilities MEBER
Convertible note IR E B 5,432 6,102 5,012 5,967
Promissory note A EE 72,712 63,243 71,361 58,975
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(c) Fair value measurements - continued

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
The following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments that are measured subsequent to initial

e MBRERME

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

44. eMT R -8
(0 2FEMHE-&
RESHMBREARARREZATE
HE
TRIEBHEADSRABERLTE
B REATETBRZEES A

recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to Bz eI E 2o

3 based on the degree to which the fair value is

observable:

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2015
R-S—HEFZAZT+—HZLAFEER

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
18R E28R E3] Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Financial assets MBERE
Derivative financial fTEERmITE
instruments - - 284 284
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2014
R-E-NF=B=+-—HZAFEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1R EVEN 38R Ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT
Financial assets MERE
Financial assets at fair RAFEZEBERIIKRZ
value through profit BkEE
or loss 1,259 - - 1,259
Derivative financial TTEEHMIA
instruments - - 384 384
EEBREBEEEBRAT

2014/2015 FE 3K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBFHREMSE

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 44. €T R -8
(c) Fair value measurements - continued (c) AFEHE—E
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements EIMOTFEHMEBZHIE
31 March 2015 —E—-RF=HA=+—H
The movement during the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_ZE—HFE=A=1+—HLE
in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurement is as EREIRAFEFEZEHRSE N
follows: T
Redemption
option
embedded in
convertible
note
CIE: 128
AR Z
F& O] 48
HK$'000
TFET
At 1 April 2014 “E-—NHE@™AE—H 384
Change in fair value recognised EREZEIALATEESD
in profit or loss (100)
At 31 March 2015 R-ZZE-AF=ZA=+—H 284
Z'I 6 HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

31 March 2015 Z&—HRF=H=+—H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 44. €T R -8
(c) Fair value measurements - continued (c) AFEHE—E
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements FEIMOTFEMBZHIE -8
- continued
31 March 2014 —E-mE=ZA=+—H
The movement during the year ended 31 March 2014 BE-_Z-—NE=A=+—HLHF
in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurement is as EREIRAFEFEZEREZ B
follows: T
Redemption
option
embedded in
convertible
note
AR ERE
W2
FE [ 1
HK$'000
FERT
At 1 April 2013 —E2-—=H5MA—H 69
Change in fair value recognised in profit or ERIEH R A FEE &
loss 315

At 31 March 2014 A—E-—NE=A=+—H 384

EEBREEEERAT
2014/2015 FE 3R
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45. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE

REPORTING PERIOD

The Company

Grant of share option

On 16 April 2015, the Company granted a total of
100,000,000 share options to directors and employees of
the Group at the subscription price of HK $0.68 per share
respectively with a 3 year exercise period each commencing
18 April 2015, 18 April 2016 and 18 April 2017 respectively.

Memorandum of understanding of proposed
cooperation

On 18 May 2015, the Company and Yunnan Tumor Hospital
entered into the non-legally binding memorandum of
understanding (the “MOU") in relation to the proposed
cooperation. The parties to the MOU plan to cooperate
for the construction of a new branch hospital of Yunnan
Tumor Hospital on a piece and parcel of land with an area
of approximately 24 mu located at Lot A5, City Centre
Village Project No. 53, Xishan District, Kunming, Yunnan
province, the PRC, according to a mutually agreed schedule,
upon obtaining the approval from the Land Planning and
Management Department in Kunming for its intended use.
Until the date of this report, the proposed cooperation is not
yet materialised.

Issue of ordinary shares in respect of exercise of share
options

On 3 June 2015, 2,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company
of HK $0.01 each have been issued in respect of the exercise
of 2,500,000 post-listing share options. Also 9 June 2015,
9,080,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK $0.01 each
have been issued in respected of the exercise of 9,080,000
post-listing share options.

Rights issue

On 22 June 2015, the Company and the underwriter entered
into an underwriting agreement. The Company proposes to
raise not less than approximately HK $240 million but not
more than approximately HK $260 million, before expenses,
by way of the Rights Issue of not less than 334,633,988
rights shares but not more than approximately 360,908,387
rights shares to the qualifying shareholders at a subscription
price of HK $0.72 per rights share on the basis of one (1)
rights share for every five (5) shares held on the record date.
Until the date of this report, the underwriting agreement has
not yet becoming unconditional.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RZZE-HFEMA+B AQAFACRS
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RIEEE T4 2£100,000,00017 B IR 1 -
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f2,500,00017 E R B IRAE MR (T
ERZZE—HFEANE " 9,080,000
BRMEEC.0BTZAQANEBERERHIT
5£9,080,00017 £ 12 [ A% #& M & 85 47 o

it B%

RZE—FHEFARAZ+ZH A aH
BB LEHEGR - AARERUS
RERIZD0.728B T 2RBE - BRNART
HFBEBHEBHERIORRKROER —(1DKR
HERP2EEOEERRREITRID
334,633,988 B R M ETZ KA
360,908,387 % 1t B% A% 110 2 75 =\ #E 1T 1H
IR & &R DR #240,000,000% JT{E R
%8#9260,000,00058 75 (3NBRBEAZAT) ©
RARRE BE > B8 15 e R R AR
o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE

REPORTING PERIOD - continued

Wanjia Group

On 12 May 2015, Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited (“Hui Hao
(HK)"), Fuzhou Ren An Medical Technology Limited (Fuzhou
Union Medical Technology Limited) (“Ren An”) and Fuzhou
Huihao entered into the Joint Venture Agreement, pursuant
to which Ren An agreed to make a capital contribution of
approximately RMB26 million to the registered capital and
the capital reserve of Fuzhou Huihao. The capital increase
constituted a deemed disposal of the Company's indirect
equity interest in the Fuzhou Huihao through Wanjia Group
and resulted that the equity interest of Hui Hao (HK) in
Fuzhou Huihao was diluted from 100% to 75% and the
Fuzhou Huihao is held as to 75% by Hui Hao (HK) and as to
25% by Ren An.

On 14 May 2015, Wanjia Group entered into the placing
agreement with the placing agent pursuant to which
Wanjia Group has conditionally agreed to place, through
the placing agent, on a best efforts basis, the Wanjia Group
convertible notes with principal amounts aggregating up
to HK $84,292,000 to the placees at the initial conversion
price of HK $0.65 per Wanjia Group conversion share (“the
placing”). Based on the initial conversion price of HK $0.65
per conversion share, a total of 129,680,000 Wanjia Group
conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise
of the conversion rights attaching to the Wanjia Group
convertible notes in full. The placing was completed on 1
June 2015 and assuming the conversion of Wanjia Group
convertible notes in full. The equity interest of the Company
in Wanjia Group will be diluted from approximately only
63.53% to approximately 52.94%. Until the date of this
report, no Wanjia Group convertible notes have been
converted.

GEMBHRERME

31 March 2015 = &E—HRF=H=+—H

45. HEERER &

BEEEE

R-Z2-—HFHEA+=H BHF(FH)
BESEARLAR ([EF (FH)]) &
MR BEMEERAR (CR])RE
MEHTYEEDHR Bt CZEEM[
BMNEF2AMEARERFFEL L
EHAEK¥26,000,0007T © EEHEKRIE
ZREEEELEARANARNEMNETFZ
BEREYEHEL (B8 REMNERF
ZIREH100%EEET5% » M@ MNELF
DHEZ (BEB8)RECZDHEFES%R
25%fE 4 o

R-Z—AFHA+THA BEEEHEE
’%ﬁiﬁﬂz?ﬂa%ﬁza B BEEED
ERUHEEEEBREREBER|HEEN
AT ERESREZSEEEIRR4/10.65
BIREAREHERS 584,292,000
TREBEEETRREEFARA (B
EER|) RIS ELESEREEZEEE
BHRRD0SBALHE REZEETR
REBFMS - EREERHTEE
R #E1TE 129,680,000 B=5&
EEnRh RESEER -ZT—HFAX
B—BRREBRZBZEEREZEEA
BREE - AATRNBEEEZREKH
#63.53% #EZE4952.94%  AARIRE R
B EEEEETRAREBECEER
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Financial Summary

B 5 48 =

31 March 2015 Z&—HF=H=+—H

For the year ended 31 March
BE=RA=+—HLFE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—¥P-LF —T-WF -T-=Ff =-F--F -F-——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTAT FTHET FET TERT
Result ¥
Turnover =L 1,780,309 2,243,159 2,020,589 1,835,776 1,463,711
Profit/(loss) before taxation — BRELADEA / (EE) (771,395) 66,670 72,683 84,407 58,751
Taxation Fi1E (10,789) (29,216) (22,141) (26,378) (21,541)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEERF (BE) (782,184) 37,454 50,542 58,029 37,210
Profit/(loss) attributable to LU AL BEEER
(EB#8)
— Owners of the Company —ARAREEA (505,581) 21,913 42,740 49,666 31,456
— Non-controlling interests —ERER (276,603) 15,541 7,802 8,363 5,754
(782,184) 37,454 50,542 58,029 37,210
As at 31 March
B=A=+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—P-1iF —F-NF =-T-=F =F--F —F-——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH#T TERT TERT FE T TERT
Assets and liabilities SERAE
Total assets BEE 874,991 1,638,040 1,578,537 1,491,156 1,374,723
Total liabilities BEE (493,493)  (487,617)  (592,498)  (551,112)  (498,025)
381,498 1,150,423 986,039 940,044 876,698
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